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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
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* Attributable to Universal Corporation common shareholders after deducting amounts attributable to noncontrolling interests in

consolidated subsidiaries.
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TO OUR SHAREHOLDERS

| am very pleased with the results that your company achieved in fiscal year 2016. We successfully managed
a second year of oversupplied markets, achieving modest growth in overall volumes for the year and
improved margins. Our selling, general, and administrative expenses were also lower due in part to the
strong U.S. dollar this year. We continued to handle our inventories in a prudent fashion, with our fiscal
year end uncommitted stocks at lower levels than last year, comfortably within our target range.

Net income for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2016, was $109.0 million, or $3.92 per diluted share,
compared with last year's net income of $114.6 million, or $4.06 per diluted share. Those results included
certain non-recurring items, detailed in our Form 10-K, which increased diluted earnings per share by
$0.02 and $0.46 for the years ended March 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively. Excluding those items in
both years, net income for the fiscal year increased $6.8 million ($0.30 per diluted share) compared to
the same period last year. Segment operating income, which excludes those items, was $186.1 million for
fiscal year 2016, an increase of $18.8 million, or 11%, from the prior year. That improvement was primarily
attributable to a reduction in selling, general, and administrative costs, as well as improved gross margins
on this year's modestly higher sales volumes. Revenues of $2.1 billion for fiscal year 2016 declined 7%
compared with the previous year, driven mainly by lower green leaf costs and lower processing revenues,
partly mitigated by the increase in volumes.

We continue to believe that financial strength is critical. It enables us to fund our global operations
efficiently and to facilitate investment when suitable opportunities arise. In fiscal year 2016, our operations
generated $184 million in operating cash flows, and we returned more than $60 million in dividends to our
shareholders, closed the year with higher cash balances, which will support upcoming seasonal working
capital requirements in fiscal year 2017, and preserved our solid financial position.

We have also been working hard this year to give more visibility to the many good things that your
company does around the world to benefit the communities in which we operate. We are calling these
actions the “Universal Effect” to remind us that every decision each of us takes, whether immediate or
long-term, impacts the communities we both serve and on whom we depend. We are also focusing on
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six areas where we are taking actions that ripple outward, and we believe have a major impact—farmer

support, sustainability, education, community support, youth support, and our Universal Leaf Foundation.
Our programs and actions have directly impacted more than 2 million people thus far in tobacco growing
areas, showing how every action ripples out to affect another.

We have featured the Universal Effect in this annual report and on our website, and | encourage you to
read more about it. We also believe that it is such an essential element of your company and how we do
business that we've incorporated it into our refreshed logo, which should serve as a constant reminder to
all of us to be mindful of the lasting impacts of our actions.

Two of our Board of Directors who have had a positive impact on our Company have reached the end of
their terms. Chet Crocker joined the Board in 2004, and recently has served on the Finance and Pension
Investment Committees. Chet's vast knowledge and experience in the politics of sub-Saharan Africa has
been invaluable to me and the Company. It is no coincidence that during his tenure we have expanded
in that area, particularly in Mozambique. Charlie Foster is our longest serving director, having been part
of the Board for almost 23 years. Charlie has served on many committees during his tenure, but most
recently has been our Lead Independent Director, Chair of the Executive Compensation, Nominating,
and Corporate Governance Committee, and a member of the Executive Committee. Charlie has been
a great resource to me and the Company, having run a major public company himself and having a vast
knowledge of the Company. Both Chet and Charlie have been true gentlemen-- pleasant, professional,
and honorable. We thank them for their distinguished service.

As we move into fiscal year 2017, we remain excited about our prospects and look forward to continuing our
leadership role in the industry. We will continue to work for and with our customers to improve efficiencies
in our markets and to provide a sustainable, compliant, and competitively priced product, allowing us to
fulfill their needs and to continue to provide value to our shareholders.

George C. Freeman, Il
Chairman, President, and Chief Executive Officer
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THE UNIVERSAL EFFECT

There is so much more than meets the eye when it comes to procuring high-quality tobacco. Every step
of the production process requires action, and each action impacts many lives. At Universal, we have long
recognized that every move we make has an impact that ripples out into communities. And we realize that
we can't work effectively without investing in and strengthening the communities where we operate.

We can't have good growers if they aren’t healthy and well-trained, and we can’t have a good product if
it's not grown under the right conditions. Therefore, we have spent decades training growers, setting up
health clinics, digging wells, and building schools. These efforts allow us ultimately to produce an excellent
product for our customers, and the effects ripple out into the communities, improving the lives of the
people where we work in what we call the “Universal Effect.”

Universal has more than 24,000 employees, and we work with half a million farmers around the world. We
are highly aware that our decisions and actions profoundly impact the lives of our people, the needs of
our investors, the requirements of our customers, and the future of our planet. For example, when we train
a grower in good agricultural practices, he becomes more productive, more environmentally sensitive,
more prosperous, and better prepared to help improve living standards in his own community. This is the

Universal Effect in action.




There are many examples of how the Universal Effect has directly impacted communities around the world.
A few highlights of our work include:

e Supporting the production of millions of tree seedlings;
* Building or improving schools and providing educational materials; and
*  Supporting communities by digging wells.

These actions and others like them have positively impacted more than 2 million people in the growing
areas from which we purchase tobacco.

Seeing the results of our achievements motivates us to continue finding ways Universal can make a
difference. We are currently focusing on six main areas where our actions can ripple out into communities
and make a major impact: farmer support, sustainability, education, community support, youth support,
and our Universal Leaf Foundation.

FARMER SUPPORT

The welfare and skill of our growers is a top priority for Universal. By offering them knowledge and
technology based on the application of good agricultural practices, we not only support them, but also
their families and communities. Globally, Universal employs more than 800 agronomists and technicians
who serve as crop advisors, assisting and training growers throughout production. We've discovered that
investing in good agricultural practices pays big dividends.

To learn more about the Universal Effect, visit our website at

www.universalcorp.com.




SUSTAINABILITY
We are mindful every day of our responsibility to make a sustainable impact on the people and communities

on whom we depend, as well as the planet that supports us all. We focus on factors that protect the
environment and improve human communities throughout the supply chain, including, reforestation,
water conservation, reduced carbon emissions, environmentally sensitive agricultural practices, and
the elimination of child labor. We also invest in infrastructure and social programs that improve living
conditions, promote education, and make communities stronger and healthier.

EDUCATION

We know that education is the key that opens the door to opportunity, and we've witnessed firsthand
what happens when grower communities create an environment that embraces education. Simply, they
are stronger for it. We've made investments in building schools, creating tutoring programs, and providing
learning materials. We believe that education, perhaps more than any other factor, is the foundation of

strong communities.

COMMUNITY SUPPORT

We are committed to enriching the quality of life in communities that are home to our growers and their
families. We have established health clinics and programs in some of the developing areas in which we
operate. We have also implemented projects to drill boreholes so communities can access safe and clean

drinking water close to home. We will continue to invest in the communities we depend on every day.




YOUTH SUPPORT

Universal is a leader in our industry’s efforts to eliminate child labor, which supports responsible sourcing
of our products. Sometimes, children spend time in the fields because of inadequate school facilities and
a lack of structured after-school activities. Therefore, we work to implement community and school-based
initiatives that provide more options and opportunities for children. We have found that such investments

help with these issues and ultimately strengthen communities.

UNIVERSAL LEAF FOUNDATION

The Universal Leaf Foundation, founded in 1975, is our philanthropic institution dedicated to fulfilling
our social responsibility to the communities where we operate in the United States. The Foundation is
committed to good corporate citizenship by investing in community programs, giving financial support
for community events, and promoting employee volunteerism. Our foundation focuses on four areas:
Education and Well-being of Children, At-risk Individuals, Families and Groups; Higher Education; Civic/

Community/the Arts; and Environment/Sustainability/Conservation.

At Universal, we strive to be mindful every day of how our work impacts all those around us. Our leaders
and employees take pride in seeing the effects of our actions ripple throughout the communities and

around the globe—watching the Universal Effect in action.

“We are also focusing on six areas where we are taking actions
that ripple outward, and we believe have a major impact—farmer
support, sustainability, education, community support, youth

support, and our Universal Leaf Foundation.”

— George C. Freeman, Il




PERFORMANCE GRAPH

Comparison of 5 Year Cumulative Total Return*®
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*$100 invested on 3/31/11 in stock or index, including reinvestment of dividends. Fiscal year ending March 31.
Copyright© 2016 S&P, a division of McGraw Hill Financial. All rights reserved.

The performance graph compares the cumulative total shareholder return on Universal Corporation
common stock for the last five fiscal years with the cumulative total return for the same period of the
Standard & Poor’s Smallcap 600 Stock Index and the peer group index. The peer group represents Alliance
One International, Inc. The graph assumes that $100 was invested in Universal Corporation common stock
at the end of the Company’s 2010 fiscal year, and in each of the comparative indices, in each case with
dividends reinvested.

CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN ON UNIVERSAL CORPORATION COMMON STOCK

At March 31
2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
Universal Corporation $ 100.00 $ 11211 $ 14032 $ 14522 $ 128.04 $ 160.54
S&P Smallcap 600 100.00 105.03 121.98 155.90 169.50 164.07
Peer Group 100.00 93.78 96.77 72.64 27.36 43.68
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General

ThisAnnual Report on Form 10-K, which we refer to herein as our Annual Report, contains “forward-1ooking statements”
within the meaning of Section 27A of the SecuritiesAct of 1933 and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, asamended
(the* ExchangeAct”). Among other things, these statementsrel ateto Universal Corporation’sfinancial condition, resultsof operations
and future business plans, operations, opportunities, and prospects. In addition, Universal Corporation and its representatives may
makewritten or oral forward-looking statementsfrom timeto time, including statements contained in other filingswith the Securities
and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”) and in reports to shareholders. These forward-looking statements are generally identified
by the use of words such as we “expect,” “believe,” “anticipate,” “could,” “should,” “may,” “plan,” “will,” “predict,” “estimate,”
and similar expressions or words of similar import. These forward-looking statements are based upon management’s current
knowledge and assumptions about future events and involve risks and uncertainties that could cause actual results, performance, or
achievements to be materially different from any anticipated results, prospects, performance, or achievements expressed or implied
by such forward-looking statements. Such risks and uncertainties include, but are not limited to: anticipated levels of demand for
and supply of our products and services; costsincurred in providing these products and services; timing of shipmentsto customers;
changes in market structure; government regulation; product taxation; industry consolidation and evolution; changes in exchange
rates and interest rates; impacts of regulation and litigation on our customers; and general economic, political, market, and weather
conditions. For adescription of factorsthat may cause actua results to differ materially from such forward-looking statements, see
Item 1A, “Risk Factors.” We caution investors not to place undue reliance on any forward-looking statements as these statements
speak only as of the date when made, and we undertake no obligation to update any forward-looking statements made in thisreport.
In addition, the discussion of the impact of current trends on our business in “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financia
Condition and Results of Operations — Other Information Regarding Trends and Management’s Actions’ in Item 7 should be read
carefully in connection with evaluating our business and the forward-looking statements contained in this Annual Report.

ThisAnnua Report uses the terms “Universal,” “the Company,” “we,” “us,” and “our” to refer to Universal Corporation
and its subsidiaries when it is not necessary to distinguish among Universal Corporation and its various operating subsidiaries or
when any distinction is clear from the context in which it is used.

Seethe “ Results of Operations” section in “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations” in Item 7 for a discussion of segment operating income, a non-GAAP financial measure that we refer to in this Annual
Report on Form 10-K and consider useful in understanding our business results and trends.

PART I

Item 1. Business

A The Company
Overview

We are the leading global |eaf tobacco supplier. We operatein over 30 countries on five continents and procure, finance,
process, pack, store and ship leaf tobacco and other agri-products. Tobacco has been our principal focus since our founding in
1918. Thelargest portion of our business involves procuring and processing flue-cured and burley leaf tobacco for manufacturers
of consumer tobacco products. Wedo not manufacture any consumer products. Rather, we support consumer product manufacturers
by selling them processed raw products and performing related services for them. Our reportable segments for our flue-cured and
burley tobacco operationsareNorth Americaand Other Regions. Weal so haveathird reportabl e segment, Other Tobacco Operations,
which comprisesour dark tobacco business, our oriental tobaccojoint venture, and certai n tobacco- and non-tobacco-rel ated services.
We generated approximately $2.1 billion in consolidated revenues and earned $186.1 million in total segment operating incomein
fiscal year 2016. Universal Corporation is a holding company that operates through numerous directly and indirectly owned
subsidiaries. Universal Corporation’s primary subsidiary is Universal Leaf Tobacco Company, Incorporated. See Exhibit 21,
“Subsidiaries of the Registrant,” for additional subsidiary information.



Key Operating Principles

We believe that by following several key operating principles we can continue to produce good financial returns from our
business and enhance shareholder value. These key operating principles are:

«  Strategic market position. Wework closely with both our customers and suppliersto ensure that we deliver aproduct
that meets our customers' needs while cultivating a strong, sustainable supplier base. We balance purchases of |eaf
tobacco against indicated customer demand and maintain global procurement and production operations to maximize
supply chain efficiencies.

e Strong local management. Having strong local management in all of our key supply origins allows us to identify
and react to constantly shifting market conditions. Empowered and experienced local management, coupled with
global coordination, affords usthe flexibility and knowledge necessary to adapt quickly in order to continually deliver
high quality, competitively-priced products and services.

e Compliant products. Customers expect a sustainable supply of compliant, traceable, competitively-priced product,
and we believe that we lead in delivering these products. Among other initiatives, we invest in training farmersin
good agricultural practices that encompass crop quality, environmental stewardship and agricultural labor standards.

« Diversified sources. We operate in over 30 countries on five continents and maintain a presence in all major flue-
cured, burley, oriental, and dark air-cured tobacco origin markets. Thisglobal presenceallowsusto meet our customers
diverse leaf requirements while minimizing the effects of adverse crop conditions and other localized supply
disruptions.

« Financial strength. Financia strength is critical and enables us to fund our global operations efficiently and to
facilitate investment when suitable opportunities arise. Management of liquidity, interest expense and capital costs
provides us with a competitive advantage and affords us flexibility when responding to customer requirements and
market changes.

Additional Information

Our websiteaddressiswww.universal corp.com. We post regul atory filingson thiswebsite as soon asreasonably practicable
after they areelectronically filed with or furnished to the SEC. Thesefilingsinclude annual reportson Form 10-K, quarterly reports
on Form 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K, proxy statements, Section 16 reports on Forms 3, 4, and 5, and any amendments to
those reports filed with or furnished to the SEC. Access to these filings on our website is available free of charge. Copiesare also
available, without charge, from Universal Corporation Investor Relations, 9201 Forest Hill Avenue, Richmond, VA 23235. Reports
filed with the SEC may be viewed at www.sec.gov or obtained at the SEC Public Reference Room at 100 F Street, NE, Washington,
D.C. 20549. Information regarding the operation of the Public Reference Room may be obtained by calling the SEC at 1-800-
SEC-0330. Wealso post our pressrel easeson our website. Information on our websiteisnot deemed to beincorporated by reference
into thisAnnual Report.

In addition, our Corporate Governance Guidelines, Code of Conduct, and chartersfor the Audit Committee, the Executive
Committee, the Executive Compensation, Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee, the Pension Investment Committee,
and the Finance Committee are available free of charge to shareholders and the public through the “ Corporate Governance” section
of our website. Printed copies of the foregoing are available to any shareholder upon written request to our Treasurer at the address
set forth on the cover of thisAnnual Report or may be requested through our website, www.universal corp.com.



B. Description of Business
General

Our primary business is procuring, financing, processing, packing, storing, and shipping leaf tobacco for sale to
manufacturers of consumer tobacco products. Procuring leaf tobacco involves contracting with, providing agronomy support to,
and financing farmersin many origins. We do not manufacture cigarettes or other consumer tobacco products. Rather, we support
consumer product manufacturers by selling them processed | eaf tobacco and performing related servicesfor them. Through various
operating subsidiaries and unconsolidated affiliates located in tobacco-growing origins around the world, we contract, purchase,
process, and sell flue-cured and burley tobaccos, as well as dark air-cured and oriental tobaccos. Flue-cured, burley, and oriental
tobaccos are used principally in the manufacture of cigarettes, and dark air-cured tobaccos are used mainly in the manufacture of
cigars, smokeless, and pipe tobacco products. We a so provide val ue-added servicesto our customers, including blending, chemical
and physical testing of tobacco, service cutting for select manufacturers, manufacturing reconstituted leaf tobacco, and managing
just-in-time inventory.

Several important operating factors characterize our company and our primary business, leaf tobacco:

«  Experience dealing with large numbers of farmers,

«  Expertisein delivering a sustainable supply of compliant, traceable, competitively-priced leaf tobacco,
e Capahility to meet unique customer requirements for style, volume and quality,

e Longstanding customer relationships,

e Presenceinal major leaf tobacco sourcing areas, and

e Financia strength and flexibility.

In addition to our leaf tobacco business, we are involved in other agribusiness opportunities. We participate in ajoint
venture that supplies liquid nicotine, manufactured in the United States, to the vapor products industry. During fiscal year 2015,
we entered a new business to produce high-quality dehydrated and juiced fruit and vegetable products. Initialy, this businessis
focusing on producing val ue-added ingredients derived from sweet potatoes. When looking at new opportunities, we seek prospects
where we believe we can earn an adequate return, leverage our assets and expertise, and enhance our farmer base. For example,
with our food ingredients business, we identified a business that we believe will enhance the value of our company, build on our
expertise as a business-to-business supplier of agricultural ingredients to companies that produce consumer products, and support
tobacco farmers who grow sweet potatoes as a rotational crop.

With respect to our leaf tobacco business, we generate our revenues from product sales of processed, packed tobacco that
we source, from processing fees for tobacco owned by third parties, and from fees for other services. Sales to our five largest
customers, with whom we have longstanding relationships, have accounted for more than 60% of our consolidated revenues for
each of the past threefiscal years. Our salesconsist primarily of flue-cured and burley tobaccos. For thefiscal year ended March 31,
2016, our flue-cured and burley operations accounted for 90% of our revenues and 94% of our segment operating income.

We conduct our business in varying degrees in a number of countries, including Bangladesh, Brazil, the Dominican
Republic, Germany, Guatemala, Hungary, India, Indonesia, Italy, Maawi, Mexico, Mozambique, the Netherlands, Nicaragua,
Paraguay, the People's Republic of China, the Philippines, Poland, Russia, Singapore, South Africa, Spain, Switzerland, Tanzania,
the United Arab Emirates, the United States, and Zimbabwe. In addition, our oriental tobacco joint venture, Socotab, L.L.C. has
operations in Bulgaria, Greece, Macedonia, and Turkey.

Because unprocessed, or “green,” leaf tobacco is a perishable product, timely processing is an essential service to our
customers. Our processing of |eaf tobacco includes grading in the factories, blending, removal of non-tobacco material, separation
of leaf from the stems, drying, packing to precise moisture targets for proper aging, aswell as temporary storage. Accomplishing
these tasks generally requires investmentsin factories and machinery in areas where the tobacco is grown. Processed tobacco that
has been properly packed can be stored by customers for anumber of years prior to use, but most processed tobacco is used within
two to three years.

We are amajor purchaser and processor in the chief exporting regions for flue-cured and burley tobacco throughout the
world. Africa, Brazil, and the United States produce approximately 60% of the flue-cured and burley tobacco grown outside of
China. We estimate that we have historically handled, through leaf sales or processing, between 35% and 45% of the annual
production of such tobaccos in Africa, between 15% and 25% in Brazil, and between 25% and 35% in the United States. These
percentages can change from year to year based on the size, price, and quality of the crops. As tobacco growing regions have
expanded in Africa, we have handled alarger proportion of the cropsthere. We participatein the procurement, processing, storage,
and sale of oriental tobacco through ownership of a49% equity interest in Socotab, L.L.C., aleading supplier of oriental tobaccos.
In addition, we maintain a presence, and in certain cases, aleading presence, in virtually all other major tobacco growing regions
intheworld. We believe that our leading position in the leaf tobacco industry is based on our operating presencein al of the major
sourcing areas, our ability to meet customer style, volume, and quality requirements, our expertise in dealing with large numbers
of farmers, our long-standing relationships with customers, our development of processing equipment and technologies, and our
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financial position. The efficiencies that we offer our customers, due to our established network of operational expertise and
infrastructure on the ground and our ability to market most styles and grades of leaf to a diverse customer base, are also key to our
SUCCESS.

We also have aleading position in worldwide dark tobacco markets. Our dark tobacco operations are located in most of
the major producing countries and in other smaller markets. We operate in major dark tobacco producing countries, including the
United States, the Dominican Republic, Indonesia, Paraguay, the Philippines, Nicaragua, and Brazil. Dark tobaccos are typically
used in the manufacture of cigars, pipe tobacco, and smokeless tobacco products, and as components of certain “roll-your-own”
cigarette products.

Sales are made by our salesforce and, to amuch smaller degree, through the use of commissioned agents. Most customers
arelong-established tobacco product manufacturers. Customer contract arrangementsvary around theworld and include negotiated
pricing as well as cost plus arrangements. Discussions of a customer’s longer-term needs may begin as early as one to two years
in advance of a particular crop purchase. These discussions are key to our future crop production planning. Prior to planting each
year, we use early customer indicationsfor type, style, processing, and volume requirements for the upcoming season’s crop to help
us determine our farmer contracting and grower input needs in our origins. We work with our farmers and customers continually
throughout the crop season. As crops progress through the growing season, customers will inspect the crop, and a customer’s early
indications may berefined based upon emerging crop qualities and quantities and market pricing expectations. Ultimately, purchase
agreementsspecifying quantity, quality, gradeand priceareexecuted, |eading toinventory all ocationsof harvested green or processed
leaf that we have acquired.

Inthemajority of the countrieswherewe operate, we contract directly with tobacco farmersor tobacco farmer cooperatives.
In most countries outside the United States, we advance seed, fertilizer, and other agricultural inputs to farmers. These advances
are repaid by farmers with the tobacco they produce. We are dedicated to promoting a sustainable farmer base and provide our
farmers with agronomy support. Our Good Agricultural Practices programs educate farmers in such matters as the reduction of
non-tobacco related materials, product traceability, environmental sustainability, agricultural labor standards, and socia
responsibility. In Malawi and Zimbabwe, we also purchase some tobacco under auction systems.

Our foreign operations are subject to international business risks, including unsettled political conditions, expropriation,
import and export restrictions, exchange controls, and currency fluctuations. During the tobacco season in many of the countries
listed above, we advance funds, guarantee local loans, or do both, each in substantial amounts, for the eventual purchase of tobacco.
The magjority of these seasonal advances and loan guarantees mature in one year or less upon the farmers’ delivery of contracted
tobaccos. Most advances to farmers are denominated in local currency, which is a source of foreign currency exchange rate risk.
Most tobacco sales are denominated in U.S. dollars, which reduces our foreign currency exchange risk after the tobacco has been
purchased. Seeltem 1A, “Risk Factors’ for more information about our foreign currency exchange and other risks.

For adiscussion of recent developments and trends in our business, along with factors that may affect our business, see
Item 7, “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations,” and Item 1A, “Risk Factors.”

Seasonality

Our operations are seasonal in nature. Tobacco in Brazil is usually purchased from January through July, while buying in
Malawi, Mozambique, and other African countriestypically begins around April and continues through November. Farmersbegin
to sell U.S. flue-cured tobacco in late July, and the marketing season lasts for approximately four months.

We normally operate each of our processing plantsfor seven to nine months of theyear. During this period for each region,
inventories of green tobacco, inventories of processed tobacco, and trade accounts receivable normally reach peak levels in
succession. We normally finance this expansion of current assets with cash, short-term borrowings from banks, and customer
advances, and these funding sources normally reach their peak usage in each region during its respective purchasing or processing
period. Our balance sheet at our fiscal year end reflects seasonal expansions in working capital in South America and Central
America. Our financial performanceisal soimpacted by theseasonality of our business. Asaresult of customer shipment preferences,
we have seen alarger portion of our volumes shipped in the second half of our fiscal year. These changes in customer shipment
schedules or changesin crop timing in a season can also shift recognition of revenue in agiven fiscal year.

Customers

A material part of our businessisdependent uponafew customers. Our fivelargest customersarePhilipMorrisInternational
Inc., British American Tobacco plc, Imperial Brandspl ¢, Japan Tobacco, I nc. and ChinaTobacco International, Inc. Intheaggregate,
these customers have accounted for more than 60% of our consolidated revenues for each of the past three fiscal years. For the
fiscal year ended March 31, 2016, each of Philip Morris International, Inc. and British American Tobacco plc, including their
respective affiliates, accounted for 10% or more of our revenues, while Imperial Brands plc, Japan Tobacco, Inc. and China Tobacco
International, Inc. each accounted for between 7% and 10% of our revenues. Theloss of, or substantial reduction in businessfrom,
any of these customers could have a material adverse effect on our results. We have longstanding relationships with all of these
customers.



We had commitments from customers for approximately $516 million of the tobacco in our inventoriesat March 31, 2016.
Based upon historical experience, we expect that at least 90% of such orderswill be delivered during fiscal year 2017. Most of our
product requires shipment via trucks and oceangoing vessels to reach customer destinations. Delaysin the delivery of orders can
result from such factors as truck and container availability, port access and capacity, vessal scheduling, and changing customer
reguirements for shipment.

Asmore fully described in Note 1 to the consolidated financia statementsin Item 8 of thisAnnua Report, we recognize
revenue from the sale of tobacco when title and risk of lossis transferred to our customer. Individual shipments may be large, and
since the customer typically specifies shipping dates, our financial results may vary significantly between reporting periods due to
timing of sales. In some markets, including the United States, Italy, and Brazil, we process tobacco that is owned by our customers,
and we recogni ze the revenue for that service when the processing is completed.

Competition

Competition among leaf tobacco suppliersis based on the ability to meet customer specifications in the growing, buying,
processing, and financing of tobacco, and on the price charged for products and services. Competition varies depending on the
market or country involved. The number of competitors varies from country to country, but there is competition in most areas to
buy and sell the available tobacco. Our principal competitor is Alliance One International, Inc. (“Alliance One”). Alliance One
operatesin most of the countries where we operate. Based on our estimates, we do not believe that worldwide market shares differ
substantially between the two companies. Most of our major customers are partially vertically integrated, and thus also compete
with us for the purchase of leaf tobacco in several of the major markets.

In most major markets, smaller competitorsarevery active. Thesecompetitorstypically havelower overhead requirements
and provide less support to customers and farmers. Dueto their lower cost structures, they can often offer a price on products that
islower than our price. However, we believe that we provide quality controls and farm programs that add value for our customers
in an increasingly regulated world and make our products highly desirable. For example, we have established worldwide farm
programs designed to prevent non-tobacco related materials from being introduced into the green tobacco delivered to our factories.
In addition, we have established programsfor sustainabl e tobacco production which include promoting Good Agricultural Practices
that encompass crop quality, environmental stewardship, and agricultural labor practices. We believe that our major customers
increasingly require these services and that our programs increase the quality and value of the products and services we offer. We
also believe that our customers value the security of supply that we are able to provide due to our strong relationships with our
farmer base and our global footprint.

Reportable Segments

We evaluate the performance of our leaf tobacco business by geographic region, although the dark air-cured and oriental
tobacco businesses are each evaluated on the basis of their worldwide operations. Performance of the oriental tobacco operations
isevaluated based on our equity inthe pretax earnings of our affiliate. Under thisstructure, we have thefollowing primary operating
segments. North America, South America, Africa, Europe, Asia, Dark Air-Cured, Oriental, and Special Services. North America,
South America, Africa, Europe, and Asia are primarily involved in flue-cured and burley leaf tobacco operations for supply to
cigarette manufacturers. Our Dark Air-Cured group supplies dark air-cured tobacco principally to manufacturers of cigars, pipe
tobacco, and smokeless tobacco products, and our Oriental business supplies oriental tobacco to cigarette manufacturers. Our
Special Servicesgroup provideslaboratory services, including physical and chemical product testing, e-cigaretteand e-liquid testing,
and smoketesting for customers. Our liquid nicotinejoint venture and our fruit and vegetabl e ingredients business are also included
in the Special Services group.

The five regional operating segments serving our cigarette manufacturer customers share similar characteristics in the
nature of their products and services, production processes, class of customer, product distribution methods, and regulatory
environment. Based on the applicable accounting guidance, four of the regions — South America, Africa, Europe, and Asia— are
aggregated into asinglereporting segment, Other Regions, because they al so have similar economic characteristics. North America
isreported asan individual operating segment, because its economic characteristics differ from the other regions, generally because
its operations require lower working capital investments for crop financing and inventory. The Dark Air-Cured, Oriental, and
Specia Services segments, which have differing characteristics in some of the categories mentioned above, are reported together
as Other Tobacco Operations, because each is below the measurement threshold for separate reporting.

Financial Information about Segments

Our North Americaand Other Regionsreportabl e segments, which represent our flue-cured and burley tobacco operations,
accounted for 17% and 73% of our revenues and 17% and 77% of our segment operating income, respectively, in fiscal years 2016
and 2015. Our Other Tobacco Operations reportable segment accounted for 10% of our revenues and 6% of our segment operating
incomein fiscal year 2016. Sales and other operating revenues and operating income attributable to our reportable segments for
each of the last three fiscal years, along with segment assets for each reportable segment at March 31, 2016, 2015, and 2014, are
set forth in Note 14 to the consolidated financial statements, which areincluded in Item 8 of thisAnnual Report. Information with



respect to the geographic distribution of our revenues and long-lived assetsis also set forth in Note 14 to the consolidated financial
Statements.

C. Employees

We employed over 24,000 employees throughout the world during the fiscal year ended March 31, 2016. We estimated
this figure because the majority of our personnel are seasonal employees.

D. Research and Development
We did not expend material amounts for research and development during the fiscal years ended March 31, 2016, 2015,
or 2014.
E. Patents, etc.
We hold no material patents, licenses, franchises, or concessions.
F. Government Regulation, Environmental Matters, and Other Matters

Our business is subject to general governmental regulation in the United States and in foreign jurisdictions where we
conduct business. Such regulationincludes, but isnot limited to, mattersrel ating to environmental protection. To date, governmental
provisions regulating the discharge of material into the environment have not had a material effect upon our capital expenditures,
earnings, or competitive position. See Item 1A, “Risk Factors’ for a discussion of government regulations and other factors that

may affect our business.



Item 1A. Risk Factors
Operating Factors

In areas where we purchase leaf tobacco directly from farmers, we bear the risk that the tobacco we receive will not meet quality
and quantity requirements.

When we contract directly with tobacco farmers or tobacco farmer cooperatives, which is the method we use to purchase
tobacco in most countries, we bear the risk that the tobacco delivered may not meet customer quality and quantity requirements. |If
the tobacco does not meet such market requirements, we may not be ableto fill al of our customers' orders, and such failure would
have an adverse effect on profitability and results of operations. In a contract market our obligation isto purchase the entire tobacco
plant, which encompasses many leaf styles, therefore, we also have arisk that not al of that production will be readily marketable
at pricesthat support acceptable margins. In addition, in many foreign countries where we purchase tobacco directly from farmers,
we provide them with financing. Unless we receive marketable tobacco that meets the quality and quantity specifications of our
customers, we bear the risk that we will not be able to fully recover our crop advances or recover them in a reasonable period of
time.

The leaf tobacco industry is competitive, and we are heavily reliant on a few large customers.

We are one of two major independent global competitorsin the leaf tobacco industry, both of whom are reliant upon afew
large customers. Theloss of one of those large customers or asignificant decrease in their demand for our products or services could
significantly decrease our sales of products or services, which would have amaterial adverse effect on our results of operations. The
competition among leaf tobacco suppliersand dealersisbased on the ability to meet customer requirementsin the buying, processing,
and financing of tobacco, and on the price charged for products and services. We believe that we consistently meet our customers
requirements and charge competitive prices. Since we rely upon afew significant customers, the consolidation or failure of any of
these large customers, or a significant increase in their vertical integration, could contribute to a significant decreasein our sales of
products and services.

We compete for both the purchase and sale of leaf with smaller leaf tobacco suppliers in some of the markets where we
conduct business. Some of these smaller leaf tobacco suppliers operatein more than one country. Sincethey typicaly providelittle
or no support to farmers, these leaf tobacco suppliers typically have lower overhead requirements than we do. Due to their lower
cost structures, they often can offer prices on products and servicesthat arelower than our prices. Our customersalso directly source
leaf tobacco from farmers to meet some of their raw material needs. Direct sourcing provides our customers with some qualities
and quantities of leaf tobacco that they prefer not to use in their existing blends and that may be offered for sale. This competition
for both the sale and purchase of |eaf could reduce the volume of the leaf we handle and could negatively impact our financia results.

Our financial results can be significantly affected by changes in the balance of supply and demand for leaf tobacco.

Asaleaf tobacco supplier, our financial results can be significantly affected by changesin the overall balance of worldwide
supply and demand for leaf tobacco. The demand for leaf tobacco, which is based upon customers’ expectations of their future
requirements, can change from time to time depending upon factors affecting the demand for their products. Our customers
expectations and their demand for leaf tobacco are influenced by a number of factors, including:

» trendsin the global consumption of cigarettes,

e trendsin consumption of cigars and other tobacco products,

« trendsin consumption of alternative tobacco products, such as e-cigarettes,

» levelsof competition among our customers, and

» regulatory and governmental factors.

The world supply of leaf tobacco at any given time is a function of current tobacco production, inventories held by
manufacturers, and the stocksof | eaf tobacco held by | eaf tobacco suppliers. Production of tobaccoinagivenyear may besignificantly
affected by such factors as:

» demographic shifts that change the number of farmers or the amount of land available to grow tobacco,

» decisions by farmersto grow crops other than leaf tobacco,

e volume of annual tobacco plantings and yields realized by farmers,

» availability of crop inputs,

« weather and natural disasters, including any adverse weather conditions that may result from climate change, and

» cropinfestation and disease.

Any significant change in these factors could cause a material imbalance in the supply of and demand for tobacco, which
would affect our results of operations.



Our financial results will vary according to tobacco growing conditions, customer requirements, and other factors. These factors
may also limit the ability to accurately forecast our future performance and increase the risk of an investment in our common stock
or other securities.

Our financial results, particularly our year-over-year quarterly comparisons, may be significantly affected by variationsin
tobacco growing seasons and fluctuationsin crop sizes. The timing of the cultivation and delivery of tobacco is dependent upon a
number of factors, including weather and other natural events, and our processing schedules and results of operations can be
significantly altered by these factors. In addition, the potential impact of climate change is uncertain and may vary by geographic
region. The possible effects, as described in various public accounts, could include changes in rainfall patterns, water shortages,
changing storm patternsand intensities, and changing temperaturel evel sthat could adversely impact our costsand businessoperations
and the supply and demand for | eaf tobacco. Our operationsalso rely on dependabl e and efficient transportation services. A disruption
in transportation services, as aresult of climate change or otherwise, may also significantly impact our results of operations.

Further, the timing and unpredictability of customer orders and shipments may require us to keep tobacco in inventory and
may also result in variationsin quarterly and annual financial results. \We base sal es recognition on the passage of ownership. Since
individual shipments may represent significant amounts of revenue, our quarterly and annual financial results may vary significantly
depending on the timing of needs and shipping instructions of our customers and the availability of transportation services. These
fluctuations result in varying volumes and sales in given periods, which also reduce the comparability of financial results.

Major shifts in customer requirements for tobacco supply may significantly affect our operating results.

If our customers significantly alter their requirements for tobacco volumes from certain regions, we may have to change
our production facilities and alter our fixed asset base in certain origins. Permanent or long-term reduction in demand for tobacco
from origins where we have operations may trigger restructuring and impairment charges. We may also need to make significant
capital investmentsin other regions to develop the needed infrastructure to meet customer supply requirements.

Weather and other conditions can affect the marketability of our products.

Tobacco crops are subject to vagaries of weather and the environment that can, in some cases, change the quality or size of
the crops. If aweather event is particularly severe, such as a major drought or hurricane, the affected crop could be destroyed or
damaged to an extent that it would be less desirable to manufacturers, which would result in a reduction in revenues. If such an
event is also widespread, it could affect our ability to acquire the quantity of tobacco required by our customers. In addition, other
factors can affect the marketability of tobacco, including, among other things, the presence of excess residues of crop protection
agents or non-tobacco related materials. A significant event impacting the condition or quality of alarge amount of any of the crops
that we buy could make it difficult for usto sell these products or to fill customers' orders.

Our food ingredient business is subject to industry-specific risks which could adversely affect our operating results.

Our foodingredientsbusinessissubject to risks posed by food spoil age or food contaminati on; shifting consumer preferences,
federal, state, and local food processing regulations; product tampering; and product liability claims. If one or more of these risks
wereto materialize, our revenuesand operating results could be adversely affected, and our Company’ sreputation might be damaged.

Regulatory and Governmental Factors

Government efforts to regulate the production and consumption of tobacco products could have a significant impact on the businesses
of our customers, which would, in turn, affect our results of operations.

Nationally, the U.S. federal government and certain state and local governments have taken or proposed actions that may
have the effect of reducing U.S. consumption of tobacco products and indirectly reducing demand for our products and services.
These activities have included:

»  restrictions on the use of tobacco productsin public places and places of employment,

» legidationauthorizingtheU.S. Food and Drug Administration (the“ FDA") to regul ate the manufacturing and marketing
of al tobacco products,

» increasesin the federal, state, and local excise taxes on cigarettes and other tobacco products, and
e thepolicy of the U.S. government to link certain federal grants to the enforcement of state laws restricting the sale of
tobacco products.

Numerous other legislative and regul atory anti-smoking measures have been proposed at the federal, state, and local levels.
About 5% of cigarettes manufactured worldwide are consumed in the United States.

Globally, anumber of foreign governments and non-government organizations al so have taken or proposed steps to restrict
or prohibit tobacco product advertising and promotion, to increase taxes on tobacco products, to indirectly limit the use of certain
types of tobacco, and to discourage tobacco product consumption. A number of such measures, including plain packaging, are
included in the Framework Convention on Tobacco Control (“FCTC"), which was negotiated and promoted globally under the
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auspices of the World Health Organization (“WHO"). We cannot predict the extent or speed at which the efforts of governments or
non-governmental agenciesto reducetobacco consumption might affect thebusinessof our primary customers. However, asignificant
decrease in worldwide tobacco consumption brought about by existing or future governmental laws and regulations would reduce
demand for tobacco products and services and could have a material adverse effect on our results of operations.

Government actions can have a significant effect on the sourcing of tobacco. If some of the current efforts are successful, we could
have difficulty obtaining sufficient tobacco to meet our customers’ requirements, which could have an adverse effect on our
performance and results of operations.

The WHO, through the FCTC, has created a formal study group to identify and assess crop diversification initiatives and
alternativesto growing leaf tobacco in countries whose economies depend upon tobacco production. The study group began itswork
in February 2007. If certain countries were to partner with the FCTC study group and seek to eliminate or significantly reduce leaf
tobacco production, we could encounter difficulty in sourcing leaf tobaccotofill customer requirements, which could have an adverse
effect on our results of operations.

Certain recommendations by the WHO, through the FCTC, may cause shiftsin customer usage of certain styles of tobacco.
As seen in countries like Canada and Brazil and in the European Union, efforts have been taken to eliminate ingredients from the
manufacturing process for tobacco products. Recently, the FCTC and the FDA have discussed formulating a nicotine strategy
(limitations on the level of nicotine allowed in tobacco and tobacco smoke). Such decisions could cause a change in requirements
for certain styles of tobacco in particular countries. Shifts in customer demand from one type of tobacco to another could create
sourcing challenges as requirements move from one origin to another.

Trade proposals currently under consideration include provisions that could effectively alow governments to regulate
tobacco productsdifferently than other products. These*“ carveouts’, as negotiated in the TransPacific Partnership Agreement, could
negatively impact the industry and reduce requirements for leaf tobacco.

In addition, continued government and public emphasis on environmental issues, including climate change, conservation,
and natural resource management, could result in new or more stringent forms of regulatory oversight of industry activities, which
may lead to increased levels of expendituresfor environmental controls, land use restrictions affecting us or our suppliers, and other
conditions that could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, and results of operations. For example,
certain aspects of our business generate carbon emissions. Regulatory restrictions on greenhouse gas emissions have been proposed.
Thesemay includelimitationson such emissions, taxesor emission allowancefeeson such emissions, variousrestrictionsonindustrial
operations, and other measures that could affect land-use decisions, the cost of agricultural production, and the cost and means of
processing and transporting our products. These actions could adversely affect our business, financial condition, and results of
operations.

Because we conduct a significant portion of our operations internationally, political and economic uncertainties in certain countries
could have an adverse effect on our performance and results of operations.

Our international operations are subject to uncertainties and risks relating to the political stability of certain foreign
governments, principally in developing countries and emerging markets, and also to the effects of changesin the trade policies and
economic regulations of foreign governments. These uncertainties and risks, which include undevel oped or antiquated commercial
law, the expropriation, indigenization, or nationalization of assets, and the authority to revoke or refuse to renew business licenses
and work permits, may adversely impact our ability to effectively manage our operations in those countries. We have substantial
capital investments in South America and Africa, and the performance of our operations in those regions can materially affect our
earnings. If the palitical situation in any of the countries where we conduct business were to deteriorate significantly, our ability to
recover assets located there could beimpaired. To the extent that we do not replace any lost volumes of tobacco with tobacco from
other sources, or weincur increased costs related to such replacement, our financial condition or results of operations, or both, would
suffer.

Changes in tax laws in the countries where we do business may adversely affect our results of operations.

Through our subsidiaries, we are subject to the tax laws of many jurisdictions. Changesin tax laws or the interpretation of
tax laws can affect our earnings, as can the resol ution of various pending and contested tax issues. In most jurisdictions, weregularly
have audits and examinations by the designated tax authorities, and additional tax assessments are common. We believe that we
comply with applicable tax laws in the jurisdictions where we operate, and we vigorously contest all significant tax assessments
where we believe we are in compliance with the tax laws.
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Financial Factors
Failure of our customers or suppliers to repay extensions of credit could materially impact our results of operations.

We extend credit to both suppliers and customers. A significant bad debt provision related to amounts due could adversely
affect our results of operations. In addition, crop advances to farmers are generally secured by the farmers’ agreement to deliver
green tobacco. In the event of crop failure, delivery failure, or permanent reductionsin crop sizes, full recovery of advances may
never be realized, or otherwise could be delayed until future crops are delivered. See Notes 1 and 13 to the consolidated financial
statementsin Item 8 for more information on these extensions of credit.

Fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates may affect our results of operations.

We account for most of our tobacco operations using the U.S. dollar as the functional currency. The international tobacco
trade generally is conducted in U.S. dollars, and we finance most of our tobacco operationsin U.S. dollars. Although this generally
limits foreign exchange risk to the economic risk that is related to leaf purchase and production costs, overhead, and income taxes
in the source country, significant currency movements could materially impact our results of operations. Changesin exchange rates
can make a particular crop more or less expensive in U.S. dollar terms. If a particular crop is viewed as expensive in U.S. dollar
terms, it may be less attractive in the world market. This could negatively affect the profitability of that crop and our results of
operations. In certain tobacco markets that are primarily domestic, thelocal currency isthe functional currency. Examples of these
markets are Hungary, Poland, and the Philippines. Similarly, thelocal currency isthe functional currency in other markets, such as
Western Europe, where export sales have been denominated primarily in local currencies. In these markets, reported earnings are
affected by the translation of the local currency into the U.S. dollar. See Item 7A, “Qualitative and Quantitative Disclosure About
Market Risk” for additional discussion related to foreign currency exchange risk.

Our purchases of tobacco are generally madein local currency, and we also provide farmer advances that are denominated
inthelocal currency. We account for currency remeasurement gains or losses on those advances as period costs, and they are usually
accompanied by offsetting increases or decreases in the purchase cost of tobacco, which is priced in thelocal currency. The effect
of differencesin the cost of tobacco is generally not realized in our earnings until the tobacco is sold, which often occursin aquarter
or fiscal year subseguent to the recognition of the related remeasurement gains or losses. The differencein timing could affect our
profitability in agiven quarter or fiscal year.

We have used currency hedging strategiesto reduce our foreign currency exchange rate risksin some markets. In addition,
where we source tobacco in countries with illiquid or nonexistent forward foreign exchange markets, we often manage our foreign
exchange risk by matching funding for inventory purchases with the currency of sale and by minimizing our net investment in these
countries. To the extent that we have net monetary assets or liabilitiesin local currency, and those balances are not hedged, we may
have currency remeasurement gains or losses that will affect our results of operations.

Changes in interest rates may affect our results of operations.

Wegenerally use both fixed and floating interest rate debt to finance our operations. Changesin market interest rates expose
usto changesin cash flowsfor floating rateinstrumentsand to changesin fair valuefor fixed-rateinstruments. Wenormally maintain
aproportion of our debt in both variable and fixed interest rates to manage this exposure, and from time to time we may enter hedge
agreements to swap theinterest rates. In addition, our customers may pay market rates of interest for inventory purchased on order,
which could mitigate a portion of the floating interest rate exposure on short-term borrowings. To the extent we are unable to match
these interest rates, adecreasein interest rates could increase our net financing costs. We also periodically have large cash balances
and may receive deposits from customers, both of which we useto fund seasonal purchases of tobacco, reducing our financing needs.
Decreases in short-term interest rates could reduce the income we derive from those investments. Changes in interest rates also
affect expense related to our defined benefit pension plan, as described below.
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Low investment performance by our defined benefit pension plan assets and changes in pension plan valuation assumptions may
increase our pension expense and may require us to fund a larger portion of our pension obligations, thus diverting funds from other
potential uses.

We sponsor domestic defined benefit pension plans that cover certain eligible employees. Our results of operations may
bepositively or negatively affected by theamount of expensewerecord for theseplans. U.S. generally accepted accounting principles
(“GAAP”) require that we calculate expense for the plans using actuarial valuations. These valuations reflect assumptions about
financial market and other economic conditionsthat may change based on changesin key economicindicators. The most significant
year-end assumptions we used to estimate pension expense for fiscal year 2016 were the discount rate, the expected long-term rate
of return on plan assets, and the mortality rates. In addition, we are required to make an annual measurement of plan assets and
liabilities, which may result in asignificant change to shareholders’ equity through areduction or increase to the “ Pension and other
postretirement benefits plan” component of Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss. At the end of fiscal year 2016, the projected
benefit obligation of our qualified U.S. pension plan was $222 million and plan assetswere $197 million. For adiscussion regarding
how our financial statements can be affected by pension plan valuation assumptions, see “ Critical Accounting Estimates — Pension
and Other Postretirement Benefit Plans’ in* Management’ sDiscussion and Analysisof Financial Conditionand Resultsof Operations’
inltem7andin Note 10totheconsolidated financial statementsin Item 8. Although GA A Pexpenseand pension funding contributions
arenot directly related, key economic factorsthat affect GA APexpense can also affect theamount of cashwearerequiredto contribute
to our pension plans under requirements of the Employee Retirement Income Security Act (“ERISA”). Failure to achieve expected
returns on plan assets could also result in an increase to the amount of cash we would be required to contribute to our pension plans.
In order to maintain or improve the funded status of our plans, we may al so choose to contribute more cash to our plansthan required
by ERISA regulations.

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments

None
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Item 2. Properties
We own the following significant properties (greater than 500,000 square feet):

Location Principal Use Building Area
(Square Feet)

Flue-Cured and Burley Leaf Tobacco Operations:
North America:
United States
Nash County, NOrth Carolina...........cceevvererierieserereneeseeeeeee s see e Factory and storages 1,323,000

Other Regions:

Brazil

SANEALCTUZ ...t sr e e e ne s Factory and storages 2,386,000
Malawi

[T o] 0o 1TSS Factory and storages 942,000
Mozambique

LIS TP RPR Factory and storages 770,000
Philippines

WX oo o - U oo o Factory and storages 770,000
Tanzania

1Y/ Kol o [0 o FOUR PP U TP UPTPRUPRURO Factory and storages 895,000
Zimbabwe

R £ T Factory and storages 1,445,000

Other Tobacco Operations:
United States
Lancaster, PENNSYIVANIA.........cccooiiiiriiiriee et Factory and storages 793,000

@D Owned by an unconsolidated subsidiary.
We lease headquarters office space of about 50,000 square feet at 9201 Forest Hill Avenue in Richmond, Virginia, which
we believe is adequate for our current needs.

Our businessinvolves, among other things, storing and processing green tobacco and storing processed tobacco. Weoperate
processing facilities in major tobacco growing areas. In addition, we require tobacco storage facilities that are in close proximity to
the processing facilities. We own most of the tobacco storage facilities, but we lease additional space as needs arise, and expenses
related to such leases are not material. We believe that the properties currently utilized in our tobacco operations are maintained in
good operating condition and are suitable and adequate for our purposes at our current volumes.

In addition to our significant propertieslisted above, we own other processing facilitiesin thefollowing countries: Germany,
Guatemala, Hungary, Italy, the Netherlands, Poland, and the United States. In addition, we have an ownership interest in a processing
plant in Mexico and have access to processing facilities in other areas, such as India, the People’'s Republic of China, and South
Africa. Socotab L.L.C., anoriental tobacco joint venturein which we own anoncontrolling interest, owns tobacco processing plants
in Turkey, Macedonia, and Bulgaria.

Except for the Lancaster, Pennsylvaniafacility, the facilities described above are engaged primarily in processing tobaccos
used by manufacturersin the production of cigarettes. The Lancaster facility, aswell asfacilitiesin Brazil, the Dominican Republic,
Indonesia, and Paraguay, process tobaccos used in making cigar, pipe, and smokeless products, as well as components of certain
“roll-your-own” products.

We completed the construction of a 120,000 square-foot processing facility for our new fruit and vegetable ingredients
business and began operationsin that facility during fiscal year 2016. The facility islocated in Nash County, North Carolina.
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Item 3. Legal Proceedings

Some of our subsidiariesareinvolvedinlitigation or legal mattersincidental to their businessactivities. Whilethe outcome
of these matters cannot be predicted with certainty, we are vigorously defending the matters and do not currently expect that any of
them will have a material adverse effect on our business or financia position. However, should one or more of these matters be
resolved in amanner adverse to our current expectation, the effect on our results of operationsfor aparticular fiscal reporting period

could be material.
Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures

Not applicable.
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PART 11
Item 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities
Common Equity

Our common stock is traded on the New York Stock Exchange (“NY SE”) under the symbol “UVV.” The following table
setsforth the high and low sales prices per share of the common stock on the NY SE Composite Tape, based upon published financial
sources, and the dividends declared on each share of common stock for the quarter indicated.

First Quarter Second Quarter  Third Quarter Fourth Quarter

Fiscal Year Ended March 31, 2016
Cash dividends deClared .............cceoeurieureinirireeriree s $ 052 $ 052 $ 053 $ 0.53
Market price range:
L TR 57.76 58.41 57.72 57.27
LLOW 1.ttt sttt 46.80 46.98 49.70 51.49
Fiscal Year Ended March 31, 2015
Cash dividendS AECIArEd .............ccueuriiemiinirireieeisie e $ 051 $ 051 $ 052 $ 0.52
Market price range:
HIGN. bbbttt 56.82 56.35 45.63 48.10
LLOW <.ttt 52.16 44.39 38.53 39.27

Our current dividend policy anticipates the payment of quarterly dividends in the future. However, the declaration and
payment of dividendsto holders of common stock isat the discretion of the Board of Directorsand will be dependent upon our future
earnings, financial condition, and capital requirements. Under the terms of our Series B 6.75% Convertible Perpetual Preferred
Stock (the “Preferred Stock™), we may not declare or pay dividends on our common stock unless dividends on the Preferred Stock
for the four most recent consecutive dividend periods have been declared and paid. The Preferred Stock contains provisions that
prohibit the payment of cash dividends if certain income and shareholders’ equity levels are not met. Under certain of our credit
facilities, we must meet financial covenants relating to minimum tangible net worth and maximum levels of debt. If wewerenotin
compliance with them, these financial covenants could restrict our ability to pay dividends. We were in compliance with all such
covenants at March 31, 2016. At May 20, 2016, there were 1,172 holders of record of our common stock. See Notes 5 and 11 to
the consolidated financial statementsin Item 8 for more information on debt covenants and equity securities.

Purchases of Equity Securities

Asindicated in the following table, we did not repurchase shares of our common stock or our Series B 6.75% Convertible
Perpetual Preferred Stock during the three-month period ended March 31, 2016:

Series B 6.75% Convertible Perpetual

Common Stock Preferred Stock
Total Number Total Number
of Shares of Shares Dollar Value of
Repurchased Repurchased Shares that
as Part of as Part of May Yet Be
Publicly Publicly Purchased
Total Number A_veragf_e Announced Total Number A_veragg Announced Under the
of Shares Price Paid Plans or of Shares Price Paid Plans or Plans or
Period @ Repurchased  Per Share®  Programs®  Repurchased  Per Share® Programs © Programs @
January 1-31, 2016.................. — 3 — — — — — $ 100,000,000
February 1-29, 2016................. — — — — — — 100,000,000
March 1-31, 2016..................... — — — — — — 100,000,000

TOta.c.oceecee e — $ — — — $ — — $ 100,000,000

Repurchases are based on the date the shares were traded. This presentation differs from the consolidated statement of cash flows, where the cost of share
repurchases is based on the date the transactions were settled.

Amounts listed for average price paid per share include broker commissions paid in the transactions.

A stock repurchase plan, which was authorized by our Board of Directors, became effective and was publicly announced on November 5, 2015. This stock
repurchase plan authorizes the purchase of up to $100 million in common and/or preferred stock in open market or privately negotiated transactions, subject to
market conditions and other factors, and will expire on the earlier of November 15, 2017, or when we have exhausted the funds authorized for the program.
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Item 6. Selected Financial Data

Fiscal Year Ended March 31,

2016 2015 2014 2013 2012

(in thousands, except share and per share data, ratios, and
number of shareholders)

Summary of Operations

Sales and other Operating reVENUES............coveveveeeeeveeeeeeeree s $ 2,120,373 $ 2,271,801 $ 2,542,115 $ 2,461,699 $ 2,446,877
OPErating INCOME.......c.ciuiriuriirirereiiieieseieie et se e s se st sesesesesesans $ 181647 $ 167874 $ 246151 $ 223,009 $ 180,304
Segment operating income O e $ 186068 $ 167225 $ 175175 $ 232,757 $ 233,548
NEL INCOME........eueeiririete et esnenenes $ 118148 $ 120461 $ 155155 $ 140919 $ 100,819
Net income attributable to Universal Corporation @ $ 109016 $ 114608 $ 149009 $ 132,750 $ 92,057
Earnings available to Universal Corporation common shareholders................ $ 94268 $ 99748 $ 134159 $ 117900 $ 77,207
Return on beginning common shareholders’ equity ...........cccocoeevevveeeeiieeeeiienne, 8.2% 8.6% 12.8% 12.1% 7.9%

Earnings per share attributable to
Universal Corporation common shareholders:

BASIC......oiuiciiei s $ 416 % 433 % 577  $ 505 $ 3.32
DIIULE. ...t bbb $ 392 % 406 % 525 $ 466 % 3.25

CUITENE THIO ... ..ottt 6.65 5.96 3.66 277 421
TOBl BSSELS......cocviicieiieieieie ettt bbbt bbb $ 2,232,797 $ 2188449 $ 2,264,893 $ 2,287,177 $ 2,244,733
LONG-TEMM OEBL. ..ottt $ 370000 $ 370000 $ 240000 $ 181,250 $ 392,500
LT T qTo o= =TT $ 1392276 $ 1,329,770 $ 1,200,023 $ 1,094,764 $ 1,250,200
Total Universal Corporation shareholders' equity...........c.cceevveereveeeenceeeererennns $ 1414222 $ 1,362,725 $ 1378230 $ 1,258571 $ 1,183451
General

Ratio of earnings to fixed Charges..............ccoeveveeeieeeeeiceeecceeeeceeeeeeeee e 10.22 8.46 10.73 8.87 7.53
Ratio of earnings to combined fixed charges and preference dividends........... 4.59 4.05 5.49 4.69 4.07
Number of common shareholders............ccoovvivirivinininss s 1,182 1,225 1,295 1,354 1,408

BBSIC..ovecec ettt 22,683,290 23,035,920 23,238,978 23,354,793 23,227,884
DITULEA. ...ttt bbb 27,825,491 28,221,264 28,392,033 28,478,058 28,339,307
Dividends per share of convertible perpetua preferred stock (annud)............ $ 6750 $ 6750 $ 6750 $ 6750 $ 67.50
Dividends per share of common stock (annual) ............cceeeeeveveereceeeeseceeeenenns $ 210 $ 206 $ 202 $ 198 % 1.94
Book value per COMMON Shar€.............ccoevvieeeiieeeeeieeeeeieeeeseeeees e en s enenes $ 5294 $ 5095 $ 5019 $ 479 $ 41.73
@

The Company eval uatesthe performance of its segments based on operating income after allocated overhead expenses (excluding significant chargesor credits),
cplus equity in the pretax earnings of unconsolidated affiliates. See Note 14 to the consolidated financial statementsin Item 8 of thisAnnual Report.

@ We hold less than a 100% financial interest in certain consolidated subsidiaries, and a portion of net income is attributable to the noncontrolling interests in
those subsidiaries.
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Thecalculations of theratio of earningsto fixed charges and theratio of earningsto combined fixed chargesand preference
dividends are shown in Exhibit 12. Fixed charges primarily represent interest expense we incurred during the designated fiscal
year, and preference dividends represent the pre-tax equivalent of dividends on preferred stock.

Significant items included in the operating results in the above table are as follows:

Fiscal Year 2016 —a $3.4 million pretax gain arising from the acquisition of ajoint venture partner's 50% ownership
interest in atobacco processing entity in Guatemala. The transaction increased our ownership interest in the entity to
100%, requiring us to consolidate the financial statements of the entity and to remeasure our original 50% ownership
interest to fair value, resulting in the gain. In addition, we recorded restructuring and impairment costs of $2.4 million
related to adecisionto significantly scaleback our operationsin Zambia. Thenet effect of the gain and therestructuring
and impairment costs increased pretax income by $1 million and net income by $0.7 million, or $0.02 per diluted
share.

Fiscal Year 2015—a$12.7 million benefit to pretax earningsfrom thereversal of avaluation allowanceontheremaining
unused balance of the excise tax credits realized from the favorable outcome of litigation by our subsidiary in Brazil
infiscal year 2014. In addition, we recorded a consolidated income tax benefit of $8.0 million arising from the ability
of our subsidiary, Deltafina S.p.A. ("Deltafina"), to pay a significant portion of the European Commission fine and
related interest charges settled during thefirst quarter following the unsuccessful appeal of the case related to tobacco
buying practicesin Italy. Theeffect of thoseitemswas partially offset by restructuring costs of $4.9 million, primarily
related to downsizing certain functions at our operations in Brazil and the decision to suspend our operations in
Argentina. On acombined basis, the net effect of these itemsincreased pretax income by $7.8 million and net income
by $13.1 million, or $0.46 per diluted share.

Fiscal Year 2014 — an $81.6 million pretax gain resulting from the favorable outcome of litigation by our operating
subsidiary in Brazil related to previous years' excise tax credits. In addition to the gain, we recorded restructuring
costs of $6.7 million, primarily related to the closure of atobacco processing facility in Brazil and the consolidation
of these operations into our main processing facility there. The net effect of the gain and the restructuring costs
increased pretax income by $74.9 million and net income by $48.7 million, or $1.72 per diluted share.

Fiscal Year 2013 — $4.1 million in restructuring costs, primarily related to workforce reductionsin Africa. The effect
of these charges was a reduction in net income of $1.8 million, or $0.06 per diluted share.

Fiscal Year 2012 — a $49.1 million charge to accrue afine and accumulated interest imposed jointly on the Company
and Deltafina by the European Commission related to tobacco buying practices in Italy. The charge reflected a
September 2011 appeals court decision rejecting Deltafina's application to reinstate its immunity in the case. No
incometax benefit wasrecorded onthe non-deductiblefine portion of thecharge. In addition to that charge, werecorded
restructuring costsof $11.7 million, including approximately $8.6 million for empl oyee termination benefits, primarily
related to our operationsin the U.S. and South America, and $3.1 million for costs to exit a supplier arrangement in
Europe. Resultsfor the year also included again of $11.1 million on the sale of land and buildingsin Brazil that were
most recently used for storage activities and a $9.6 million gain on insurance settlement proceeds to replace factory
and equipment lost in afire at a plant in Europe. On a combined basis, the net effect of these items reduced pretax
income by $40.0 million and net income by $40.3 million, or $1.42 per diluted share.
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Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

The following discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operations is provided to enhance the understanding of,
and should be read in conjunction with, Part I, Item 1, “Business” and Item 8, ““Financial Statements and Supplementary Data.”
For information on risks and uncertainties related to our business that may make past performance not indicative of future results,
or cause actual results to differ materially from any forward-looking statements, see “General,”” and Part I, Item 1A, ““Risk Factors.”

OVERVIEW

We are the leading global leaf tobacco supplier. We derive most of our revenues from sales of processed tobacco to
manufacturers of tobacco products throughout the world and from fees and commissions for specific services. We hold a strategic
position in theworld |eaf markets where we work closely with both our customers and farmers to ensure that we deliver acompliant
product that meets our customers' needswhile promoting astrong supplier base. We adapt to meet changesin customer requirements
as well as broader changes in the leaf markets, while continuing to provide the stability of supply and high level of service that
distinguishes us in the marketplace. We believe that we have successfully met the needs of both our customers and suppliers while
adapting to changesin leaf markets. Consequently, we have delivered strong results to our shareholders. Over the last three fiscal
years, we have strengthened our balance sheet by repaying almost $60 million in debt, generated over $400 million in net cash flow
from operations, and returned over $230 million to our shareholders through a combination of dividends and share repurchases.

We have al so faced challenging market conditions over the last threefiscal years. Infiscal year 2014, crop production levels
increased, and marketsin Brazil werevolatile. Shipping volumesinthesecond half of that fiscal year exceeded thoseinthecomparable
period of the prior year. These increased volumes partially offset lower levels of carryover volumesin the first half of fiscal year
2014, weaker marginsin Brazil from thevolatile Brazilian |eaf markets, and negative foreign currency remeasurement and exchange
loss comparisons. Our higher working capital cash requirementsin fiscal year 2014 were a sharp contrast to the returns of working
capital seenintheprior fiscal year. Infiscal year 2014, purchases of larger crops, higher green leaf costsin Brazil, and investments
in production growth in Africa utilized much of the substantial levels of cash flow from fiscal year 2013.

Infiscal year 2015, declinesin some of our customers’' sales volumesin the U.S. and Western European markets, partialy
due to weak economic conditions, reduced demand for leaf tobacco. At the same time, crops sold in fiscal year 2015 were larger
than those sold in fiscal year 2014. Given fiscal year 2015's oversupplied market conditions, we were pleased with the results we
achieved. We ended the year with strong fourth quarter results, which helped to bring our segment operating earnings for the fiscal
year in line with our expectations. We al so realized higher margins, maintained our solid financial position, and returned over $90
million to our shareholders in dividends and share repurchases in fiscal year 2015. We believe that our performance that year
demonstrated our ability to execute well on our objective of delivering a compliant product in an efficient manner to our customers,
under challenging circumstances.

We achieved improved resultsin fiscal year 2016, after managing through a second year of oversupplied market conditions.
As anticipated, we ended the year with strong fourth quarter volumes, primarily driven by later timing of customer shipping orders
in Brazil and Asia, and the positive change in leaf supply arrangementsin our North America segment that we announced last year.
We also achieved modest growth in overall volumes for the full fiscal year and improved our margins, and our selling, general, and
administrative costs were lower. Our inventories continue to be well-managed, and uncommitted stocks have declined from last
year'slevel, inlinewith our target. In addition, we returned more than $60 million in dividendsto our shareholders during the fiscal
year, closed the year with higher cash balances, which will support upcoming seasonal working capital requirementsin fiscal year
2017, and preserved our solid financial position.

Aswe move into fiscal year 2017, global production estimates have continued to decline. Plantings have been reduced in
some origins where farmers received lower green leaf prices in fiscal year 2016, and El Nino weather patterns have negatively
impacted some crops, particularly in Brazil. Consequently, and due to aggressive green leaf market pricing, our crop purchaselevels
and salesvolumes, aswell asthird-party processing volumesfrom that origin, will belower infiscal year 2017. However, we expect
that Brazilian crop levels and our volumes will recover next season.

While we believe that total production levels have largely moved into balance with anticipated demand, imbalances in
certain leaf quality styles or types remain, and our customers' inventory composition and durations may also impact their near-term
demand requirements. We also believe that seasonality will continue to influence our quarterly results, with some carryover crop
deliveries expected in the first fiscal quarter of 2017. Although it is still early in the season, we currently anticipate that customer-
mandated shipment timing will continue to be weighted toward the second half of the year.

Although oversupplied markets during the past two fiscal years have been less than optimal, we are pleased with our solid
performance demonstrated throughout this period, particularly during fiscal year 2016. We remain excited about our prospects and
look forward to continuing our leadership role in the industry, as we work for and with our customers to improve efficienciesin our
markets and to provide a sustainable, compliant, and competitively priced product, allowing usto fulfill their needs and to continue
to provide value to our shareholders.
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RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Amounts described as net income and earnings per diluted share in the following discussion are attributable to Universal
Corporation and exclude earnings related to non-controlling interests in subsidiaries. The total for segment operating income
referred to in the discussion below is a non-GAAP financial measure. This measure is not a financial measure calculated inaccordance
with GAAP and should not be considered as a substitute for net income, operating income, cash flows from operating activities or
any other operating performance measure calculated in accordance with GAAP, and it may not be comparable to similarly titled
measures reported by other companies. We have provided a reconciliation of the total for segment operating income to consolidated
operating income in Note 14. "Operating Segments" to the consolidated financial statements in Item 8. We evaluate our segment
performance excluding certain significant charges or credits. We believe this measure, which excludes these items that we believe
are not indicative of our core operating results, provides investors with important information that is useful in understanding our
business results and trends.

Fiscal Year Ended March 31, 2016, Compared to the Fiscal Year Ended March 31, 2015

Net income for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2016, was $109.0 million, or $3.92 per diluted share, compared with last
year’s net income of $114.6 million, or $4.06 per diluted share. Those resultsincluded certain non-recurring items, detailed in Other
Itemsbel ow, whichincreased diluted earnings per shareby $0.02 and $0.46 for theyearsended March 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively.
Excluding those itemsin both years, net income for the fiscal year increased $6.8 million ($0.30 per diluted share) compared to the
same period last year. Segment operating income, which excludes those items, was $186.1 million for fiscal year 2016, an increase
of $18.8 million, or 11%, from the prior year. That improvement was primarily attributable to a reduction in selling, general, and
administrative costs, as well asimproved gross margins on this year’s modestly higher sales volumes. Revenues of $2.1 billion for
fiscal year 2016 declined 7% compared with the previousyear, driven mainly by lower green leaf costsand lower processing revenues,
partly mitigated by the increase in volumes.

Flue-cured and Burley Leaf Tobacco Operations
Other Regions

Operating income for the Other Regions segment for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2016, was $143.6 million, up 14%
compared to $125.8 million in the previous fiscal year. Better margins, fewer inventory write-downs, and lower selling, general,
and administrative expenses drove the earnings improvement. These positive factors outweighed lower margins in Europe and the
currency translation effects of a stronger U.S. dollar which negatively impacted results from that region. Strong volumes in most
regions were offset by declines in Africa on smaller crop sizes in some origins compared to the prior year.  Selling, general, and
administrative expenses for the segment were down significantly for the fiscal year, largely on reductions in local currency-
denominated expensesfrom deval uation of foreign currencies, mainly in South Americaand Africa, and lower incentive compensation
costs. Revenues for the segment were down about 12% to $1.5 hillion, driven mostly by lower average green leaf prices and the
modestly reduced volumes.

North America

Operating income for the North America segment for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2016, of $31.1 million was flat
compared with the previousyear. Earningsimprovementsfrom salesvolumeincreases, duein part to old crop salesin thefirst fiscal
quarter, and the previously announced change in business with Philip Morris International, Inc. in the United States from a toll
processing model to sales of processed tobacco, were offset by lower margins and lower earnings from Guatemala and Mexico. In
addition, processing volumes declined significantly compared with the prior year asaresult of that change in business, and aportion
of crop volumes sold under this new arrangement will carry over as shipmentsin fiscal year 2017. Fiscal year 2016 revenues for
the segment increased by 19% to $361.8 million compared to the prior fiscal year, on higher salesvolumes at lower green leaf prices,
aless favorable product mix, and lower processing revenues.

Other Tobacco Operations

For thefiscal year ended March 31, 2016, the Other Tobacco Operations segment operating incomeincreased by $1.0 million
to $11.3 million compared with the same period last year. Earnings were up significantly for the dark tobacco operations on higher
volumes, better margins, and lower selling, general, and administrative costs. That improvement was partly offset by lower results
from the oriental joint venture as benefits from improved margins and lower overhead costs were outweighed by higher currency
remeasurement losses and tax accruals. The special services group incurred losses for the year, mainly from startup and production
testing costs for the new food ingredients business. Revenues for the segment were down by $7.4 million to $219.6 million for the
year ended March 31, 2016, as the higher volumes for the dark tobacco operations were more than offset by reduced volumes at
lower prices from the timing of shipments of oriental tobaccos into the United States compared to the previous year.

20



Other ltems

Cost of goods sold decreased by about 8% to $1.7 billion for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2016, primarily due to lower
green leaf prices and the effects of local-currency devaluations on factory costs compared with the previous year. Selling, general,
and administrative costs decreased by $23.5 million for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2016, compared with the prior year. The
decline for the fiscal year was mainly driven by reductions in local currency-denominated expenses from devaluation of foreign
currenciesin South Americaand Africa, and lower incentive compensation costs, reduced in part by higher net currency and exchange
lossesin Asiaas well as costs to settle challenges regarding property rights and valuation in South America.

Interest expense of $15.7 million for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2016, declined by about 8% compared to the prior
fiscal year. The reduction was mostly due to lower average short-term borrowings for seasonal working capital, offset in part by
higher effective interest rates on long-term bank |oans from fixed interest rate swaps entered on those loans in the fourth quarter of
fiscal 2015. The consolidated effectivetax ratefor the fiscal year ended March 31, 2016, was approximately 32% compared to about
24% for the prior year comparableperiod. Incometaxesfor fiscal year 2015 were reduced by anon-recurring benefit of $8.0 million
arising from the partial payment of the European Commission fine by our Italian subsidiary in June 2014. In both years, the decrease
from the 35% U.S. statutory rate was also influenced by lower net effective tax rates on income from certain foreign subsidiaries,
aswell asthe effects of changesin local currency exchange rates on deferred income tax balances.

Results for the year ended March 31, 2016, included restructuring and impairment costs of $2.4 million ($0.06 per diluted
share) and a gain of $3.4 million ($0.08 per diluted share) on remeasuring the Company’s interest in a tobacco processing joint
venture to fair value upon acquiring our partner’s 50% ownership in the third fiscal quarter. Results for the year ended March 31,
2015, included an income tax benefit of $8.0 million ($0.28 per diluted share) arising from a subsidiary’s payment of a portion of a
fine, restructuring costs of $4.9 million ($0.11 per diluted share), and again of $12.7 million ($0.29 per diluted share), from updated
projections related to the favorable outcome in fiscal year 2014 of litigation in Brazil regarding previous years excise tax credits.

Fiscal Year Ended March 31, 2015, Compared to the Fiscal Year Ended March 31, 2014

Net income for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2015, was $114.6 million, or $4.06 per diluted share, compared with fiscal
year 2014’s net income of $149.0 million, or $5.25 per diluted share. Fiscal year 2014's results included a gain of $81.6 million
before tax ($53.1 million after tax, or $1.87 per diluted share), from the favorable outcome of litigation in Brazil related to previous
years excise tax credits. Results for fiscal year 2015 included a further gain related to those tax credits, of $12.7 million before tax
(%$0.29 per diluted share) recorded in thefourth fiscal quarter from updated projectionsof the utilization of the creditsbeforeexpiration.
Fiscal year 2015 results also included an income tax benefit of $8.0 million ($0.28 per diluted share) arising from a subsidiary’s
payment of a portion of afine following the resolution of a court case. Pretax restructuring costs of $4.9 million ($0.11 per diluted
share) and $6.7 million ($0.15 per diluted share) were aso incurred for fiscal years 2015 and 2014, respectively. Excluding those
itemsin both years, net income for fiscal year 2015 increased $1.2 million ($0.07 per diluted share) compared to the same period of
fiscal year 2014. Segment operating income, which excludesthose items, was $167.2 million for fiscal year 2015, adecrease of $8.0
million fromfiscal year 2014. That reduction was primarily attributableto fiscal year 2015'slower salesvolumes, partially mitigated
by areduction in selling, general, and administrative costs. Revenues of $2.3 billion for fiscal year 2015 declined 11% compared
with the fiscal year 2014, driven mainly by those lower overall volumes and modestly lower green leaf costs.

Flue-cured and Burley Leaf Tobacco Operations
Other Regions

Operating income for the Other Regions segment for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2015, was $125.8 million, down 6%
compared to $133.4 millionin thefiscal year ended March 31, 2014. The decrease was attributable mainly to reduced sales volumes
in al regions along with inventory writedowns, primarily in Africa and South America, reflecting fiscal year 2015’s oversupply
market conditions. The impact of those factors was somewhat mitigated by improved gross margins, particularly in Brazil, where
volatile markets increased green leaf costsin fiscal year 2014, as well as benefits from lower selling, general and administrative
costs. Resultsfor Europewerealso negatively influenced by currency trand ation effectsfrom astronger U.S. dollar. Selling, general,
and administrative expenses for the segment declined for fiscal year 2015, mostly from lower currency remeasurement and exchange
losses in the Philippines and Brazil, lower provisions for supplier advances, and positive comparisons of value-added tax valuation
allowances, partly offset by higher customer claims. Revenues for the segment were down about 10% to $1.7 billion, on reduced
volumes and lower average green leaf prices.

North America

Operating income for the North America segment for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2015 was $31.1 million, up $7.8
million compared with the fiscal year ended March 31, 2014, on increased third party processing business and amorefavorable sales
mix, despite lower overall sales volumes. Revenues for the segment for fiscal year 2015 decreased by 13% to $305.0 million on
reduced sales volumes and lower green leaf prices. Selling, general, and administrative costs for this segment were relatively flat
for fiscal year 2015.
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Other Tobacco Operations

For thefiscal year ended March 31, 2015, the Other Tobacco Operations segment operating income was down $8.2 million
to $10.3 million compared with the same period of fiscal year 2014. Resultsfor the dark tobacco operations contributed significantly
tothedecline, aslower sales volumes, in part due to shipment timing, were partially mitigated by favorable currency remeasurement
comparisons, mainly in Indonesia. Results for the special services group also contributed to the decline, reflecting startup costs for
the new food ingredients business. However, results from the oriental joint venture improved for fiscal year 2015 despite sales
volumedeclinesinfluenced by shipment timing comparisons. Theimpact fromthevolumedeclineswasmorethan offset by favorable
variances from fiscal year 2014's currency remeasurement losses and lower selling, general and administrative costs. Revenuesfor
the segment were down by $34.3 million to $227.0 million for the year ended March 31, 2015, compared to the year ended March
31, 2014, primarily attributableto the lower volumesfor the dark tobacco operations, aswell aslower overall volumes and thetiming
of shipments of oriental tobaccos into the United States.

Other ltems

Cost of goods sold decreased by about 12% to $1.9 hillion for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2015, consistent with lower
overall salesvolumesand lower greenleaf prices compared with fiscal year 2014. Selling, general, and admini strative costs decreased
by $11.8 million for fiscal year 2015, compared with fiscal year 2014. The decline for fiscal year 2015 was primarily related to
lower currency remeasurement and exchange costs, provisionsfor suppliers, and value-added tax allowances, partly offset by higher
customer claims.

Interest expense of $17.1 million for fiscal year 2015 declined by about 16%, compared to fiscal year 2014. The reduction
was mostly due to lower average interest rates during the period, offset in part by slightly higher average debt balances. The
consolidated effective income tax rates on pretax earnings were approximately 24% and 33% for the fiscal years ended March 31,
2015 and 2014, respectively. Incometaxesfor fiscal year 2015 were reduced by anon-recurring benefit of $8.0 million arising from
the partial payment of the European Commission fine by our Italian subsidiary in June 2014. Excluding that item, the consolidated
effectivetax ratefor fiscal 2015 wasabout 29%. Theratesfor both years, excluding adjustments, were bel ow the 35% federal statutory
rate mainly because of the effect of changesin exchange rates on deferred income tax assets and liabilities, aswell aslower effective
rates on dividend income from certain foreign subsidiaries.

On December 30, 2014, the Company executed a new senior unsecured credit facility agreement with a group of banks,
which consolidated and extended maturities of its previous short-term revolving credit and long-term borrowing facilities. The new
agreement includes a $430 million five-year revolving credit facility, a $150 million five-year term loan, and a $220 million seven-
year term loan. The revolving credit facility contains terms and conditions that are substantially similar to the Company’s previous
revolving credit facility. The term loans, which were fully funded at closing, require no amortization and are prepayable without
penalty prior to maturity. The facilities include a customary accordion feature allowing for additional borrowings of up to $100
million under certain conditions. Currently, borrowings under the revolving credit agreement bear interest at variable rates based
on LIBOR plus amargin of 1.50% to 1.75%. The Company subsequently entered interest rate swap agreements to fix the variable
interest component of the five- and seven-year term loans to 1.44% and 1.73%, respectively. The effective rates on the five- and
seven-year term |oans were 2.94% and 3.48%, respectively, as of May 18, 2015.

Accounting Pronouncements

See "Accounting Pronouncements' in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statementsin Item 8 of thisAnnual Report for a
discussion of recent accounting pronouncements issued by the Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") that will become
effective and be adopted by the Company in future reporting periods.
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LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES
Overview

Our working capital requirements in fiscal year 2016 were higher than those in fiscal year 2015 in part due to increased
working capital needsin our North America segment. Similar to last year, our shipments were heavily weighted to the second half
of the fiscal year, with even more shipmentsin the fourth quarter this fiscal year, which also extended the duration of our working
capital needs in some origins. In fiscal year 2016, we generated $183.6 million in net cash flows to fund our operating activities,
and our liquidity was sufficient to meet our needs. We also continued our conservative financial policies, maintained our discipline
on using our free cash flow, and returned funds to shareholders.

Our liquidity and capital resource requirements are predominately short-term in nature and primarily relate to working
capital reguired for tobacco crop purchases. Working capital needs are seasonal within each geographic region. The geographic
dispersion and the timing of working capital needs permit us to predict our general level of cash requirements, although crop sizes,
prices paid to farmers, shipment and delivery timing, and currency fluctuations affect requirements each year. Peak working capital
requirements are generally reached during the first and second fiscal quarters. Each geographic area follows a cycle of buying,
processing, and shipping tobacco, and in many regions we also provide agricultural materials to farmers during the growing season.
Thetiming of the elements of each cycleisinfluenced by such factors aslocal weather conditions and individual customer shipping
reguirements, which may changethelevel or theduration of crop financing. Despite apredominance of short-term needs, wemaintain
aportion of our total debt aslong-term to reduce liquidity risk. We also periodically have large cash balances that we utilize to meet
our working capital requirements.

We believe that our financial resources are adequate to support our capital needs for at least the next twelve months. Our
seasonal borrowing requirements primarily relate to purchasing cropsin South America and Africa and can increase from March to
September by more than $300 million. The funding required can vary significantly depending upon such factors as crop sizes, the
priceof leaf, therelative strength of the U.S. dollar, and thetiming of shipmentsand customer payments. Wedeal with thisuncertainty
by maintaining substantial credit lines and cash balances. In addition to our operating requirements for working capital, we expect
to spend around $45 to $50 million during fiscal year 2017 for capital expendituresto maintain our facilitiesand invest in opportunities
to grow and improve our businesses. We also expect to provide about $7 million in funding to our pension plans. We have no long-
term debt maturing beforefiscal year 2020. After balancing our capital structure, any excess cash flow from operationsafter dividends
and capital expenditures will be available to fund expansion, purchase our stock, or otherwise enhance shareholder value.

Cash Flow

Our operations generated about $183.6 million in operating cash flowsin fiscal year 2016. That amount was about $42.9
million lower than the $226.5 million we generated during the same period |l ast fiscal year, in part dueto carryover shipmentsdelayed
into fiscal year 2017 and our change in business with Philip Morris International, Inc. in the United States from a toll processing
model to sales of processed tobacco that we purchase. This change in business impacts the timing of earnings recognition, as sales
under the new model are recorded when the product ships. During the fiscal year ended March 31, 2016, we increased our cash
balancesby $70.7 million, spent $47.2 million on capital projects, and returned $62.1 million to shareholdersin theform of dividends.
At March 31, 2016, cash balances totaled $319.4 million.

Working Capital

Working capital at March 31, 2016, was about $1.4 billion, up $62.5 million from last year's level of about $1.3 billion,
largely due to our change in business with a customer in the United States that increased the amount of tobacco that we purchase
there. The $70.7 million increase in cash and cash equivalents was partialy offset by fewer advances to suppliers, down $13.0
million, on our previously announced scaling down of our operations in Zambia and smaller anticipated 2016 crops. We have no
principal payments due on our long-term debt over the next twelve months.

Tobacco inventories of $637.1 million at March 31, 2016, were flat compared to inventory levels at the end of the prior
fiscal year. We usually finance inventory with a mix of cash, notes payable, and customer deposits, depending on our borrowing
capabilities, interest rates, and exchange rates, as well as those of our customers. We generally do not purchase material quantities
of tobacco on a specul ative basis. However, when we contract directly with farmers, we are often obligated to buy all stalk positions,
which may contain less marketable leaf styles. Our uncommitted tobacco inventories decreased by approximately $30.3 million to
$120.8 million, or about 19% of tobacco inventory, at March 31, 2016. Uncommitted inventories at March 31, 2015, were $151.1
million, which represented 24% of tobacco inventory. Thelevel of these uncommitted inventoriesisinfluenced by timing of farmer
deliveries of new crops, aswell asthetiming of customer deliveries.

Share Repurchase Activity

Our Board of Directorsapproved our current sharerepurchaseprogramin November 2015. Theprogram expiresinNovember
2017, authorizes the purchase of up to $100 million of our common and preferred stock, and replaced a $100 million program that
had been approved in November 2013. Under the current authorization, we may purchase shares from time to time on the open
market or in privately negotiated transactions at prices not exceeding prevailing market rates. In determining our level of common
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and preferred share repurchase activity, our intent is to use only cash available after meeting our anticipated capital investment,
dividend, and working capital requirements. Repurchases of shares under the repurchase program may vary based on management
discretion, as well as changesin cash flow generation and availability. During fiscal year 2016, we did not purchase any shares of
our common or preferred stock. At March 31, 2016, our available authorization under our current share repurchase program was
$100 million, and approximately 22.7 million common shares and 218,490 preferred shares were outstanding.

Capital Spending

Our capital expenditures are generally limited to those that add value, replace or maintain equipment, increase efficiency,
or position us for future growth. In deciding where to invest capital resources, we look for opportunities where we believe we can
earn an adequate return, leverage our assets and expertise, and enhance our farmer base. During fiscal years 2016 and 2015, we
invested $47.2 million and $58.4 million, respectively, in our property, plant, and equipment, inclusive of expenditures for the
construction of our new manufacturing facility for our food ingredients business. Depreciation expense was approximately $36.8
million and $35.4 million, respectively, in fiscal years 2016 and 2015. Generally, our routine capital spending is at alevel below
depreciation expensein order to maintain strong cash flow. However, from timeto time, we undertake projectsthat increase spending
beyond those limits when we identify opportunitiesto improve efficiencies, add value for our customers, and position ourselves for
future growth. We currently plan to spend approximately $45 to $50 million infiscal year 2017 on capital projects for maintenance
of our facilities and other investments to grow and improve our businesses.

Outstanding Debt and Other Financing Arrangements

We consider the sum of notes payable and overdrafts, long-term debt (including any current portion), and customer advances
and deposits, less cash, cash equival ents, and short-term investments on our balance sheet to be our net debt. We also consider our
net debt plus shareholders' equity to be our net capitalization. Net debt decreased by $78.1 million to $133.2 million during thefiscal
year ended March 31, 2016. The decrease primarily reflects higher cash balances and slightly lower debt levels. Net debt as a
percentage of net capitalization was approximately 9% at March 31, 2016, down from 13% at March 31, 2015, and it remains lower
than our target limit for peak borrowings of 30% to 40% of net capitalization.

Asof March 31, 2016, we had $430 millionavailableunder acommitted revolving credit facility that will maturein December
2019, and we, together with our consolidated affiliates, had approximately $372 million in uncommitted lines of credit, of which
approximately $306 million were unused and available to support seasonal working capital needs. The financial covenants under
our committed revolving credit facility require us to maintain certain levels of tangible net worth and observe restrictions on debt
levels. Asof March31, 2016, wewereincompliancewithall covenantsof our debt agreements. Weal so havean active, undenominated
universal shelf registration filed with the SEC in November 2014 that provides for future issuance of additional debt or equity
securities. We have no long-term debt maturing in fiscal year 2017.

Derivatives

From time to time, we use interest rate swap agreements to manage our exposure to changes in interest rates. Currently,
we have interest rate swap agreements that convert the variable benchmark LIBOR rate on our two outstanding term loans to fixed
rates. With the swap agreementsin place, the effectiveinterest rates on our $150 million five-year term loan and $220 million seven-
year term loan were 2.94% and 3.48%, respectively, as of March 31, 2016. These agreements were entered into to eliminate the
variability of cash flowsin the interest payments on our variable rate five- and seven-year term loans and are accounted for as cash
flow hedges. Under the swap agreements, we receive variable rate interest and pay fixed rate interest. At March 31, 2016, the fair
value of our open interest rate hedge swaps was a net liability of approximately $11 million.

We also enter forward contracts from time to time to hedge certain foreign currency exposures, primarily related to forecast
purchases of tobacco and related processing costs in Brazil, aswell as our net monetary asset exposure in local currency there. We
generally account for our hedges of forecast tobacco purchases as cash flow hedges. At March 31, 2016, the fair value of those open
contracts was a net asset of approximately $0.5 million. We also had other forward contracts outstanding that were not designated
as hedges, and the fair value of those contracts was a net asset of approximately $0.3 million at March 31, 2016. For additional
information, see Note 8 to the consolidated financia statementsin Item 8.

Pension Funding

Funds supporting our ERISA-regulated U.S. defined benefit pension plan decreased by $7 million during fiscal year 2016
to $197 million, as benefit payments exceeded contributions and asset returns. Following changesto the plan benefit formuladuring
fiscal year 2014, the accumul ated benefit obligation (*ABO”) and the projected benefit obligation (“ PBO”) were both approximately
$222 million as of March 31, 2016. The ABO and PBO are calculated on the basis of certain assumptions that are outlined in Note
10 to the consolidated financial statements in Item 8. We expect to make contributions of about $7 million to our pension plans,
including $5 million to our ERISA-regulated plan, during the next year. It isour policy to regularly monitor the performance of the
funds and to review the adequacy of our funding and plan contributions.

24



Contractual Obligations

Our contractual obligations as of March 31, 2016, were as follows:

(in thousands of dollars) Total 2017 2018-2019 2020-2021 After 2021
1

Notes payable and long-term debt O e $ 497,717 $ 79263 $ 24113 $ 168604 $ 225737

Operating [€ase ObligationS............cc.ccueucueveicieeee ettt 47,697 10,324 13,152 9,173 15,048

Inventory purchase obligations:

TODACCO .....ccuiviieiiteieieie ettt bbbt bbb sa bbbt e b b et sesatesenatan 675,765 565,692 110,073 — —

AGCUITUral MALENIEIS.......c.cucvivieieeiceceetcece ettt seaeaas 43,739 43,739 — — —
Other purchase OblIgatiONS...........ccceveveviiieereeeseeee e b et resneas 9,142 9,142 — — —

TOBL..cuvcieeeieieec ettt bbbttt bbbt b e ae b reaatn $ 1274060 $ 708,160 $ 147,338 $ 177,777 $ 240,785
(€

Includes interest payments. Interest payments on $436.2 million of variable rate debt were estimated based on rates as of March 31, 2016. The Company has
entered interest rate swaps that effectively convert the interest payments on the $370.0 million outstanding balance of its two bank term loans from variable to
fixed. Thefixed rate has been used to determine the contractual interest payments for all periods.

In addition to principal and interest payments on notes payable and long-term debt, our contractual obligations include
operating lease payments, inventory purchase commitments, and capital expenditure commitments. Operating lease obligations
represent minimum payments due under leases for various production, storage, distribution, and other facilities, aswell as vehicles
and equipment. Tobaccoinventory purchaseobligationsprimarily represent contractsto purchasetobacco fromfarmers. Theamounts
shown above are estimates since actual quantities purchased will depend on crop yield, and prices will depend on the quality of the
tobacco delivered. About 33% of our crop year contracts to purchase tobacco are with farmersin Brazil. We have partially funded
our tobacco purchasesin Brazil and in other regionswith advancesto farmers and other suppliers, which totaled approximately $102
million, net of allowances, at March 31, 2016. In addition, we have guaranteed bank loansto farmersin Brazil that relateto aportion
of our tobacco purchase obligations there. At March 31, 2016, we were contingently liable under those guarantees for outstanding
balances of approximately $13 million (including accrued interest), and we had recorded aliability of approximately $2 million for
thefair value of those guarantees. Astobacco is purchased and the related bank |oans are repaid, our contingent liability is reduced.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS

In preparing the financial statements in accordance with GAAP, we are required to make estimates and assumptions that
have an impact on the assets, liabilities, revenue, and expense amounts reported. These estimates can also affect our supplemental
information disclosures, including information about contingencies, risks, and financial condition. We believe, given current facts
and circumstances, that our estimates and assumptions are reasonable, adhere to GAAP, and are consistently applied. However,
changes in the assumptions used could result in a material adjustment to the financial statements. Our critical accounting estimates
and assumptions are in the following areas:

Inventories

Inventories of tobacco are valued at the lower of cost or market with cost determined under the specific cost method. Raw
materials are clearly identified at the time of purchase. We track the costs associated with raw materials in the final product lots,
and maintain this identification through the time of sale. We also capitalize direct and indirect costs related to processing raw
materials. This method of cost accounting is referred to as the specific cost or specific identification method. We write down
inventory for changesin market val ue based upon assumptionsrel ated to future demand and market conditionsif theindicated market
value is below cost. Future demand assumptions can be impacted by changes in customer sales, changes in customers' inventory
positions and policies, competitors' pricing policiesand inventory positions, and varying crop sizesand qualities. Market conditions
that differ significantly from those assumed by management could result in additional write-downs. We experience inventory write-
downs routinely. Inventory write-downsin fiscal years 2016, 2015, and 2014 were $11.9 million, $18.6 million, and $7.6 million,
respectively. The Company incurred higher levels of inventory write-downs for fiscal years 2014 through 2016 primarily dueto the
effects of oversupply conditionsin the global leaf tobacco markets.

Advances to Suppliers and Guarantees of Bank Loans to Suppliers

In many sourcing origins, we provide tobacco growers with agronomy services and seasonal crop advances of, or for, seed,
fertilizer, and other supplies. These advances are short term in nature and are customarily repaid upon delivery of tobaccoto us. In
several origins, we have also made long-term advances to tobacco farmers to finance curing barns and other farm infrastructure. In
Brazil, we also guarantee bank 1oans made to farmers for seasonal crop financing. In some years, dueto low crop yields and other
factors, individual farmers may not deliver sufficient volumes of tobacco to repay maturing advances. Inthose cases, we may extend
repayment of the advances into the following crop year or satisfy the guarantee by acquiring the loan from the bank. In either
situation, wewill incur losseswhenever we are unableto recover the full amount of theloansand advances. At each reporting period,
we must make estimates and assumptions in determining the valuation allowance for advancesto farmers and the liability to accrue
for our obligations under bank |oan guarantees. At March 31, 2016, the gross balance of advancesto supplierstotaled approximately
$134 million, and therelated val uation allowancetotal ed approximately $29 million. Thefair value of theloan guaranteesfor farmers
in Brazil was aliability of approximately $2 million at March 31, 2016.

Recoverable Value-Added Tax Credits

In many foreign countries, we pay significant amounts of value-added tax (“VAT”) on purchases of unprocessed and
processed tobacco, crop inputs, packing materials, and various other goods and services. In some countries, VAT is a national tax,
and in other countriesit is assessed at the state level. Items subject to VAT vary from jurisdiction to jurisdiction, as do the rates at
which thetax is assessed. When we sell tobacco to customersin the country of origin, we generally collect VAT on those sales. We
are normally permitted to offset our VAT payments against those collections and remit only the incremental VAT collections to the
tax authorities. Whentobaccoissoldfor export, VAT isnormally not assessed. |n countrieswhere our tobacco sal esare predominately
for export markets, we often do not generate enough VAT collections on downstream sales to fully offset our VAT payments. In
those situations, we can accumulate unused VAT credits. Some jurisdictions have procedures that allow companies to apply for
refunds of unused VAT credits from the tax authorities, but the refund process often takes an extended period of time and it is not
uncommon for refund applicationsto be challenged or rej ected in part on technical grounds. Other jurisdictionsmay permit companies
to sell or transfer unused VAT credits to third parties in private transactions, although approval for such transactions must normally
be obtained from the tax authorities, limits on the amounts that can be transferred may be imposed, and the proceeds realized may
be heavily discounted from the face value of the credits. Due to these factors, in some countries we can accumulate significant
balances of VAT credits over time. We review these balances on aregular basis, and we record valuation allowances on the credits
to reflect amounts that we do not expect to recover, as well as discounts anticipated on credits we expect to sell or transfer. In
determining the appropriate val uation allowance to record in a given jurisdiction, we must make various estimates and assumptions
about factors affecting the ultimate recovery of the VAT credits. At March 31, 2016, the gross balance of recoverable tax credits
(primarily VAT) totaled approximately $52 million, and the related valuation allowance totaled approximately $19 million.
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Goodwill

Wereview the carrying value of goodwill for potential impairment on an annual basisand at any timethat eventsor business
conditionsindicatethat it may beimpaired. Aspermitted under Accounting Standards Codification Topic 350 (“*ASC 350"), at March
31, 2016 and 2015, we elected to base our initial assessment of potential impairment on qualitative factors. Those factors did not
indicate any impairment of our recorded goodwill. Prior to fiscal year 2015, we followed the quantitative approach in ASC 350 in
assessing the fair value of our goodwill, which involved the use of discounted cash flow models (Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy
under GAAP). Under our current qualitative assessment, we would also use those discounted cash flow models to measure any
expected impairment indicated by the assessment. The calculations in these models are not based on observable market data from
independent sources and therefore require significant management judgment with respect to operating earnings growth rates and the
selection of an appropriate discount rate. Significant adverse changes in our operations or our estimates of future cash flows for a
reporting unit with recorded goodwill, such as those caused by unforeseen events or changes in market conditions, could result in
an impairment charge. Over 90% of our goodwill balance relates to our reporting unit in Brazil.

Fair Value Measurements

We hold various financial assets and financial liabilities that are required to be measured and reported at fair value in our
financial statements, including money market funds, trading securities associated with deferred compensation plans, interest rate
swaps, forward foreign currency exchange contracts, and guarantees of bank loans to tobacco growers. We follow the relevant
accounting guidance in determining the fair values of these financia assetsand liabilities. Quoted market prices(Level 1 of thefair
value hierarchy) are used in most cases to determine the fair values of trading securities. Money market funds are valued based on
net asset value (“NAV”), which is computed based on amortized cost (Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy). Interest rate swaps, and
forward foreign currency exchange contracts are valued based on dealer quotes using discounted cash flow models matched to the
contractua terms of each instrument (Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy). The fair value of the guarantees of bank loans to tobacco
growers, which was approximately $2 million at March 31, 20186, is derived using an internally-developed discounted cash flow
model. The model requires various inputs, including historical 1oss percentages for comparable loans and a risk-adjusted interest
rate. Because significant management judgment is required in determining and applying these inputs to the valuation model, our
process for determining the fair value of these guaranteesis classified as Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy. At March 31, 2016, a
1% increase in the expected loss percentage for all guaranteed farmer loans would not have had a material effect on the fair value
of the guarantee obligation. In addition, a 1% change in the risk-adjusted interest rate would not have had a material effect on the
fair value of the guarantee obligation. We incorporate credit risk in determining the fair values of our financial assets and financial
liahilities, but that risk did not materially affect the fair values of any of those assets or liabilities at March 31, 2016.

Income Taxes

Our consolidated effective income tax rate is based on our expected taxable income, tax laws and statutory tax rates, and
tax planning opportunities in the various jurisdictions in which we operate. Significant judgment is required in determining the
effective tax rate and evaluating our tax position. We are subject to the tax laws of many jurisdictions, and could be subject to atax
audit in each of these jurisdictions, which could result in adjustments to tax expense in future periods. In the event that thereis a
significant, unusual, or one-timeitem recognized in our results, the tax attributed to that discrete item would be recorded at the same
time asthe item.

We have no undistributed earnings of consolidated foreign subsidiaries that are classified as permanently or indefinitely
reinvested. We assume that all undistributed earnings of our foreign subsidiaries will be repatriated back to their parent entitiesin
the United States where the funds are best placed to meet our cash flow requirements. In addition, we strive to mitigate economic,
political, and currency risk by following a disciplined annual approach to the distribution of excess capital back to the U.S. Based
on these assumptions, in our income tax expense for each reporting period we fully provide for all additional U.S. income taxes that
are expected to be due on these distributions.

Our accounting for uncertain tax positions requires that we review all significant tax positions taken, or expected to be
taken, in income tax returns for al jurisdictions in which we operate. In this review, we must assume that all tax positions will
ultimately be audited, and either accepted or rejected based on the applicable tax regulations by the tax authorities for those
jurisdictions. We must recognize in our financial statements only the tax benefits associated with tax positionsthat are “more likely
than not” to be accepted upon audit, at the greatest amount that is considered “more likely than not” to be accepted. These
determinations require significant management judgment, and changesin any given quarterly or annual reporting period could affect
our consolidated income tax rate.

Tax regulations require items to be included in taxable income in the tax return at different times, and in some cases in
different amounts, than the items are reflected in the financia statements. Asaresult, our effective tax rate reflected in the financial
statements is different than that reported in our tax returns. Some of these differences are permanent, such as expenses that are not
tax deductible, while others are related to timing issues, such as differences in depreciation methods. Timing differences create
deferred tax assets and liabilities. Deferred tax liabilities generally represent tax expense recognized in our financial statements for
which payment has been deferred or income taxes related to expenses that have not yet been recognized in the financial statements,
but have been deducted in our tax return. Deferred tax assets generally represent items that can be used as atax deduction or credit
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in future tax returns for which we have already recorded the tax benefit in our financial statements. We record valuation allowances
for deferred tax assets when the amount of estimated future taxable incomeis not likely to support the use of the deduction or credit.
Determining the amount of such valuation allowances requires significant management judgment, including estimates of future
taxable income in multiple tax jurisdictions where we operate. Based on our periodic earnings forecasts, we project the upcoming
year's taxable income to help us evaluate our ability to realize deferred tax assets.

Thefunctional currency in most of our significant foreign operationsisthe U.S. dollar, as export tobacco salesare generally
madein dollars. Purchasing and processing costs are usually incurred inlocal currency. When the U.S. dollar isweakening relative
to the local currency, purchasing and processing costs increase in dollar terms, resulting in higher cost inventory. The sale of that
inventory in dollars generates less taxable incomein local currency, which resultsin lower income taxes owed when translated into
U.S. dollars. This causesthe effective income tax rate on dollar income to be lower than the statutory rate in the local country. The
reverse can occur when the local currency is weakening relative to the U.S. dollar, thereby causing the effective income tax rate on
dollar earnings to be above the statutory rate. Thisimpact on our effective income tax rate in a country can be significant during a
normal crop cycle. A prolonged period of strengthening or weakening over more than one crop may increase the impact if we sell
material quantitiesof old cropinventories. Lower-taxed foreign sourceincomeincreasesour ability touseforeigntax credits. Higher-
taxed foreign source income has the reverse effect. When these changes occur in our larger operations, such as our operations in
Brazil, they can have a material impact on our overall tax position.

For additional disclosures on income taxes, see Notes 1 and 4 to the consolidated financial statementsin Item 8.
Pension and Other Postretirement Benefit Plans

The measurement of our pension and other postretirement benefit obligationsand costs at the end of each fiscal year requires
that we make various assumptions that are used by our actuaries in estimating the present value of projected future benefit payments
to al plan participants. Those assumptions take into consideration the likelihood of potential future events such as salary increases
and demographic experience. The assumptions we use may have an effect on the amount and timing of future contributions to our
plans. The plan trustee conducts an independent valuation of the fair value of pension plan assets. The significant assumptions used
in the calculation of our pension and other postretirement benefit obligations are:

» Discount rate—Thediscount rateisbased oninvestment yields on ahypothetical portfolio of actual long-term corporate
bonds rated AA that align with the cash flows for our benefit obligations.

e Sdary scale—The salary scale assumption is based on our long-term actual experience for salary increases, the near-
term outlook, and expected inflation.

»  Expected long-term return on plan assets — The expected long-term return on plan assets reflects asset allocations and
investment strategy adopted by the Pension Investment Committee of the Board of Directors.

e Retirement and mortality rates— Retirement rates are based on actual plan experience along with our near-term outlook.
Early retirement assumptions are based on our actual experience. Mortality rates are based on standard industry group
annuity mortality tables which are updated to reflect projected improvementsin life expectancy.

e Headthcare cost trend rates — For postretirement medical plan obligations and costs, we make assumptions on future
inflationary increases in medical costs. These assumptions are based on our actual experience, along with third-party
forecasts of long-term medical cost trends.

Fromonefiscal year tothenext, theratesweusefor each of theaboveassumptionsmay changebased on market devel opments
and other factors. The discount rate reflects prevailing market interest rates at the end of the fiscal year when the benefit obligations
are actuarially measured and will increase or decrease based on market patterns. The expected long-term return on plan assets may
change based on changesin investment strategy for plan assets or changesin indicated longer-term yields on specific classes of plan
assets. Based on the high percentage of retired and inactive participants in our ERISA-regulated domestic defined benefit pension
plan (approximately 75% of total participants), as well as the high funded status of the plan, the Pension Investment Committee
adopted changes to the underlying plan assets during fiscal year 2015 to move toward a liability-driven investment strategy. We
reduced our expected long-term return on assets assumption by 50 basis points at March 31, 2015 and by an additional 25 basis
points at March 31, 2016 primarily to reflect those changes. We also adopted revised mortality tablesin fiscal year 2015 based on
updated actuarial studies reflecting improvementsin life expectancy. In addition to the changesin actuarial assumptions from year
toyear, actual plan experienceaffecting our net benefit obligations, such asactual returnson plan assetsand actual mortality experience,
will differ from the assumptions used to measure the obligations. The effects of these changes and differencesincrease or decrease
the obligation we record for our pension and other postretirement benefit plans, and they also create gains and losses that are
accumulated and amortized over future periods, thus aff ecting the expense we recogni ze for these plans over those periods. Changes
in the discount rate from year to year generally have the largest impact on our projected benefit obligation and annual expense, and
the effects may be significant, particularly over successive years where the discount rate moves in the same direction.
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As of March 31, 2016, the effect of the indicated increase or decrease in the selected pension and other postretirement
benefit valuation assumptionsis shown below. The effect assumes no change in benefit levels.

Effect on
2016
Projected Effect on
Benefit 2017 Annual
Obligation Expense
Increase Increase

(in thousands of dollars) (Decrease) (Decrease)
Changes in Assumptions for Pension Benefits
Discount Rate:

LD INCIEASE.......evveveee et tete e e te e te et et et et et et et et etet et et et et et et eteteteses et et et et et et et et et b et et et et et et et et et et et et et et et et et et et et et etesetesasatetatasetesatetanaen $ (27,776) $ (2,466)

TUD AECTEASE ...ttt ettt ettt bbbttt bt s et ettt et s et et e s e b et et e b bt b e b et b b et et et et s bt e b bt et b sttt b et s et b en bt ases et s s etnaen 33,720 2,862
Expected Long-Term Return on Plan Assets:

LD INCIEASE.......evveveee et te et tetete e te et etet et et et et et et et et et et et et et eseteseses et et et et et et et et et et et et s et et et et et et et et et et et et et et et et et et etes et et et setasasetesatetannes — (2,160)

0= o == TR — 2,161
Changes in Assumptions for Other Postretirement Benefits
Discount Rate:

LOB IMNCIEASE........c.eeveveeeeeeteeetetete st ete et st et e e seebese s ssebe e et esesese et ebe s ateseasseebese s et ebe e et eseseas et ese e bebensseebene s asebe s etebese st et ensseebesensneebeneanas (3,244) (374)

LB ECIEASE ......c.eveveee ettt ettt ettt ettt ebe et etesese et ebe e et ebeasseebese s esebe s et esess et et ese e bebensesebese s et ebe s ebebene et et eneseebesensaretenenas 3,847 264
Healthcare Cost Trend Rate:

LOB IMNCIEASE........c.eeveveeeeeeteeeetetete st ete et st et e s seebese s st ebe e et eseseas et ebe e et eseasseebese s asebe e et esessas et ese et ebeasasebese s asebe s et ebese st et enesebesensneebeneanas 981 43

LD AECTEASE ...ttt et et ettt et et et et et et et et et et et et et et et et et et et et et et et et et et b et et et et et et et et et et et et et et et et et ettt et et esetetetesetesatetenaen (920) (41)

A 1% increase or decreasein the salary scale assumption would not have amaterial effect on the projected benefit obligation
or onannual expensefor the Company'spension benefits. See Note 10 to the consolidated financia statementsin Item 8 for additional
information on pension and other postretirement benefit plans.

Other Estimates and Assumptions

Other management estimates and assumptions are routinely required in preparing our financial statements, including the
determination of valuation allowanceson accountsreceivableand thefair value of long-lived assets. Changesin market and economic
conditions, local tax laws, and other related factors are considered each reporting period, and adjustments to the accounts are made
based on management’s best judgment.
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OTHER INFORMATION REGARDING TRENDS
AND MANAGEMENT’S ACTIONS

Our financial performance depends on our ability to obtain an appropriate price for our products and services, to secure
thetobacco volumesand quality desired by our customers, and to maintain efficient, competitive operations. We continually monitor
issues and opportunities that may impact the supply of and demand for leaf tobacco, the volumes of leaf tobacco that we handle,
and the services we provide.

Supply

Crops sold in fiscal year 2016 were smaller than in the prior fiscal year in many of our key sourcing areas for flue-cured
and burley tobacco. Flue-cured production outside of China was down approximately 10%, and burley production was down
approximately 13%. The smaller cropsfollowed oversupplied tobacco marketsinfiscal year 2015. Crop sizesfor flue-cured, burley
and oriental tobaccos available for export are expected to decrease further in fiscal year 2017 due to the effect of El Nino weather
patterns on certain crops, as well as reduced plantings in some origins. While we believe that total production levels are moving
into balance with anticipated demand, imbalancesin certain leaf styles or types may remain through fiscal year 2017, particularly
in Brazil, as current crop production declines have been exacerbated by weather conditions there.

Production

Worldwide flue-cured tobacco production outside of Chinadecreased by about 10% infiscal year 2016 to 2.0 billion kilos.
Chinais an extremely large market that is predominately domestic. Because very little of that tobacco is available outside of that
country to trade, we generally exclude Chinese crops when we consider worldwide production. However, the level of domestic
stocks in Chinais till quite significant and may continue to influence the global supply/demand balance due to efforts to reduce
production and imports there. Burley crops decreased by about 13% in fiscal year 2016. We estimate that at March 31, 2016,
industry uncommitted flue-cured and burley inventories totaled about 115 million kilos, a decrease of about 12% from March 31,
2015 levels.

In the near term, production decreases are expected in nearly al major origins, including more significant weather-rel ated
reductionsin Brazil that should recover in subsequent seasons. We expect that flue-cured production (excluding China) will decrease
by about 12%, to about 1.8 billionkilos, infiscal year 2017. Burley production isforecast to decrease by about 5%. We also forecast
that oriental tobacco and dark air-cured production will decline by 9% and 2%, respectively, infiscal year 2017. Over thelong term,
we believe that global tobacco production will remain relatively stable to meet slightly declining total demand. South America,
Asia, Africa, and North Americawill remain key sourcing regions for flue-cured and burley tobaccos.

Pricing

Factors that affect green tobacco prices include global supply and demand, market conditions, production costs, foreign
exchange rates, and competition from other crops. We work with farmers to maintain tobacco production and to secure product at
pricelevelsthat are attractive to both the farmers and our customers. Our objectiveisto secure compliant tobacco that is produced
in a cost-effective manner under a sustainable business model with the desired quality for our customers. In some areas, tobacco
competes with agricultural commodity products for farmer production. If prices for soybeans, wheat, rice, and seed oilsrisein
certain origins, green tobacco prices may have to rise to maintain tobacco production levels. Thiscould be afactor in efforts of the
WHO to shift farmer production away from leaf tobacco to other crops. In the past, leaf shortages in specific markets or on a
worldwide basis have also led to green tobacco price increases.

Demand

Industry data showsthat over the past ten years, total world consumption of cigarettesfell at the compound annual rate of
0.1%, including annual growth of about 2.2% in China. Outside China, consumption fell by about 0.8% during the ten-year period.
In addition, there are indications that growth in world consumption of cigarettes may have peaked and that the rate of growth is
slowing in some key areas which had been experiencing growth, particularly China. We expect that near term global demand for
leaf tobacco will decline slightly primarily due to declining cigarette consumption in devel oped markets, partially offset by modest
growthinconsumptioninemerging markets(Asia, theMiddle East, and Africa), influenced by demographictrendssuchaspopul ation
growth and increasing disposable income.

Our sales consist primarily of flue-cured and burley tobaccos. Those types of tobacco, along with oriental tobaccos, are
used in American-blend cigarettes which are primarily smoked in Western Europe and the United States. English-blend cigarettes
which use flue-cured tobacco are mainly smoked in Asia and other emerging markets. Industry data shows that consumption of
American-blend cigarettes hasdeclined at acompound annual rate of 2.2% for theten yearsendedin 2015. Ascigarette consumption
declines in developed markets and increases in the emerging markets, there may be less demand for burley and oriental tobaccos
and more demand for flue-cured tobacco. However, demand is affected by many factors, including regulation, product taxation,
illicit trade, alternative tobacco products, and Chinese imports. To the extent that domestic leaf production and inventory durations
in China do not meet requirements for Chinese cigarette blends, that tobacco could be sourced from other origins where we have
major market positions. On a year-to-year basis, we are also susceptible to fluctuations in leaf supply due to crop sizes and leaf
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demand as manufacturers adjust inventories or respond to changes in cigarette markets. For example, declines in some of our
customers' sales volumesin the U.S. and Western European markets, partially due to weak economic conditions, reduced demand
for leaf tobacco in fiscal year 2015. With lower projected crop year 2016 leaf tobacco production, we currently expect supply for
flue-cured and burley tobaccos to be largely in line with anticipated demand. However, inventories held by our customers may
affect their near-term demand for leaf tobacco. We also sall dark tobacco which is used in cigars and other smokeless products.
We expect demand for this category of tobacco to also decline dlightly.

Regulation and Product Taxation

Decreased social acceptance of smoking and increased pressure from anti-smoking groups have had an ongoing adverse
effect on the percentage of the population using tobacco products, particularly in the United States and Western Europe. Also, many
foreign governments have taken or proposed steps to restrict or prohibit cigarette advertising and promotion, to increase taxes on
cigarettes, to prohibit smoking in public areas, and to discourage cigarette consumption. A number of such measures are included
in the Framework Convention on Tobacco Control (“FCTC"), which was negotiated under the auspices of the WHO and offers
guidelinesfor discouraging or controlling tobacco use. Countriesthat are partiesto the FCTC may choosethelevel of implementation
of the guidelines that is most suitable with their approach to tobacco control. In some cases, such restrictions are more onerous
than those proposed or in effect in the United States. We cannot predict the extent to which government efforts to reduce tobacco
consumptionmight affect thebusinessof our primary customers. However, asignificant decreaseinworl dwidetobacco consumption,
as well as shifts to modified risk tobacco products brought about by existing or future governmental laws and regulations, could
reduce demand for leaf tobacco and services and could have a material adverse effect on our results of operations.

In addition, certain recommendations by the WHO, through the FCTC, may cause shiftsin customer usage of certain types
and styles of tobacco. As seen in Canada, Brazil, and the European Union, efforts have been taken to eliminate flavorings from
tobacco products. Such decisions could cause a change in requirements for certain tobaccos in particular countries. Shifts in
customer demand from one type of tobacco to another could create sourcing i ssues as requirements move from one origin to another.
Furthermore, instruction at the farm level may be required to produce the changing styles of tobacco needed by tobacco product
manufacturers. Given our established and well-devel oped programsat the farm level worldwide, we are particul arly well positioned
to meet manufacturer reguirements.

In 2009, the U.S. Congress passed the Family Smoking Prevention and Tobacco Control Act (“the Act”). Thislegislation
authorizes the FDA to regul ate the manufacturing and marketing of all tobacco products. The FDA has banned flavored cigarettes,
restricted youth accessto tobacco products, banned advertising claimsregarding certain tobacco products, established new smokeless
tobacco warnings, and issued new cigarette health warnings. In addition, the FDA established the Center for Tobacco Products
(“CTP"). The CTPhasfocused on establishing the scientific foundation and regul atory framework for regulating tobacco products
inthe United States. On May 10, 2016, the FDA released “ deeming” regulations that extend FDA oversight to all tobacco products
including e-cigarettes, cigars, hookah tobacco, pipetobacco, dissolvables, and “ novel and future products.” Theregulationsrequire
that tobacco product manufacturers register tobacco products that existed on February 15, 2007, and to seek FDA approval to sell
any productsmodified or introduced after such date. All such submissionsrequire manufacturersto listingredientsintheir products.
Regulations impacting our customer base that change the requirements for leaf tobacco or restrict their ability to sell their products
will inherently impact our business. As discussed, we have established programsthat begin at thefarm level to assist our customers
with raw material informationto support |eaf traceability and customer testing requirements. Additionally, given our global presence,
wealso havetheability to source different types and styles of tobacco for our customers should their needs change dueto regulation.

A number of governments, particularly federal and local governmentsin the United States and the European Union, impose
excise or similar taxes on tobacco products. There has been, and will likely continue to be, new legislation proposing new or
increased taxes on tobacco products. In some cases, proposed legidlation seeks to significantly increase existing taxes on tobacco
products, or impose new taxes on products that to date have not been subject to tax. Increases in product taxation may have an
influence on the level of illicit trade, which will affect the global |eaf markets.

Ilicit Trade

[licit tradeisanother factor which influences demand for leaf tobacco. Industry estimates of theillegal, unregulated black
market for cigarettes are approximately 10% of global stick consumption, representing $40-$50 billion in lost tax revenue globally.
We support industry efforts to eradicate illicit trade.

Alternative Tobacco Products

Many of the major tobacco product manufacturers have been devel oping next generation and modified risk products. These
include e-cigarettes, liquid vaporizers, and heat-not-burn products. E-cigarettes and liquid vaporizers use liquid nicotine, which is
predominately derived from leaf tobacco, and heat-not-burn products use leaf tobacco. At thistimeit is unclear as to how these
new products will affect demand for leaf tobacco. Our AmeriNic joint venture produces liquid nicotine for the vapor products
industry. Currently, regulation of these products aswell as consumer acceptance and their influence on smoking trends are unclear,
and we continueto monitor industry devel opments. E-cigarettesand other vapor productsare now primarily consumed inthe United
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States and Western Europe, and it is unclear what effect the consumption of vapor products may have on global demand for leaf
tobacco in the future.

Current Industry Dynamics

L eaf tobacco issourced directly by product manufacturers, by global leaf suppliers such asourselves, and by other smaller,
mostly regional or local, |eaf suppliers. Weestimatethat, of theflue-cured and burley tobacco grown outside of China, approximately
one-third is purchased directly by manufacturers, slightly over one-third is handled by global leaf suppliers, and the remainder is
sourced by the smaller regional or local suppliers. Although we operate in a mature industry, where demand for the end products
isdlightly declining, we continually look for waysto grow our business. We believe that there are several longer term trendsin the
industry that could provide opportunities for us to maintain or increase our market share and to offer additional services to our
customers.

Manufacturers naturally seek to mitigate raw materials cost increases, and they are placing increased emphasis on cost
containment as they address declining demand. While thisis not a new trend, it continues to offer opportunities to us as we bring
supply chain efficienciesto theleaf markets. Webelievethat global leaf suppliers add efficienciesto the marketsthrough economies
of scale, aswell asthrough thevital role played in finding buyersfor all styles and qualities of leaf tobacco, which achieves overall
cost reductions. To understand our business, it isimportant to note that tobacco is not a commodity product. Flavor and smoking
characteristics of tobacco vary based on the type of tobacco and the region where the tobacco isgrown. In addition, characteristics
of tobacco leaves vary by their position on the stalk of the plant, which meansthat many different styles and grades of tobacco may
be produced in a single tobacco crop. A particular manufacturer, in seeking tobacco for its proprietary blend, may only want and
have usefor certain leaves of aplant. Theleaf tobacco supplier playsavital rolein theindustry by finding buyersfor all of the leaf
gradesand styles of tobacco producedin afarmer’scrop. Thisrole hel psto eliminate excesstobacco being produced, whichimproves
leaf utilization.

In addition to leaf utilization, we bring operational efficiencies to the industry, which in turn help reduce costs. These
efficiencies include economical utilization of processing capacity in our facilities, an established and scalable global network of
agronomists and technicians helping maintain a stable, productive, and sustainable farmer base, and agronomic and production
improvements to optimize leaf yields and qualities. In addition, we are able to offer manufacturers a complete range of services
from the field to the delivery of the packed product that benefit from our efficiencies. These servicesinclude such things as buying
station optimization, processing to specific customer specifications or needs, storage of green or packed leaf tobacco, and logistical
services. Inrecent years, we have seen anincreasein theleve of direct purchasing and other supply chain servicesthat we provide
our customers, notably in the United States, Mexico, Brazil, Poland, Guatemala, and the Dominican Republic. We believe these
moves acknowledge the efficiencies and services that global leaf suppliers bring to the entire supply chain.

Several major manufacturers have also indicated to ustheir interest in reducing sourcing complexity. We believethat these
moves are another way for the industry to increase |leaf sourcing efficiency and to reduce costs. We maintain a strong presencein
all of the major tobacco sourcing areas and believethat any growth in these areaswould favor global |eaf supplierssuch asourselves.
Inthefuture, we expect that increased regul ationsrequiring stringent monitoring and testing of leaf chemistry and compliant sourcing
documentation could place greater emphasis on major sourcing areas.

As we have said for a number of years, the production of compliant leaf for the tobacco industry continues to grow in
importance. To be considered compliant, leaf tobacco must be grown utilizing Good Agricultural Practices. We havelong invested
significant resources in the programs and infrastructure needed to work with growers to produce compliant leaf and continue to
enhance our ability to monitor and demonstrate thiscompliancefor customers. Our Good Agricultural Practices support an approach
to farming that is focused on sustainability, employing sound field production and labor management practices that meet our
customers needs, promote farmer profitability and reflect environmental sensitivity. To assist them, Universal provides
comprehensive training, technical support in the field, and crop analytics through ongoing research and development. We believe
that compliant leaf will continue to be important to our customers and should favor global suppliers who are able to deliver this
product.

We also believe that akey factor in our ability to perform successfully in thisindustry is our ability to provide customers
with the quality of leaf and the level of service they desire on aglobal basis at competitive prices, while maintaining a stability of
supply. Astheleading global |eaf tobacco supplier, we add significant value to the supply chain, providing expertisein dealing with
large numbers of farmers, efficiently selling various qualities of leaf produced in each crop to a broad global customer base, and
delivering productsthat meet stringent quality and regul atory specifications. Weal so hel p stabilizethetobacco marketsandinfluence
crop development at the farm level. Our key objectiveisto continually adapt our business model to meet our customers' evolving
needs while continuing to provide stability of supply and the quality that distinguishes our products and services. In addition, we
monitor new product developmentsin the industry to identify areas where we can provide additional value to our customers.
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Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk
Interest Rates

Wegenerally use both fixed and floating interest rate debt to finance our operations. Changesin market interest rates expose
usto changesin cash flowsfor floating rateinstrumentsand to changesin fair valuefor fixed-rateinstruments. Wenormally maintain
aproportion of our debt in both variable and fixed interest rates to manage this exposure, and from time to time we may enter hedge
agreements to swap theinterest rates. In addition, our customers may pay market rates of interest for inventory purchased on order,
which could mitigate a portion of the floating interest rate exposure. We also periodically have large cash balances and may receive
deposits from customers, both of which we use to fund seasonal purchases of tobacco, reducing our financing needs. Excluding our
bank term loans, which have been converted to fixed-rate borrowings with interest rate swaps, debt carried at variable interest rates
was approximately $66 million at March 31, 2016. Although ahypothetical 1% change in short-term interest rates would result in
achange in annual interest expense of approximately $0.6 million, that amount would be at least partially mitigated by changesin
charges to customers.

In addition, changesin interest rates affect the cal culation of our pension plan liabilities. Asrates decrease, theliability for
the present value of amounts expected to be paid under the plansincreases. Rate changes also affect expense. As of the March 31,
2016 measurement date, a 1% decrease in the discount rate would have increased the projected benefit obligation (“PBO”) for
pensions by $34 million and increased annual pension expense by $3 million. Conversely, a 1% increase in the discount rate would
have reduced the PBO by $28 million and reduced annual pension expense by $2 million.

Currency

The international leaf tobacco trade generally is conducted in U.S. dollars, thereby limiting foreign exchange risk to that
which is related to leaf purchase and production costs, overhead, and income taxes in the source country. We also provide farmer
advancesthat are directly related to leaf purchases and are denominated in thelocal currency. Any currency gains or 10sses on those
advances are usualy offset by increases or decreases in the cost of tobacco, which is priced in the local currency. However, the
effect of the offset may not occur until a subsequent quarter or fiscal year. Most of our tobacco operations are accounted for using
the U.S. dollar as the functional currency. Because there are no forward foreign exchange markets in many of our major countries
of tobacco origin, we often manage our foreign exchange risk by matching funding for inventory purchases with the currency of
sale, which isusually the U.S. dollar, and by minimizing our net local currency monetary position in individual countries. We are
vulnerableto currency remeasurement gainsand lossesto the extent that monetary assetsand liabilities denominated inlocal currency
do not offset each other. We recognized $22.5 million in net remeasurement losses in fiscal year 2016, compared to $28.8 million
in net remeasurement losses in fiscal year 2015, and $14.3 million in net remeasurement gains in fiscal year 2014. We recognized
$8.0 million in net foreign currency transaction gainsin fiscal year 2016, compared to net transaction gains of $17.7 millionin fiscal
year 2015, and net transaction losses of $6.0 million in fiscal year 2014. In addition to foreign exchange gains and losses, we are
exposed to changes in the cost of tobacco due to changes in the value of the local currency in relation to the U.S. dollar. We have
entered forward currency exchange contracts to hedge against the effects of currency movements on purchases of tobacco to reduce
thevolatility of costs. In addition, we periodically enter into forward contracts to hedge balance sheet exposures. See Note 8 to the
consolidated financial statementsin Item 8 for additional information about our hedging activities.

In certain tobacco markets that are primarily domestic, we use the local currency as the functional currency. Examples of
these markets are Hungary, Poland, and the Philippines. In other markets, such asWestern Europe, where export sales are primarily
inlocal currencies, we also use the local currency as the functional currency. In each case, reported earnings are affected by the
tranglation of the local currency into the U.S. dollar.

Derivatives Policies

Hedging interest rate exposure using swaps and hedging foreign currency exchange rate exposure using forward contracts
are specifically contemplated to manage risk in keeping with management's policies. We may use derivative instruments, such as
swaps, forwards, or futures, which are based directly or indirectly upon interest rates and currencies to manage and reduce the risks
inherent in interest rate and currency fluctuations. When we use foreign currency derivatives to mitigate our exposure to exchange
rate fluctuations, we may choose not to designate them as hedges for accounting purposes, which may result in the effects of the
derivatives being recognized in our earningsin periods different from the items that created the exposure.

We do not utilize derivativesfor speculative purposes, and we do not enter into market risk-sensitive instrumentsfor trading
purposes. Derivatives are transaction-specific so that a specific debt instrument, forecast purchase, contract, or invoice determines
the amount, maturity, and other specifics of the hedge. We routinely review counterparty risk as part of our derivative program.
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Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

UNIVERSAL CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

Fiscal Year Ended March 31,

(in thousands of dollars, except share and per share data) 2016 2015 2014

Sales and Other OPErating FEVENUES .............ccccuiueuieieieeeeeee ettt b e st re s sa et eeneaenens $ 2,120,373 $ 2,271,801 $ 2,542,115

Costs and expenses

[0S a0 To oo Y=o Lo T 1,713,042 1,861,527 2,108,824
Selling, general and admiNiStratiVe EXPENSES............coveveveeeeieeeeeeseetes et esessseesesessesessseesesssssassensseess 226,685 250,186 262,013
OFNEN INMCOME.......cuiuiiictciete ettt ettt et ae et e be e s s et ess et bese s et ebe st esene st ebesenessebensseanan (3,390) (12,676) (81,619)
Restructuring and imMpPaiMMENE COSES..........civuiuiiiiieireiiiieee s se st sessebessesbe e ssss e sesbessssessessssssesens 2,389 4,890 6,746
OPEFAtING INCOME ...ttt ettt sttt et s e st e et sssbese st ebssssesbese s sbebesssesbese s stebesestebesssestensssssesens 181,647 167,874 246,151
Equity in pretax earnings of unconsolidated affiliates............ccocvvceeeeeeceeeeeeecee e 5,422 7,137 3,897
INEEESE INCOIME........utieteiietetsie ettt bbb bbbk bbb bbb bbbt b bbb bbbttt ettt ns 1,178 576 949
INEEIESE EXPENSE ... ettt ettt e e te et e s be et et e e aesae e beebeeaeesaesbeese e sesasensenbeeseensesaeereensesnesnsentens 15,669 17,120 20,307
INCOME DEfOrE INCOME TAXES.........cocveiieieeicetsie ettt ettt bbbt s s en s sennas 172,578 158,467 230,690
INCOME LAXES........eveteuieeeereireete e te st see e e e te e e eeeseseseses e e et ese e seseneneese e e et esese s esenenenbenenensesenees 54,430 38,006 75,535
NELINCOME ...ttt sttt a bbb s b s bbbt ae b s s s st s s e tans 118,148 120,461 155,155
Less: net income attributable to noncontrolling interests in subsidiaries.............ccooeveveineneneniicneenns (9,132) (5,853) (6,146)
Net income attributable to Universal Corporation................coeeeeeeieiieneeieseesess s seesssessssssns 109,016 114,608 149,009
Dividends on Universal Corporation convertible perpetual preferred stock............ooveeeevrevieeicecieennne, (24,748) (14,824) (14,850)
Cost in excess of carrying value on repurchase of convertible perpetual preferred stock ..................... — (36) —
Earnings available to Universa Corporation common shareholders..............c.ooveveveevceeerececseseenennns $ 94,268 $ 99,748 $ 134,159

Earnings per share attributable to Universal Corporation common shareholders:

BaSIC ...ttt ettt ettt ettt b et et et e ae e et eae e e e et eas et e tese s et ebe e teteaeaeetene s eaetenseretenea $ 416 $ 433 % 5.77

DIULEA ...ttt ettt b e s bt e et ese e bebens et ebe e sebeneseebenensssetenssnetanens $ 392 $ 406 $ 5.25
Weighted average common shares outstanding:

BASIC ...ttt ettt et b b e b be et et e Rttt ebe st ebe et ebeae st ebeae st eteneeretetens 22,683,290 23,035,920 23,238,978

[ 0= o OO 27,825,491 28,221,264 28,392,033

See accompanying notes.



UNIVERSAL CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Fiscal Year Ended March 31,

(in thousands of dollars) 2016 2015 2014
INEEINCOME..... .ottt bbbt ettt s s e $ 118,148 $ 120,461 $ 155,155
Other comprehensive income (10ss):
Foreign currency trandation, net Of INCOME tAXES...........cceueeeveveeeeeeeceeeee s r e 3,934 (22,625) 6,480
Foreign currency hedge, net Of INCOMETAXES...........cceucueeieeecieieeecesetee et 2,509 (2,603) 1,624
Interest rate hedge, NEt Of INCOMETAXES..........cceieirecreiceceee ettt eas e nas (5,015) (1,374) 483
Pension and other postretirement benefit plans, net of incometaxes............ooeeveeveeeceeeeeeeeeveees 1,004 (14,023) 32,022
Tota other comprehensive income (10ss), Net of INCOMELAXES...........coveeeeiieeereeeeeeeeee e 2,432 (40,625) 40,609
Total COMPrENENSIVEINCOME..........ccoveuiieicrie it b e st se st se st bsbesssbess e senens 120,580 79,836 195,764
Less: comprehensive income attributable to noncontrolling iNterests..........coceveeeeeeveeeeeeeeeeeeereeeene (8,920) (5,890) (5,547)
Comprehensive income attributable to Universal Corporation ................ccceeeeeveeseseseeseeesessesesesees $ 111660 $ 73,946 $ 190,217

See accompanying notes.
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UNIVERSAL CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

(in thousands of dollars)

Current assets

ASSETS

Cash @nNd CaSN EQUIVBIENES.........c.ccuiuiieieicieieieiete ettt ettt et bbbt ettt et bbb e b e b et et ebebebebebebebebebesebebebebebesebebesebebesebebesesetens

ACCOUNES TECEAIVANIE, NMEL..........ocveeeeceeeeetete ettt e st e et et s et be et eseasseebese e ssetessesssesessstesesesseseseseseseasseetesensssntenssessenens

AQVANCES T SUPPITEIS, NMEL ...ttt ettt ettt es bbb s bttt ennas

Accounts receivable—unconSOldated affilIatES...........cceeieviriicicceec ettt s b s st srebenens

Inventories—at lower of cost or market:

Tobacco......

{2 = o= o Mg wla T 11 = =< TR

OFNEN CUITENT @SSELS.......c.eiiveteieietee ettt e et ettt e e e e b e aeseebese e e sebesessebese s et ese et esessssebesensssesensstebesessesene s benensssetenssnesanens

Buildings......

MaChiNEry @nd EQUIPIMENL ..........couiiiiiiieiee et e et e et s e e e et e e se e e s s

L eSS aCCUMUIBLEA EPIECIBLION...........c.evcveeeeeeececeeeeeteeee et ettt e e e e e s st eaesestessasssetess s ssesenseeesesessesessssstessnsssstensasssesens

Other assets
Goodwill and

o0 aTc gl 1= g o 1 o =<0

Investments in UNCONSOlIAALEA GffIlIALES ..........c.ccviuieieiieceee ettt ettt et seste s esesbesae e ebeatensans

DEfEITEH INCOME TAXES........cucuieiiieieieieeee et e as e asas e e e se e s e seasseAe e ss e s as e s as e aese e s as e e as e s as e s as e anaes
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March 31,

2016 2015
319447 % 248,783
428,659 434,362
101,890 114,883

2,316 1,907
637,132 636,488
60,888 62,195
17,814 17,811
70,400 81,570
1,638,546 1,597,999
22,987 16,790
264,838 238,372
591,327 576,010
879,152 831,172
(553,265) (525,783)
325,887 305,389
99,071 99,146
82,441 76,512
23,853 32,888
62,999 76,515
268,364 285,061
2,232,797 $ 2,188,449




UNIVERSAL CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS—(Continued)

March 31,
(in thousands of dollars) 2016 2015
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Current liabilities
N[0y o Yz o =TT oY o i T $ 66,179 $ 59,862
Accounts payable and aCCIUEH EXPENSES ..........cvevrvereeeeeeeeeeeeteeeessesesssessessssssesessssesesessssessssssesessssssessasssesesssesessssssesssssseseas 120,527 140,112
Accounts payable—unconsolidated affilIALES.............ccceuiiirieeieeeeeee ettt et et sneaenens 8,343 3,281
Customer a0VaNCES AN GEPOSITS .........cc.cuieiieiiceiiiecre et ste et s et sb e et sbebess st e b e et et eassesbebessseebess st sbese s stebe e stereneses 16,438 30,183
ACCIUEH COMPENSALION.........coeurveeeeeeeteteeeeeteeeestesesssetessesesesessssesesessssessseesessssssesessasaseseasesesessseseassestesssssesessesesessasnsesesensesnas 27,593 28,232
INCOME tAXES PAYAIIE.........cecuiiiceie ettt sttt be s e et et e et ebese et et eae s ebebensssebese s esebe e ebebessssebenesenbesens 7,190 6,559
Current Portion Of [ONG-LEMM AEDL...........cciiiiici ettt sttt bbb eaese b e b e s se et e e st sbese s stebe e seteneses — —
Total CUITENE HHADITTTIES. ..ottt nea e nnnne 246,270 268,229
[0 110 S =44 1o = o O 370,000 370,000
Pensions and other pOStretiremMENt DENEFILS............covcicieeeeee ettt ettt se et se e s etesesnssenens 92,177 97,048
Other 1ONG-LEIM HADITTIES.........ceiieieeieeicteece ettt ettt se et bese b et e seseebesess st ebene st esese s ebebesnstebenssetan 41,794 36,790
DEFEITEA INCOME TAXES .........oucvuieercieeseiseae ettt b bbb ea bbbt 29,494 19,288
QLICe L= 1= 1= OO 779,735 791,355
Shareholders’ equity
Universal Corporation:
Preferred stock:
Series A Junior Participating Preferred Stock, no par value, 500,000 shares authorized,
NONE ISSUEH OF QUESLANMING .......c.evivceeeiercec sttt ettt et se st e e e sebe s st ebese s st esesebesesssesbese st ssese s stebesnssseasses — —
Series B 6.75% Convertible Perpetual Preferred Stock, no par value, 220,000 shares authorized,
218,490 shares issued and outstanding (218,490 at March 31, 2015)..........ccccceeeeieeereceieeeeeeee et 211,562 211,562
Common stock, no par value, 100,000,000 shares authorized, 22,717,735 shares issued
and outstanding (22,593,266 at March 31, 2015)..........ccccvrireeurermmrinereensereresseseresesseeesesesessesssesessesssessssssssessesssssessessssens 208,946 206,002
RELAINEI BAININGS.......covcveiieietieeeteteee ettt ettt e et aete st st ebe et et eseseebeseasssebeseesesebe s et ebese b ebessseebese st et ebeneetesese s etesesssetenses 1,066,064 1,020,155
Accumulated other COMPIENENSIVE IOSS............ccuiuiucuiieicrcieictce ettt s et ae s s aeseseaesesessseseanseseanaan (72,350) (74,994)
Total Universal Corporation Shar€hOlders EQUILY...........ccveeevereeiesteeiiseeeseeessese et sessessesssesbesssssssessssssssessssesssnssesens 1,414,222 1,362,725
Noncontrolling INtEreStS iN SUDSIAIAIES...........c.cucueieiieeieiciccec ettt ettt saebese st s ebe et ebesessebenesnsbenens 38,840 34,369
Total SNArENOIAEIS EUILY .....c.cuiveviiiteiiictctcectee ettt et st se bbb s s b e s aebeseaeseseseaesessseseaeseseseseseassessasseseanas 1,453,062 1,397,094
Total liabilities and ShareholdErS EUILY...........ccc.cvueuriiieieie ettt $ 2,232,797 $ 2,188,449

See accompanying notes.
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UNIVERSAL CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Fiscal Year Ended March 31,

(in thousands of dollars) 2016 2015 2014
Cash Flows From Operating Activities:
INEEITICOME ..ottt $ 118,148 $ 120461 $ 155,155
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided (used) by operating activities:
DIEOIECIALION ...ttt ettt 36,754 35,394 37,257
AMOTTIZBTON. ... 890 1,930 1,642
Provision for losses on advances and guaranteed loans to suppliers ... 815 3,734 6,705
INVENLOTY WHTE-AOWNS ..ottt bttt st n e 11,899 18,612 7,654
Stock-based COMPENSALION EXPENSE ......c.crvrueuirereeierireeteesisie sttt et e e e e bt b s st be e sesbeneseenas 5,206 6,230 6,278
Foreign currency remeasurement 10ss (gain), net ... 22,517 28,836 14,322
DEfEITEH INCOME TAXES. .....cveeureeieieieieieieieieie e ieie et s bbbt ae b e bbb et e b b et e b e b et e b e bt e b e bt e b e bbb ebates 15,046 (13,662) (2,176)
Equity in net income of unconsolidated affiliates, net of dividends...........cocoeverreeenneieinccnineene 156 (1,075) 3,420
Gain on favorable outcome of excise tax casein Brazil ................... — (12,676) (81,619)
Fair value gain upon acquisition of partner'sinterest in joint VENTUre ...........cocoveeeerreenenesenineneens (3,390) — —
Restructuring and impai MMENE COSES.........cueuirururiiriririeerireee ettt ebe st sb e st e e b snsnenens 2,389 4,890 6,746
12,314 (9,272) 2,251
Changes in operating assets and liabilities, net:
Accounts and NOLES FECEIVANIE..........couiueuiirieieieeee ettt (2,806) 49,414 (89,536)
Inventories and other assets.. (7,370) 37,751 (47,492)
[NICOMIE LAXES......cueetesieetei ettt ettt bbbt e b st b bt e b et e b bt ee e b et s b e bt st b e b e e e et et s ebeben (1,503) 4,790 11,391
Accounts payable and other accrued liabilitieS..........oeiriiiirreeee e (13,678) (63,257) (27,345)
Customer advances and deposits............ (13,796) 14,397 (8,156)
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 183,591 226,497 (3,503)
Cash Flows From Investing Activities:
Purchase of property, plant and eQUIPMENT ...t (47,153) (58,385) (45,849)
Purchase of partner'sinterest in joint venture, net of cash held by the business............cccccocveinneens (5,964) — —
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and eqQUIPMENT ...........c.eiirreiirreereereree e 2,982 4,522 2,746
OLNEY, NMEL ...ttt ettt (796) (141) 1,033
Net cash used by INVEStING ACHIVILIES. ..o s (50,931) (54,004) (42,070)
Cash Flows From Financing Activities:
Issuance (repayment) of SNOrt-term debt, NEL.........ccoovreiirieee s 4,880 2,618 (43,727)
1SSUBNCE OF [ONG-LEIMN AEDL ...t — 370,000 175,000
Repayment of long-term debi.................... — (356,250) (211,250)
Dividends paid to NONCONEIOIING INTEIESES.......c.covrueuierireeereeeiee et (4,449) (4,183) (1,971)
1SSUANCE OF COMMION SLOCK ......oviiiiiii bbb s — 187 457
Repurchase of convertible perpetual preferred stock .. — (1,497) —
REPUIChase Of COMIMON SLOCK........c..cutuirirueiiririeienirieie sttt st sn s — (31,227) (24,145)
Dividends paid on convertible perpetual preferred Stock........ ..o (14,748) (14,824) (24,850)
Dividends paid on common stock .. (47,389) (47,337) (46,721)
Debt iSSUANCE COSES @NA OLNEN .......uiiiiieicieie ittt — (3,621) (875)
Net cash used by finaNCING @CHIVITIES..........c.cceuieieiereeeeee ettt (61,706) (86,134) (158,082)
Effect of exchange rate Changes 0N Cas..........ccoiiiiiiiii s (290) (1,108) (677)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and €ash EQUIVAIENES .............cvceveeveeieeiceeeeceee et 70,664 85,251 (204,332)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning Of YEAI ........c.ccieieiriiiieicic e 248,783 163,532 367,864
Cash and Cash Equivalents at ENd 0f YEAI...........cccvceieiecvceee ettt enens $ 319,447 $ 248,783 $ 163,532
Supplemental information—cash paid for:
$ 15704 $ 19,184 $ 25,116
$ 38732 $ 46,044 $ 65,511

See accompanying notes.

38



UNIVERSAL CORPORATION

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

(in thousands of dollars)

Fiscal Year Ended March 31, 2016

Balance at beginning of YEar ...........ccocveeiesceieeceeeeeeee e
Changes in preferred and common stock
Accrual of stock-based compensation

Withholding of shares from stock-based compensation for
grantee income taxes

Dividend equivalents on restricted stock units (RSUs).........
Changes in retained earnings
NELINCOME ..ottt

Cash dividends declared

Series B 6.75% convertible perpetual preferred stock
($67.50 PO SNAIE) ..ot eseeneeeenieans

Common stock ($2.10 per Share) ........ccoeeveeerereeeerrereneens

Dividend equivalents on restricted stock units (RSUs).........
Other comprehensive income (10ss)

Foreign currency translation, net of incometaxes................
Foreign currency hedge, net of income taxes..............c..c......

Interest rate hedge, net of income taxes

Pension and other postretirement benefit plans, net of
INCOME LAXES.......cocvveesciiii et

Other changes in noncontrolling interests

Dividends paid to noncontrolling shareholders.....................

Balance at end Of YEar .........cccceveeeereeieeecteeces e

Universal Corporation Shareholders

SeriesB
6.75% Accumulated
Convertible Other
Perpetual Comprehensive Non- Total
Preferred Common Retained Income controlling  Shareholders
Stock Stock Earnings (Loss) Interests Equity
$ 211562 $ 206,002 $ 1,020,155 $ (74994) $ 34369 $ 1,397,094
— 5,206 — — — 5,206
— (2,940) — — — (2,940)
— 678 — — — 678
— — 109,016 — 9,132 118,148
— — (14,748) — — (14,748)
— — (47,681) — — (47,681)
— — (678) — — (678)
— — — 4,146 (212) 3,934
— — — 2,509 — 2,509
— — — (5,015) — (5,015)
_ — — 1,004 — 1,004
— — — — (4,449) (4,449)
$ 211562 $ 208946 $ 1,066,064 $ (72,350) $ 38840 $ 1,453,062
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UNIVERSAL CORPORATION

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY—(Continued)

Universal Corporation Shareholders

SeriesB
6.75% Accumulated
Convertible Other
Perpetual Comprehensive Non- Total
Preferred Common Retained Income controlling  Shareholders
(in thousands of dollars) Stock Stock Earnings (Loss) Interests Equity
Fiscal Year Ended March 31, 2015
Balance at beginning Of YEar..........cccouverviennieeereresee s $ 213023 $ 206,446 $ 993,093 $ (34332) $ 32662 $ 1,410,892
Changes in preferred and common stock
Repurchase of Series B 6.75% convertible perpetual
preferred StOCK .........ccucueecieeeee e (1,461) (1,461)
I ssuance of COMMON SLOCK ........c.oveererierrerereeeeererenseeererensenenes — 187 — — — 187
Repurchase of common StOCK .............ccceeveeeeeeeeeieeeeeeenne — (6,439) — — — (6,439)
Accrual of stock-based compensation ............cccccevciiennnnne. — 6,230 — — — 6,230
Withholding of shares from stock-based compensation for
grantee iNCOME taXES..........ccceveueeererererereeeerese e — (1,076) — — — (1,076)
Dividend equivalents on restricted stock units (RSUS) .......... — 654 — — — 654
Changes in retained earnings
NELINCOME. ...t — — 114,608 — 5,853 120,461
Cash dividends declared
Series B 6.75% convertible perpetual preferred stock
($67.50 PEF SNAE)........coeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeseee e eeeseee e — — (14,824) — — (14,824)
Common stock ($2.06 Per Share).............oo.ovvvereveesevrenn. — — (47,244) — — (47,244)
Repurchase of Series B 6.75% convertible perpetual
Preferred StOCK .........cvvviviceiececteeces et (36) (36)
Repurchase of common StOCK ..............coveveeeeeeveeeeeeeeeeeeenns — — (24,788) — — (24,788)
Dividend equivalents on restricted stock units (RSUS).......... — — (654) — — (654)
Other comprehensive income (10ss)
Foreign currency translation, net of income taxes.................. — — — (22,662) 37 (22,625)
Foreign currency hedge, net of incometaxes.............c.cc........ — — — (2,603) — (2,603)
Interest rate hedge, net of iNCOMe taxes..............oo.covvevveenne. — — — (1,374) — (1,374)
Pension and other postretirement benefit plans, net of
INCOMETAKES........ceevcreeecetetee ettt saeassenan — — — (14,023) — (14,023)
Other changes in noncontrolling interests
Dividends paid to noncontrolling shareholders...................... — — — — (4,183) (4,183)
Balance at end Of YEar ............cocovcveeveeerieceeeeee s $ 211562 $ 206,002 $ 1,020,155 $ (74994) $ 34369 $ 1,397,094
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UNIVERSAL CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY—(Continued)

Universal Corporation Shareholders

SeriesB
6.75% Accumulated
Convertible Other
Perpetual Comprehensive Non- Total
Preferred Common Retained Income controlling  Shareholders
(in thousands of dollars) Stock Stock Earnings (Loss) Interests Equity
Fiscal Year Ended March 31, 2014
Balance at beginning Of Year ...........ccccvvveveennieenenseeesesee s $ 213023 $ 202579 $ 918509 $ (75540) $ 29,086 $ 1,287,657
Changes in preferred and common stock
Issuance of commOoN SLOCK ............cceeeeverievecreeiieree e — 457 — — — 457
Repurchase of common SLOCK............ccoveveveeieereeeieesees s — (2,049) — — — (2,049)
Accrual of stock-based compensation.............ccccceceveeveveveunnene. — 6,278 — — — 6,278
Withholding of shares from stock-based compensation for
grantee iNCOMETAXES..........ceeeverereeeeereeeeereseeesee e eesaeseeees — (1,410) — — — (1,410)
Dividend equivalents on restricted stock units (RSUS)........... — 591 — — — 591
Changes in retained earnings
NELINCOME ..ottt — — 149,009 — 6,146 155,155
Cash dividends declared
Series B 6.75% convertible perpetua preferred stock
($67.50 Per ShAr€) ........cvveeereiirereriisiersesssessessae e — — (14,850) — — (24,850)
Common stock ($2.02 per Share) ..........cceeeeveveeveeeieeesenens — — (46,888) — — (46,888)
Repurchase of common StOCK.............coveveveeeevieeeieeiereee s — — (12,096) — — (12,096)
Dividend equivalents on restricted stock units (RSUS)........... — — (591) — — (591)
Other comprehensive income (10ss)
Foreign currency trandation, net of incometaxes.................. — — — 7,079 (599) 6,480
Foreign currency hedge, net of income taxes..............cccccuu.... — — — 1,624 — 1,624
Interest rate hedge, net of incometaxes..........oeveveeveereevennne. — — — 483 — 483
Pension and other postretirement benefit plans, net of
INCOME LAXES.......vueeveiereieeeieseie e ssessse e sensessesennens — — — 32,022 — 32,022
Other changes in noncontrolling interests
Dividends paid to noncontrolling shareholders....................... — — — — (1,971) (1,971)
Balance at end Of YEAr ... $ 213023 $ 206,446 $ 993,093 $ (34332) $ 32662 $ 1,410,892
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UNIVERSAL CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY—(Continued)

Fiscal Year Ended March 31,

2016 2015 2014
Preferred Shares Outstanding:
Series B 6.75% Convertible Perpetual Preferred Stock:
Balance at beginning Of YEaI...........cc.ooiiiiiiiiceeeeeeee ettt snannn 218,490 219,999 219,999
Issuance of convertible perpetual preferred SOCK ..........ooevieeeeeeceeeeeeee e — — —
Repurchase of convertible perpetual preferred StOCK.............voiiiiiieieceeeee e — (1,509) —
BalanCe at €N OF YEAN .........ccooiiiieiiceeec e nnnn 218,490 218,490 219,999
Common Shares Outstanding:
Balance at beginning Of YE&I............c.oociiiiieiceeeeceeeeeee et snanan 22,593,266 23,216,312 23,343,973
1SSUBNCE O COMMON SLOCK ...ttt ettt s s 124,469 96,947 110,825
RepUrchase 0f COMMON SLOCK ........ccc.coiiuiiiieice et as s seanaas — (719,993) (238,486)
BalanCe at €N OF YEAN .........ccoiiiiiiieeee e nnnn 22,717,735 22,593,266 23,216,312

See accompanying notes.
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UNIVERSAL CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(All dollar amounts are in thousands, except per share amounts or as otherwise noted.)

NOTE 1. NATURE OF OPERATIONS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Nature of Operations

Universal Corporation, which together with its subsidiaries is referred to herein as “ Universal” or the “ Company,” is the
leading global leaf tobacco supplier. The Company conducts business in over 30 countries, primarily in major tobacco-producing
regions of the world.

Consolidation

Theconsolidated financial statementsincludetheaccountsof Universal Corporationandall domesticandforeignsubsidiaries
inwhich the Company maintainsacontrolling financia interest. Control isgenerally determined based on avoting interest of greater
than 50%, such that Universal controls all significant corporate activities of the subsidiary. All significant intercompany accounts
and transactions are eliminated in consolidation.

The equity method of accounting is used for investments in companies where Universal Corporation has a voting interest
of 20% to 50%. These investments are accounted for under the equity method because Universal exercises significant influence
over those companies, but not control. The Company received dividends totaling $3.4 million in fiscal year 2016, $5.2 million in
fiscal year 2015, and $6.5 million in fiscal year 2014, from companies accounted for under the equity method. Investments where
Universal has a voting interest of less than 20% are not significant and are accounted for under the cost method. Under the cost
method, the Company recognizes earnings uponitsreceipt of dividendsto the extent they represent adistribution of retained earnings.

TheCompany's49% ownershipinterestin SocotabL.L.C. (“ Socotab™), aleading supplier of oriental tobaccoswith operations
located principally in Eastern Europe and Turkey, isthe primary investment accounted for under the equity method. Theinvestment
in Socotab is an important part of the Company's overall product and service arrangements with its major customers. As discussed
further bel ow, the Company reviewsthe carrying value of itsinvestmentsin unconsolidated affiliates on aregular basisand considers
whether any factors exist that might indicate an impairment in value that is other than temporary. At March 31, 2016, the Company
determined that no such factors existed with respect to theinvestment in Socotab. The Company, together with Socotab management,
regularly evaluates the outlook for the business, and an impairment charge could be recorded in a future period if it is determined
that the fair value of the investment isless than the carrying value and the decline in value is not temporary.

In fiscal year 2006, the Company deconsolidated its operations in Zimbabwe under accounting requirements that apply
under certain conditionsto foreign subsidiariesthat are subject to foreign exchange controlsand other government restrictions. Since
that time, the investment has been accounted for using the cost method, as required under the accounting guidance. The investment
inthe Zimbabwe operationswaszero at March 31, 2016 and 2015. The Company hasanet foreign currency translationlossassociated
with the Zimbabwe operations of approximately $7.2 million, which remains acomponent of accumulated other comprehensiveloss.
Asaregular part of itsreporting, the Company reviewsthe conditionsthat resulted in the deconsolidation of the Zimbabwe operations
to confirm that such accounting treatment is still appropriate. Dividends from the Zimbabwe operations are recorded in income in
the period received.

TheCompany holdslessthana100%financial interestin certain consolidated subsidiaries. Thenetincomeand shareholders
equity attributableto the noncontrolling interestsin these subsidiaries arereported on theface of the consolidated financial statements.
During fiscal years 2016, 2015, and 2014, there were no changesin the Company’s ownership percentagein any of these subsidiaries.
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UNIVERSAL CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)

Investments in Unconsolidated Affiliates

The Company’s equity method investments and its cost method investments, which include its Zimbabwe operations, are
non-marketable securities. Universal reviewssuchinvestmentsfor impairment whenever eventsor changesin circumstancesindicate
that the carrying amount of an investment may not be recovered. For example, the Company would review such an investment for
impairment if the investee were to lose a significant customer, suffer alarge reduction in sales margins, experience a major change
in its business environment, or undergo any other significant changein its normal business. In assessing the recoverability of equity
or cost method investments, the Company followsthe applicabl e accounting guidancein determining thefair value of theinvestments.
In most cases, thisinvolvestheuse of discounted cash flow models(Level 3 of thefair value hierarchy under the accounting guidance).
If thefair value of an equity or cost method investeeisdetermined to belower thanitscarrying value, animpairment | ossisrecogni zed.
Thedetermination of fair value using discounted cash flow model sis normally not based on observable market datafrom independent
sources and therefore requires significant management judgment with respect to estimates of future operating earnings and the
selection of an appropriate discount rate. The use of different assumptions could increase or decrease estimated future operating
cash flows, and the discounted value of those cash flows, and therefore could increase or decrease any impairment charge related to
these investments.

Initsconsolidated statements of income, the Company reportsits proportional share of earnings of unconsolidated affiliates
accounted for on the equity method based on the pretax earnings of those affiliates, as permitted under the applicable accounting
guidance. All applicableforeign and U.S. income taxes are provided on these earnings and reported as a component of consolidated
incometax expense. For unconsolidated affiliateslocated inforeign jurisdictions, repatriation of the Company’s share of the earnings
through dividends is assumed in determining consolidated income tax expense.

The following table provides areconciliation of (1) equity in the pretax earnings of unconsolidated affiliates, as reported
in the consolidated statements of income to (2) equity in the net income of unconsolidated affiliates, net of dividends, as reported
in the consolidated statements of cash flows for the fiscal years ended March 31, 2016, 2015, and 2014:

Fiscal Year Ended March 31,

2016 2015 2014
Equity in pretax earnings reported in the consolidated statements of income..................... $ 5422 $ 7137 % 3,897
Less: EQUItY iNTNCOME TAXES.........cecueeireiereeieeeteeiere e et re et e etesaeseebeseebesbe s sbesnenssrensesens (2,156) (834 (809)
EQUILY TN NELINCOME ..ottt sttt sneaesre s ene 3,266 6,303 3,088
Less: Dividends received oninvestments™ ... (3.422) (5.228) (6,508)
Equity in net income, net of dividends, reported in the consolidated statements of cash
FLOWUS ..t bbb $ (156) $ 1075 $ (3,420)

@ In accordance with the applicable accounting guidance, dividends received from unconsolidated affiliates accounted for on the equity method that represent a
return on capital (i.e., areturn of earnings on acumulative basis) are presented as operating cash flows in the consolidated statements of cash flows.

Earnings Per Share

The Company calculates basic earnings per share based on earnings available to common sharehol ders after payment of
dividends on the Company’s Series B 6.75% Convertible Perpetual Preferred Stock. The calculation uses the weighted average
number of common shares outstanding during each period. Diluted earnings per share is computed in a similar manner using the
weighted average humber of common shares and dilutive potential common shares outstanding. Dilutive potential common shares
are outstanding dilutive stock options and stock appreciation rights that are assumed to be exercised, unvested restricted stock units
and performance share awards that are assumed to be fully vested and paid out in shares of common stock, and shares of convertible
perpetual preferred stock that are assumed to be converted when the effect is dilutive. In periods when the effect of the convertible
perpetual preferred stock isdilutive and these shares are assumed to be converted into common stock, dividends paid on the preferred
stock are excluded from the calculation of diluted earnings per share.

Calculations of earnings per share for the fiscal years ended March 31, 2016, 2015, and 2014, are provided in Note 3.
Cash and Cash Equivalents
All highly liquidinvestmentswith amaturity of threemonthsor lessat thetime of purchase are classified ascash equivalents.



UNIVERSAL CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)

Advances to Suppliers

In many sourcing origins where the Company operates, it provides agronomy services and seasona advances of seed,
fertilizer, and other suppliesto tobacco farmersfor crop production, or makes seasonal cash advancesto farmersfor the procurement
of those inputs. These advances are short term, are repaid upon delivery of tobacco to the Company, and are reported in advances
to suppliers in the consolidated balance sheets. In severa origins, the Company has made long-term advances to tobacco farmers
to finance curing barns and other farm infrastructure. In some years, due to low crop yields and other factors, individual farmers
may not deliver sufficient volumes of tobacco to fully repay their seasonal advances, and the Company may extend repayment of
those advances into future crop years. The long-term portion of advancesisincluded in other noncurrent assetsin the consolidated
balance sheets. Both the current and the long-term portions of advances to suppliers are reported net of allowances recorded when
the Company determines that amounts outstanding are not likely to be collected. Short-term and long-term advances to suppliers
totaled approximately $134 million at March 31, 2016, and $156 million at March 31, 2015. Therelated valuation allowancestotaled
$29 million at March 31, 2016, and $35 million a March 31, 2015, and were estimated based on the Company’s historical 1oss
information and crop projections. The allowances were increased by net provisions for estimated uncollectible amounts of
approximately $0.8 millioninfiscal year 2016, $3.7 millioninfisca year 2015, and $5.5 millioninfiscal year 2014. These provisions
are included in selling, general, and administrative expenses in the consolidated statements of income. Interest on advances is
recognized in earnings upon thefarmers’ delivery of tobacco in payment of principal and interest. Advanceson which interest accrual
had been discontinued totaled approximately $11 million at March 31, 2016, and $15 million at March 31, 2015.

Inventories

Tobacco inventories are valued at the lower of cost or market. Raw materials primarily consist of unprocessed |eaf tobacco,
which isclearly identified by type and grade at the time of purchase. The Company tracks the costs associated with thistobacco in
the final product lots, and maintains this identification through the time of sale. This method of cost accounting isreferred to asthe
specific cost or specific identification method. The predominant cost component of the Company’s inventories is the cost of the
unprocessed tobacco. Direct and indirect processing costs related to these raw materials are capitalized and allocated to inventory
in asystematic manner. The Company does not capitalize any interest or sales-related costsin inventory. Freight costs are recorded
in cost of goods sold. Other inventories consist primarily of seed, fertilizer, packing materials, and other supplies, and are valued
principally at the lower of average cost or market.

Recoverable Value-Added Tax Credits

In many foreign countries, the Company’slocal operating subsidiaries pay significant amounts of value-added tax (“VAT")
on purchases of unprocessed and processed tobacco, crop inputs, packing materials, and various other goods and services. In some
countries, VAT is anational tax, and in other countriesit is assessed at the state level. Items subject to VAT vary from jurisdiction
tojurisdiction, as do the rates at which thetax is assessed. When tobacco is sold to customersin the country of origin, the operating
subsidiaries generally collect VAT on those sales. The subsidiaries are normally permitted to offset their VAT payments against the
collections and remit only the incremental VAT collections to the tax authorities. When tobacco is sold for export, VAT is normally
not assessed. In countries where tobacco sales are predominately for export markets, VAT collections generated on downstream
sales are often not sufficient to fully offset the subsidiaries’ VAT payments. In those situations, unused VAT credits can accumul ate.
Some jurisdictions have procedures that allow companies to apply for refunds of unused VAT credits from the tax authorities, but
therefund process often takes an extended period of time, and it is not uncommon for refund applicationsto be challenged or rejected
in part on technical grounds. Other jurisdictions may permit companies to sall or transfer unused VAT credits to third parties in
privatetransactions, although approval for such transactions must normally be obtained from thetax authorities, limitson theamounts
that can be transferred may beimposed, and the proceeds realized may be heavily discounted from the face value of the credits. Due
to these factors, local operating subsidiaries in some countries can accumulate significant balances of VAT credits over time. The
Company reviews these balances on a regular basis and records valuation allowances on the credits to reflect amounts that are not
expected to be recovered, as well as discounts anticipated on credits that are expected to be sold or transferred. At March 31, 2016
and 2015, the aggregate balances of recoverable tax credits held by the Company’s subsidiaries totaled approximately $52 million
and $60 million, respectively, and the related val uation allowances total ed approximately $19 million and $23 million, respectively.
The net balances are reported in other current assets and other noncurrent assets in the consolidated balance sheets.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Depreciation of plant and equipment is based upon historical cost and the estimated useful lives of the assets. Depreciation
is calculated primarily using the straight-line method. Buildings include tobacco processing and blending facilities, offices, and
warehouses. M achinery and equi pment consists of processing and packing machinery and transport, office, and computer equipment.
Estimated useful lives range as follows: buildings - 15 to 40 years; processing and packing machinery - 3 to 11 years; transport
equipment - 3to 10 years; and office and computer equipment - 3to 10 years. Where applicableand material in amount, the Company
capitalizes related interest costs during periods that property, plant and equipment are being constructed or made ready for service.
No interest was capitalized in fiscal years 2016, 2015, or 2014.
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UNIVERSAL CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)

Goodwill and Other Intangibles

Goodwill and other intangibles principally consist of the excess of the purchase price of acquired companies over the fair
value of the net assets. Goodwill is carried at the lower of cost or fair value. Accounting Standards Codification Topic 350 (“ASC
350") permits companies to base their initial assessments of potential goodwill impairment on qualitative factors, and the Company
elected to use that approach at March 31, 2016 and 2015. Those factors did not indicate any potential impairment of the Company's
recorded goodwill.

Reporting units are distinct operating subsidiaries or groups of subsidiaries that typically compose the Company’s business
in a specific country or location. Goodwill is allocated to reporting units based on the country or location to which a specific
acquisitionrelates, or by allocation based on expected future cash flowsif the acquisition rel atesto more than one country or location.
The mgjority of the Company’s goodwill relates to its reporting unit in Brazil. Significant adverse changes in the operations or
estimated future cash flowsfor areporting unit with recorded goodwill could result in animpairment charge. No chargesfor goodwill
impairment were recorded in fiscal years 2016, 2015, or 2014.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

The Company reviews long-lived assets for impairment whenever events, changes in business conditions, or other
circumstances provide an indication that such assets may be impaired. Potential impairment is initially assessed by comparing
management’s undiscounted estimates of future cash flows from the use or disposition of the assets to their carrying value. If the
carrying value exceeds the undiscounted cash flows, an impairment charge is recorded to reduce the carrying value of the asset to
its fair value determined in accordance with the accounting guidance. In many cases, thisinvolves the use of discounted cash flow
model sthat are not based on observable market datafromindependent sources(L evel 3 of thefair valuehierarchy under theaccounting
guidance). No significant charges for impairment of long-lived assets were recorded during fiscal years 2016, 2015, or 2014.

Income Taxes

The Company provides deferred income taxes on temporary differences between the book and tax basis of its assets and
liabilities. Those differences arise principally from employee benefit accruals, depreciation, deferred compensation, undistributed
earnings of unconsolidated affiliates, undistributed earnings of foreign subsidiaries, goodwill, and valuation allowances on farmer
advances and value-added tax credits.

Fair Values of Financial Instruments

Thefair value of the Company’s long-term debt, disclosed in Note 6, approximates the carrying amount since the variable
interest rates in the underlying credit agreement reflect the market interest rates that were available to the Company at March 31,
2016. In periodswhen fixed-rate obligations are outstanding, fair values are estimated using market priceswhere they are available
and discounted cash flow models based on current incremental borrowing rates for similar classes of borrowers and borrowing
arrangements. Thefair values of interest rate swap agreements designated as cash flow hedges and used to fix the variable benchmark
rate on outstanding long-term debt are determined separately and recorded in other long-term liabilities. Except for interest rate
swaps and forward foreign currency exchange contractsthat are discussed below, thefair values of all other assets and liabilitiesthat
qualify as financial instruments approximate their carrying amounts.

Derivative Financial Instruments

The Company recognizesall derivatives on the balance sheet at fair value. Interest rate swaps and forward foreign currency
exchange contracts are used from time to time to manage interest rate risk and foreign currency risk. The Company entersinto such
contracts only with counterparties of good standing. The credit exposure related to non-performance by the counterparties and the
Company isconsidered in determining thefair values of the derivatives, and the effect hasnot been material to thefinancial statements
or operations of the Company. Additional disclosures related to the Company’s derivatives and hedging activities are provided in
Note 8.

Translation and Remeasurement of Foreign Currencies

Thefinancia statements of foreign subsidiaries having thelocal currency asthe functional currency aretranslated into U.S.
dollars using exchange rates in effect at period end for assets and liabilities and average exchange rates applicable to each reporting
period for results of operations. Adjustmentsresulting from trandation of financial statements are reflected as a separate component
of other comprehensive income or loss.
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Thefinancial statements of foreign subsidiaries having the U.S. dollar as the functional currency, with certain transactions
denominated in alocal currency, are remeasured into U.S. dollars. The remeasurement of local currency amountsinto U.S. dollars
creates remeasurement gains and losses that are included in earnings as acomponent of selling, general, and administrative expense.
The Company recognized net remeasurement losses of $22.5 millioninfiscal year 2016, $28.8 millionin fiscal year 2015, and $14.3
millionin fiscal year 2014.

Foreign currency transactions and forward foreign currency exchange contracts that are not designated as hedges generate
gainsandlosseswhen they are settled or when they are marked to market under the prescribed accounting guidance. Thesetransaction
gains and losses are also included in earnings as a component of selling, general, and administrative expenses. The Company
recognized net foreign currency transaction gains of $8.0 millionin fiscal year 2016, net transaction gains of $17.7 millionin fiscal
year 2015, and net transaction losses of $6.0 million in fiscal year 2014.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue from the sale of tobacco is recognized when title and risk of lossis transferred to the customer and the earnings
process is complete. Substantially all sales revenue is recorded based on the physical transfer of products to customers. A large
percentage of the Company’s sales are to major multinational manufacturers of consumer tobacco products. The Company works
closely with those customers to understand and plan for their requirements for volumes, styles, and grades of |eaf tobacco from its
various growing regions, and extensive coordination is maintained on an ongoing basis to determine and satisfy their requirements
for physical shipment of processed tobacco. In most cases, customers request shipment within arelatively short period of time after
the tobacco is processed and packed. The customers also specify, in sales contracts and in shipping documents, the precise terms
for transfer of title and risk of loss for the tobacco. Customer returns and rejections are not significant, and the Company’s sales
history indicates that customer-specific acceptance provisions are consistently met upon transfer of title and risk of loss.

While most of the Company’s revenue consists of tobacco that is purchased from farmers, processed and packed in its
factories, and then sold to customers, some revenue is earned from processing tobacco owned by customers. These arrangements
usually exist in specific markets where the customers contract directly with farmersfor leaf production, and they have accounted for
less than 5% of total revenue on an annual basis through the fiscal year ended March 31, 2016. Processing and packing of leaf
tobacco is a short-duration process. Under normal operating conditions, raw tobacco that is placed into the production line exits as
processed and packed tobacco within one hour, and is then transported to customer-designated storage facilities. The revenue for
these servicesisrecognized when processing iscompleted, and the Company’ soperating history indicatesthat customer requirements
for processed tobacco are consistently met upon completion of processing.

Stock-Based Compensation

Share-based payments, such as grants of stock options, stock appreciation rights, restricted stock, restricted stock units, and
performance share awards, are measured at fair value and reported as expense in the financial statements over the requisite service
period. Additional disclosures related to stock-based compensation are included in Note 12.

Estimates and Assumptions

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles in the United States
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the financia statements and
accompanying notes. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Accounting Pronouncements
Pronouncements Recently Adopted

In November 2015, the Financia Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") issued A ccounting Standards Update No. 2015-17,
"Balance Sheet Classification of Deferred Taxes" ("ASU 2015-17"). ASU 2015-17 eliminates the current requirement for an entity
to separate deferred income tax liabilities and assets into current and noncurrent amountsin a classified balance sheet. ASU 2015-17
requires that deferred tax liabilities, deferred tax assets, and valuation allowances be classified as noncurrent in a classified balance
sheet. Early adoption of ASU 2015-17 is permitted, and the Company made the required balance sheet presentation change effective
for March 31, 2016 and all prior comparative periods.

Pronouncements to be Adopted in Future Periods

InMay 2014, theFA SB issued A ccounting StandardsU pdateNo. 2014-09, “ Revenuefrom Contractswith Customers” (“* ASU
2014-09"), which supersedes substantially all of the current revenue recognition guidance under U.S. generally accepted accounting
principles (“U.S. GAAP"). ASU 2014-09 was developed under a joint project with the International Accounting Standards Board
(“1ASB”) toimproveand converge the existing revenue recognition accounting guidancein U.S. GAAPand International Accounting
Standards. Under ASU 2014-09, the central underlying principle is to recognize revenues when promised goods or services are
transferred to customers at an amount determined by the consideration a company expects to receive for those goods or services.
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Theguidanceoutlinesafive-step processfor determining the amount and timing of revenueto berecognized fromthose arrangements.
It is more principles-based than the existing guidance under U.S. GAAP, and therefore is expected to require more management
judgment and involve more estimates than the current guidance. ASU 2014-09 is effective for annual periods beginning after
December 15, 2017, including all interim periodswithintheyear of adoption. Companiesareallowed to select betweentwotransition
methods: (1) afull retrospective transition method with the application of the new guidanceto each prior reporting period presented,
or (2) aretrospective transition method that recognizes the cumulative effect on prior periods at the date of adoption together with
additional footnote disclosures. Since the issuance of ASU 2014-09, the FASB hasissued several amendmentsto provide additional
supplemental guidance on certain aspects of the original pronouncement. Universal expects to adopt ASU 2014-09 and the related
supplemental amendments effective April 1, 2018, which isthe beginning of the fiscal year ending March 31, 2019. The Company
iscurrently evaluating theimpact that the adoption of ASU 2014-09 and therel ated amendmentswill haveonitsconsolidated financial
statements and has not made a decision on the method of adoption.

InApril 2015, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update No. 2015-03, “ Simplifying the Presentation of Debt Issuance
Costs’ (“ASU 2015-03"). ASU 2015-03 requires that debt issuance costs related to a recognized debt liability be presented in the
balance sheet as a direct deduction from the carrying amount of that debt liability, consistent with debt discounts. ASU 2015-03 is
effectivefor fiscal yearsbeginning after December 31, 2015. The Company will makethe required bal ance sheet presentation change
upon adoption of ASU 2015-03 effective for the quarter ending June 30, 2016, which is the first quarter of the fiscal year ending
March 31, 2017.

In July 2015, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update No. 2015-11, “Simplifying the Measurement of
Inventory” (“ASU 2015-11"). ASU 2015-11 requires that most inventory be measured at the lower of cost or net realizable value.
ASU 2015-11 definesnet realizable val ue asthe " estimated selling pricein the ordinary course of business, lessreasonabl e predictable
costs of completion, disposal, and transportation.” ASU 2015-11 is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 31, 2016.
The Company iscurrently evaluating theimpact that the adoption of ASU 2015-11 will have on its consolidated financial statements.
ASU 2015-11 will be applied prospectively after the date of adoption, as required by the guidance.

In January 2016, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update No. 2016-01 “Financial Instruments-Recognition and
Measurement of Financial Assets and Financia Liabilities” ("ASU 2016-01"). ASU 2016-01 requires all equity investmentsto be
measured at fair value with changesin the fair value recognized through net income (other than those accounted for under the equity
method of accounting or those that result in consolidation of the investee). This guidanceis effective for fiscal years beginning after
December 15, 2017. The Company is currently eval uating the impact that the adoption of ASU 2016-01 will have on its consolidated
financial statements.

In February 2016, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update No. 2016-02, “Leases (Topic 842)" (“ASU 2016-02).
ASU 2016-02 requires a lessee to recognize lease payment obligations as a lease liability and the corresponding right-of-use asset
as a leased asset in the balance sheet for the term of the lease. This guidance supersedes Topic 840 “Leases’ and is effective for
fiscal yearsbeginning after December 15, 2018. The Company will be required to adopt ASU 2016-02 effective April 1, 2019, which
isthe beginning of itsfiscal year ending March 31, 2020, and is currently evaluating the impact that the updated guidance will have
on its consolidated financial statements.

In March, 2016, the FA SB issued A ccounting Standards Update No. 2016-09, " Compensation - Stock Compensation (Topic
718)" ("ASU 2016-09"). ASU 2016-09 provides simplification for the accounting for employee stock-based payment transactions,
including the related income tax consequences, the classification of awards as either equity or liabilities, and the classification of
transactions in the statement of cash flows. The guidance is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2017. Early
adoption of ASU 2016-09 is permitted, and the Company expects to adopt the new guidance effective April 1, 2016, which is the
beginning of itsfiscal year ending March 31, 2017. The adoption of ASU 2016-09 is not expected to have a material impact on the
Company's consolidated financial statements.

Reclassifications

Certain prior year amounts have been reclassified to conform to the current year’s presentation.
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NOTE 2. RESTRUCTURING AND IMPAIRMENT COSTS

During the three fiscal years ended March 31, 2016, Universal recorded restructuring and impairment costs related to
various initiatives to adjust certain operations and reduce costs. For al three fiscal years, the restructuring and impairment costs
incurred primarily related to operationsthat are part of the Other Regions reportable segment of the Company'sflue-cured and burley
leaf tobacco operations.

Fiscal Year Ended March 31, 2016

In fiscal year 2016, the Company recorded restructuring and impairment costs totaling $2.4 million related to adecision to
significantly scale back its operationsin Zambia. Those costsincluded statutory employee termination benefits, impairment charges
related to outstanding balances on loans to farmers whose contracts were terminated as a result of the decision, and impairment
charges on certain property and equipment.

Fiscal Year Ended March 31, 2015

Infiscal year 2015, the Company recorded restructuring coststotaling $4.9 million, primarily related to downsizing certain
functionsat its operationsin Brazil and a decision to suspend its operationsin Argentina effective December 31, 2014. The decision
to discontinue the Argentina operations involved costs for employee termination benefits, as well as costs to exit the Company's
business arrangements with a supplier. Restructuring costs were al so incurred in connection with downsizing efforts at several other
locations around the Company.

Fiscal Year Ended March 31, 2014

Infiscal year 2014, the Company's operating subsidiary in Brazil closed afactory and centralized all tobacco processing
activitiesin its primary facility. In connection with this initiative, the Company incurred restructuring costs of approximately $4.0
million, including empl oyee termination benefits, coststo relocate personnel and equipment to the main facility, and lease exit costs
on the building that housed the closed operations. Additional restructuring costs of approximately $2.7 million were incurred in
connection with voluntary early retirement arrangements at several locations around the Company.

A summary of the restructuring and impairment costs incurred during the fiscal years ended March 31, 2016, 2015, and
2014, isasfollows:

Fiscal Years Ended March 31,

2016 2015 2014

RESEFUCTUNING COSES: ...ttt ae bbb se bt besaeneebenes
Employee termination DENEFITS.........ccccviveiiiieciieece et $ 1629 $ 4354 % 3,743
Other FrESITUCLUNING COSES......vcuiiviieieiieicieste ettt sa et st e et e s aeaesbe e enesnesesnens 96 536 3,003
1,725 4,890 6,746

IMPAITMENT COSES: ...viiiictisice ettt sttt se e st st ebe e sesbe e ebesaesesbeseesesaeneaaans
Farmer loans and property and eqQUIPMENL.............cccceiveieeieieeieee e 664 — —
Total restructuring and iMPaIrMENE COSES.........cvviiiieiereieee et ebens $ 2389 $ 4890 $ 6,746
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A reconciliation of the Company’s liability for employee termination benefits and other restructuring costs for fiscal years
2014 through 2016 is asfollows:

Employee
Termination
Benefits Other Costs Total
BalanCe at APril 1, 2013.......c.oucueeieceeeeeceeeeeeteee ettt ettt ettt ettt ettt bttt et erenans $ 382 3 — $ 382
Fiscal Year 2014 Activity:
COStS Charged 10 EXPENSE.........c.ciieiieieseeee ettt s r et ne b e ebenan 3,743 3,003 6,746
PAYIMENES......cocveveiis ittt s se st se et sn s s e e st s s et s e e s sns s snsneas (2,099) (2,843) (4,942)
2,026 160 2,186
Fiscal Year 2015 Activity:
COStS Charged 10 EXPENSE........ccveectiietecetetee ettt sttt st s r e be e besbeneebenan 4,354 536 4,890
Y007 01PN (5,684) (498) (6,182)
Balance at March 31, 2015........c.ouuruiureeerieireeereee e seieesseses s ses s ese s snesees 696 198 894
Fiscal Year 2016 Activity:
COStS Charged 10 EXPENSE........cvciiieiee ettt sttt se b st neebenan 1,629 96 1,725
PAYIMENES......c.eitiicieteircee ettt bbbttt (2,246) (92) (2,338)
Balance a March 31, 2016.........c.ceuviriieeiririeieieisieieee s sessieesesssssssse s sesssssssssssssnsnsas $ 79 $ 202 % 281

The majority of the restructuring liability at March 31, 2016 will be paid in the early part of fiscal year 2017. Universal
continually reviewsitsbusinessfor opportunitiesto realize efficiencies, reduce costs, and realignitsoperationsin responseto business

changes. The Company may incur additional restructuring costs in future periods as business changes occur and additional cost
savings initiatives are implemented.
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NOTE 3. EARNINGS PER SHARE
The following table sets forth the computation of basic and diluted earnings per share:

Fiscal Year Ended March 31,

(in thousands, except share and per share data) 2016 2015 2014

Basic Earnings Per Share

Numerator for basic earnings per share

Net income attributable to Universal Corporation ...............oocceeeeuceeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e eeee e $ 109,016 $ 114608 $ 149,009
Less: Dividends on convertible perpetual preferred StoCK ..........ccveeeieiieseie e (14,748) (14,824) (14,850)
Less: Cost in excess of carrying value on repurchases of convertible perpetual preferred stock .... — (36) —

Earnings available to Universal Corporation common shareholders for
calculation of basiC €arniNGS PEr SNAE..........ccccuieeeuieeeeeee ettt st sr e et e eaeenan 94,268 99,748 134,159

Denominator for basic earnings per share
Weighted average shares OULStANAING..........c.coueeeieiiiericecieee ettt b et see e s b e s e 22,683,290 23,035,920 23,238,978

BaSiC BAIMINGS PEF SNAIE ......c.cvvveveveveeceeeetetete ettt et ettt ettt sttt es st es et tees et sesnestasnsnnas $ 416 $ 433 $ 5.77

Diluted Earnings Per Share

Numerator for diluted earnings per share

Earnings available to Universal Corporation common shareholders..............occeevevicveceveerereeevenene. $ 94268 $ 99,748 $ 134,159
Add: Dividends on convertible perpetual preferred stock (if conversion assumed) ........................ 14,748 14,824 14,850
Add: Cost in excess of carrying value on repurchases of convertible perpetual preferred stock..... — 36 —

Earnings available to Universal Corporation common shareholders for
calculation of diluted earnings PEr SNAIE...........cocuiiuciiiece et st ae e 109,016 114,608 149,009

Denominator for diluted earnings per share

Weighted average shares OULStANTING..........c.coueieieieiieeiceceeetee ettt s be et see s s b s e 22,683,290 23,035,920 23,238,978
Effect of dilutive securities (if conversion or exercise assumed)
Convertible perpetual Preferred SLOCK ..ot 4,853,268 4,843,309 4,821,557
Employee share-based @Wards.............ccciiciceiece ettt re e 288,933 342,035 331,498
Denominator for diluted earnings PEr SNAIE.........ccciieeiiiee e enan 27,825,491 28,221,264 28,392,033
Diluted €arnings PEI SNATE...........c.c.cuiiiiiieeieiceeteee ettt e b et b et s s b s e s berennas $ 392 % 406 $ 5.25

For the fiscal years ended March 31, 2016, 2015, and 2014, the Company had the following potentially dilutive securities
(stock appreciation rights) outstanding that were not included in the computation of diluted earnings per share because their effect
would have been antidilutive:

Fiscal Year Ended March 31,

2016 2015 2014
Potentially dilUtiVE SECUITTIES ..........cccviveieieictsie ettt bbb ans 133,600 156,200 169,000
WEIGhtEd-AVErage EXEICISE PIICE......cveveeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeetseeeeee e seseessssese s s st sesssssssesesssssessssssnessssssnensnsssnnnnas $ 62.66 $ 61.83 $ 62.66
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NOTE 4. INCOME TAXES

The Company operatesin the United States and many foreign countries and is subject to the tax laws of many jurisdictions.
Changesintax lawsor theinterpretation of tax |aws can affect the Company’searnings, as can the resol ution of pending and contested
tax issues. The Company's consolidated effective income tax rateis affected by a number of factors, including the mix of domestic
and foreign earnings, the effect of exchange rate changes on deferred taxes, and the Company’s ability to utilize foreign tax credits.

Income Tax Expense

Income taxes for the fiscal years ended March 31, 2016, 2015, and 2014 consisted of the following:

Fiscal Year Ended March 31,

2016 2015 2014
Current
UNITEA SEALES ...ttt $ 5371 % 4126 $ 1,433
State and local 1,116 657 507
0T T ST 32,897 46,885 75,770
39,384 51,668 77,710
Deferred
O LT3 o[RS (- T 5,780 3,352 1,686
SEEE BNO TOCE ...ttt (445) 159 275
FOTEION ...ttt sttt ettt sttt e e be et ene b et be et ereebe st enenee 9,711 (17,173) (4,136)
15,046 (13,662) (2,175)
1o = OSSPSR $ 54430 $ 38,006 $ 75,535

Foreign taxes include U.S. tax expense on earnings of foreign subsidiaries. The Company has no undistributed earnings
of consolidated foreign subsidiaries that are classified as permanently reinvested.

Consolidated Effective Income Tax Rate

A reconciliation of the statutory U.S. federal rate to the Company’s effective income tax rate is as follows:

Fiscal Year Ended March 31,

2016 2015 2014
S = 010 Y = Q= (= 3 35.0% 35.0% 35.0%
State income taxes, net of federal PENEFit ... 0.3 0.3 0.2
Dividends received from deconsolidated operations...............cccceeeveeeeieieceeeserececeeeereneas (1.5) 1.3) (0.9)
Effect of exchange rate changes on deferred income taxes (1.6) (4.9) (2.0
Tax benefit arising from payment of a portion of afine by a subsidiary — (5.0) —
Other, including changes in liabilities recorded for uncertain tax positions............c.ccoceveee.. (0.7) (0.1) (0.6)
Effective INCOME TAX FAL .........cveeeiiereeieiieieie sttt 31.5% 24.0% 32.7%

During the first quarter of fiscal year 2015, the Company recorded a consolidated income tax benefit of $8 million arising
from the ability of its subsidiary, Deltafina S.p.A., to pay asignificant portion of afine and related interest chargesin Italy that were
settled during that quarter following the unsuccessful appeal of a case involving anti-competitive activities in the Italian tobacco
market. Deltafinaand Universal Corporation were jointly liable for the fine and interest charges. The Company’sinitial accrual of
theamountsimposed in September 2011 assumed that the entire obligation woul d be paid by Universal Corporation dueto uncertainty
with respect to Deltafina’sfinancial capacity to bear any significant portion of the cost upon the eventual settlement and to uncertainty
as to when the payment would be made. Deltafina ultimately was able to assume responsibility for approximately $30 million of
the total $53 million obligation for the fine and interest when those amounts were paid. Although the portion of the fine paid by
Deltafina was not deductible for income tax purposesin Italy, it reduced the subsidiary’s cumulative undistributed earnings and the
associated consolidated tax liability, resulting in the $8 million benefit in the Company's consolidated income tax provision. This
discrete item reduced the effective income tax rate for fiscal year 2015 by 5.0%.
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Components of Income Before Income Taxes

The U.S. and foreign components of income before income taxes were as follows:

Fiscal Year Ended March 31,

2016 2015 2014
UNITEA SEAEES ......vcveeiiieieies ettt b e e et e s e s s ese e st esase e sesenesensenann $ 37877 $ 27,181 $ 9,156
= o T 134,701 131,286 221,534
LI, = SRS $ 172578 $ 158,467 $ 230,690
Deferred Income Tax Liabilities and Assets
Significant components of deferred tax liabilities and assets were as follows:
March 31,
2016 2015
Liabilities
FOreign WithNOIJING tAXES..........c.eieeeeceeeeeeeceeeee et ettt ettt ae st assestese et e tesenssestesnasseetennseesesnen $ 39,770 $ 34,339
UNAISLITDULEA BAININGS.........ecuiiiiicteeiceectcee ettt sttt sa et st e e besaebe st e seebe st ebesbeseebe s esesbensesessesesrensetesseneanan 19,553 14,510
(€ ToToo 11/ || OSSPSR 30,851 30,851
o L0113 USRS 10,424 8,922
Total deferred tax @i lItIES. .........ucureereeerrer ettt sea et $ 100,598 $ 88,622
Assets
EMPIOYEE DENEFIt PIANS.......cocvceeeeececececectcecect ettt ettt ettt ae st et ae st a s ae s b e s sessssaesessseaesessaesesessssansesesesens $ 43362 $ 50,977
RESEIVES BNA BCCTUBIS ...ttt bbb bbb bbb 12,911 14,039
DEFEITEO INCOME. ... .ottt ettt bbb bbb bbb bbb bbb bbb bbb bbb bbb bbb bbbt bbb ee 3,938 5,387
Currency trandation 10sses of foreign SUDSIAIANES..........c.ccouiiceeciiicee e e 9,939 12,167
Local currency exchange |osses of foreign SUDSIAIANES...........cccceeiiriciieiecccecee e 3,597 10,674
Foreign tax Credit CarryfOrWaIT .........cccuiciiiiieeiiceee ettt ettt sttt ete st nsebe st ebesre s ebesaeneenan 4,664 —
o Lo L1 = TR 16,546 9,607
TOtEl AEFEITEO TBX BSSELS.......cueuieiiiieiciiiriei ettt s e 94,957 102,851
VAlUBLION @IOWANCE........ceeuiieietecteeteete ettt ettt sttt sttt sbe e be st ese s b et ebe et eseebensebeesessebensesestensetenseseean — (629)
INEE AEFEITEO TAX BSSELS. ... veereeeereeeeeeeeseeeeseeseseesesseseseeseseesesessesseseeeeneeeseesessesesesseseses s et srntassnssssneessennseens $ 94,957 $ 102,222

AtMarch 31, 2016, the Company had no material net operatinglosscarryforwardsin either itsdomestic or foreign operations.
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Combined Income Tax Expense (Benefit)

The combined income tax expense (benefit) allocable to continuing operations, other comprehensive income, and direct
adjustments to shareholders' equity was as follows:

Fiscal Year Ended March 31,

2016 2015 2014
CONtiNUING OPEFAHIONS.........cccoveveeeeeteteeeseteteeeesetee et e e se s et etesessestesesseetesesessstesenssessessnsasesens $ 54,430 $ 38,006 $ 75,535
Other COMPreneNSIVE INCOME...........ciiuiiciiicicteee ettt st sae e baenas 1,423 (21,900) 22,190
Direct adjustments to shareholders' @QUILY ..........ccccevveeiieeieieceseesee e (805) (932 (972)
TOML ...ttt ettt b e et b et bt eteebe e ebe et eae b et etesbeneereteaens $ 55,048 $ 15174 % 96,753

Uncertain Tax Positions

A reconciliation of the beginning and ending balance of the gross liability for uncertain tax positions for the fiscal years
ended March 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014, is as follows:

Fiscal Year Ended March 31,

2016 2015 2014

Liability for uncertain tax positions, beginning of YEar ...........cccccovveeeeeseeseeeeeeeeens $ 2894 $ 3809 $ 5,385
Additions:

Related to tax positions for the CUITENt YEAN ...........cccecveeieeececeeceee et 98 272 194

Related to tax poSitions fOr Prior YEArS.........coceiueeecieeeeeeceee ettt — — 168
Reductions:

Dueto lapses of statutes of IMItatioNS...........c.cceeeveiriciciiieececee et (215) (478) (1,776)

Related to tax poSitions fOr Prior YEArS.........coceiueeecieeeeeeceee ettt — (143) —

Effect of currency rat€ MOVEMENL.............cceiiieeieieeiceese et erennenea (370) (566) (162)
Liability for uncertain tax positions, €nNd Of YE............cccceevevveieeieieiceceeseee et sienens $ 2407 $ 2894 % 3,809

Of thetotal liability for uncertain tax positions at March 31, 2016, approximately $1.8 million could have an effect on the
consolidated effectivetax rateif the tax benefitsarerecognized. Theliability for uncertain tax positionsincludes $0.1 million related
to tax positions for which it is reasonably possible that the amounts could change significantly before March 31, 2017. Thisamount
reflects a possible decrease in the liability for uncertain tax positions that could result from the completion and resolution of tax
audits and the expiration of open tax yearsin various tax jurisdictions.

The Company recognizes accrued interest related to uncertain tax positions as interest expense, and it recognizes penalties
asacomponent of income tax expense. Amounts accrued or reversed for interest and penaltieswere not material for any of thefiscal
years 2014 through 2016, and liahilities recorded for interest and penalties at March 31, 2016 and 2015 also were not material.

Universal and itssubsidiariesfileaU.S. federal consolidated incometax return, aswell asreturnsin several U.S. statesand
anumber of foreign jurisdictions. Asof March 31, 2016, the Company's earliest open tax year for U.S. federal income tax purposes
wasitsfiscal year ended 2013. Open tax yearsin state and foreign jurisdictions generally range from 3 to 6 years.
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NOTE 5. CREDIT FACILITIES
Bank Credit Agreements

In December 2014, the Company entered into a senior unsecured bank credit agreement that replaced its previous short-
term and long-term borrowing facilities, consolidating and extending the maturities of those facilities. The agreement established a
$430 million five-year revolving credit facility, along with a $150 million five-year term loan and a $220 million seven-year term
loan. Borrowings under the revolving credit facility bear interest at avariable rate based on either (1) LIBOR plusamargin that is
based on the Company's credit measures or (2) the higher of the federal fundsrate plus 0.5%, primerate, or one-month LIBOR plus
1.0%, each plusamargin. Inaddition to interest, the Company pays afacility fee on the revolving credit facility. No amountswere
outstanding under the revolving credit facility at March 31, 2016. The credit agreement provides for an expansion of the facility
under certain conditions to allow additional borrowings of up to $100 million. Additional information related to the term loansis
provided in Note 6. The credit agreement includes financial covenants that require the Company to maintain a minimum level of
tangible net worth and observe limits on debt levels. The Company was in compliance with those covenants at March 31, 2016.

Short-Term Credit Facilities

The Company maintains short-term uncommitted lines of credit in the United States and in anumber of foreign countries.
Foreign borrowings are generaly in the form of overdraft facilities at rates competitive in the countries in which the Company
operates. Generally, each foreign line is available only for borrowings related to operations of a specific country. As of March 31,
2016 and 2015, approximately $66 million and $60 million, respectively, were outstanding under these uncommitted lines of credit.
Thewel ghted-average interest rates on short-term borrowings outstanding as of March 31, 2016 and 2015, were approximately 2.2%
and 2.7%, respectively. At March 31, 2016, the Company and its consolidated affiliates had unused uncommitted lines of credit
totaling approximately $306 million.

NOTE 6. LONG-TERM DEBT
The Company's long-term debt at March 31, 2016 and 2015 consisted of the following:

March 31,
2016 2015
SENIOr DANK LEIM IOBNS ...ttt b bbb s bbb $ 370,000 $ 370,000
QLI L= o 1U £ = 4 o 1 0T FU OO 370,000 370,000
LESS: CUITENE POITION......ccvieitieteieteetetee ettt ettt e et e e ebe st e st et et esesbeseebesaesssbensebeseessebe s esesbensebessenesteneeseseeneaee — —
LONGALEMM AEDL .......vviieeetce ettt ettt bttt se st s e st es e st esanasas s snnsasasnnann $ 370,000 $ 370,000

Asdiscussed in Note 5, the Company entered into abank credit agreement in December 2014 that established a$150 million
five-year term loan and a $220 million seven-year term loan. Both term loans were fully funded at closing, and the Company
concurrently repaid approximately $250 million aggregate principal amount on term loans outstanding under two previous bank
credit facilities and reduced its revolving credit borrowings by approximately $120 million. The term |oans require no amortization
and are prepayable without penalty prior to maturity. Under the credit agreement, both term loans bear interest at variable rates plus
amargin based on the Company's credit measures. However, following closing on the term loans, the Company entered into receive-
floating / pay-fixed interest rate swap agreements that convert the variable benchmark rate on both loans to a fixed rate over their
full termsto maturity. With the swap agreementsin place, the effective interest rate on the $150 million five-year loan and the $220
million seven-year |oan were 2.94% and 3.48%, respectively, at March 31, 2016 and 2015. The effective rates will change only if
a change in the Company's credit measures results in adjustments to the applicable credit spreads specified in the underlying loan
agreement. The $150 million five-year term loan maturesin fiscal year 2020, and the $220 million seven-year term |oan maturesin
fiscal year 2022.

In November 2014, the Company filed an undenominated universal shelf registration statement with the U.S. Securities
and Exchange Commission to provide for the future issuance of an undefined amount of additional debt or equity securities as
determined by the Company and offered in one or more prospectus supplements prior to issuance.

Disclosures about the fair value of long-term debt are provided in Note 9.
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NOTE 7. LEASES

The Company’s subsidiaries lease various production, storage, distribution, and other facilities, as well as vehicles and
equipment used in their operations. Some of the leases have options to extend the lease term at market rates. These arrangements
are classified as operating leases for accounting purposes. Rent expense on operating leasestotaled $14.7 millioninfiscal year 2016,
$15.8 millionin fiscal year 2015, and $18.2 million in fiscal year 2014. Future minimum payments under non-cancel able operating
leases total $10.3 millionin 2017, $7.1 million in 2018, $6.1 million in 2019, $4.8 million in 2020, $4.4 million in 2021, and $15.0
million after 2021.

NOTE 8. DERIVATIVES AND HEDGING ACTIVITIES

Universal is exposed to various risks in its worldwide operations and uses derivative financial instruments to manage two
specific types of risks — interest rate risk and foreign currency exchange rate risk. Interest rate risk has been managed by entering
into interest rate swap agreements, and foreign currency exchange rate risk has been managed by entering into forward foreign
currency exchange contracts. However, the Company’s policy also permitsother typesof derivativeinstruments. Inaddition, foreign
currency exchange rate risk is also managed through strategies that do not involve derivative instruments, such as using local
borrowings and other approaches to minimize net monetary positions in non-functional currencies. The disclosures below provide
additional information about the Company’s hedging strategies, the derivative instruments used, and the effects of these activities
on the consolidated statements of income and the consolidated bal ance sheets. In the consolidated statements of cash flows, the cash
flows associated with all of these activities are reported in net cash provided by operating activities.

Cash Flow Hedging Strategy for Interest Rate Risk

In January 2015, the Company entered into receive-floating/pay-fixed interest rate swap agreements that were designated
and qualified as hedges of the exposure to changes in interest payment cash flows created by fluctuations in variable interest rates
on its two outstanding non-amortizing bank term loans (see Note 5). Although no significant ineffectiveness is expected with this
hedging strategy, the effectiveness of the interest rate swapsis evaluated on a quarterly basis. At March 31, 2016, the total notional
amount of the interest rate swaps was $370 million, which corresponded with the aggregate outstanding balance of the term loans.

Previoudly, the Company had receive-floating/pay-fixed interest rate swap agreements that were designated and qualified
as cash flow hedges on an amortizing bank term loan that has since been repaid. Those swap agreements, which had an aggregate
notional amount of approximately $74 million reflecting the principal balance outstanding on the loan, were terminated upon
repayment of the debt in December 2014. The fair value of the swap agreements, approximately $0.6 million, was paid to the
counterparties upon termination and charged to expense.

Cash Flow Hedging Strategy for Foreign Currency Exchange Rate Risk Related to Forecast Purchases of Tobacco and Related
Processing Costs

The mgjority of the tobacco production in most countries outside the United States where Universal operatesis sold in
export markets at prices denominated in U.S. dollars. However, purchases of tobacco from farmers and most processing costs (such
as labor and energy) in those countries are usually denominated in the local currency. Changesin exchange rates between the U.S.
dollar and the local currencies where tobacco is grown and processed affect the ultimate U.S. dollar cost of the processed tobacco.
From time to time, the Company enters into forward contracts to sell U.S. dollars and buy the local currency at future dates that
coincide with the expected timing of a portion of the tobacco purchases and processing costs. This strategy offsets the variability
of future U.S. dollar cash flows for tobacco purchases and processing costs for the foreign currency notional amount hedged. This
hedging strategy has been used mainly for tobacco purchases and processing costs in Brazil. The aggregate U.S. dollar notional
amount of forward contracts entered for these purposes during fiscal years 2016, 2015, and 2014 was as follows:

Fiscal Year Ended March 31,

(in millions) 2016 2015 2014

TODACCO PUICNESES ...ttt ettt ee st eae st an et et te s essseseassenaennnanns $ 431 % 1056 $ 126.1

PrOCESSING COSES ..ottt ettt ettt ettt s be et ese et e e ebesbese st esebesbensesesasens 13.2 229 26.8
TOLEL ...ttt aer e e e b et te b et e te et eresae e erenreneas $ 56.3 $ 1285 $ 152.9

Thereduced U.S. dollar notional amountsfor tobacco purchases and processing costs hedged during fiscal year 2016 reflect
the combined effect of the devaluation of the Brazilian currency since the prior fiscal year, the reduced size of the 2016 crop, and a
variation in the timing of fixed-price orders from customers for their purchases from the respective crop years. All contracts rel ated
totobacco purchaseswere designated and qualify as hedges of the future cash flows associated with theforecast purchases of tobacco.
As aresult, except for amounts related to any ineffective portion of the hedging strategy or any early de-designation of the hedge
arrangement, changes in fair values of the forward contracts have been recognized in comprehensive income as they occurred, but
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only recognized in earnings upon sale of the related tobacco to third-party customers. Forward contracts related to processing costs
have not been designated as hedges, and gains and losses on those contracts have been recognized in earnings on a mark-to-market
basis.

For substantially all hedge gains and losses recorded in accumulated other comprehensive loss at March 31, 2016, the
Company expects to complete the sale of the tobacco and recognize the amounts in earnings during fiscal year 2017. At March 31,
2016, al hedged forecast purchases of tobacco not yet completed remained probable of occurring within the originally designated
time period and, as a result, no hedges had been discontinued. Purchases of the 2016 crop are expected to be completed by August
2016, and all forward contracts to hedge those purchases will mature and be settled by that time.

Hedging Strategy for Foreign Currency Exchange Rate Risk Related to Net Local Currency Monetary Assets and Liabilities of
Foreign Subsidiaries

Most of the Company’s foreign subsidiaries transact the majority of their salesin U.S. dollars and finance the majority of
their operating requirements with U.S. dollar borrowings, and therefore use the U.S. dollar as their functional currency. These
subsidiaries normally have certain monetary assets and liabilities on their balance sheets that are denominated in the local currency.
Those assets and liabilities can include cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable and accounts payable, advances to farmers
and suppliers, deferred income tax assets and liabilities, recoverable value-added taxes, and other items. Net monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in the local currency are remeasured into U.S. dollars each reporting period, generating gains and losses that
the Company records in earnings as a component of selling, general, and administrative expenses. The level of net monetary assets
or liahilities denominated in the local currency normally fluctuates throughout the year based on the operating cycle, but it is most
common for monetary assets to exceed monetary liabilities, sometimes by a significant amount. When this situation exists and the
local currency weakens against the U.S. dollar, remeasurement losses are generated. Conversely, remeasurement gains are generated
on anet monetary asset position when the local currency strengthens against the U.S. dollar. To manage a portion of its exposure
to currency remeasurement gains and losses, the Company enters into forward contracts to buy or sell the local currency at future
dates coinciding with expected changesin the overall net local currency monetary asset position of the subsidiary. Gains and losses
on the forward contracts are recorded in earnings as a component of selling, general, and administrative expenses for each reporting
period as they occur, and thus directly offset the related remeasurement losses or gains in the consolidated statements of income for
the notional amount hedged. The Company does not designate these contracts as hedges for accounting purposes. The contracts are
generally arranged to hedge the subsidiary's projected exposure to currency remeasurement risk for specified periods of time, and
new contracts are entered as necessary throughout the year to replace previous contracts as they mature. During fiscal years ended
March 31, 2016, 2015, and 2014, the Company used forward currency contracts to manage its exposure to currency remeasurement
risk in Brazil. At March 31, 2016, the net local monetary asset position in Brazil was not significant, and there were no foreign
currency contracts to manage currency remeasurement risk outstanding. The total notional amount of contracts outstanding at
March 31, 2015 was approximately $80.4 million. To further mitigate currency remeasurement exposure, the Company’s foreign
subsidiaries may utilize short-term local currency financing during certain periods. This strategy, while not involving the use of
derivative instruments, is intended to minimize the subsidiary’s net monetary position by financing a portion of the local currency
monetary assets with local currency monetary liabilities and thus hedging a portion of the overall position.

Several of the Company’sforeign subsidiariestransact the mgjority of their sales and finance the majority of their operating
requirements in their local currency, and therefore use their respective local currencies as the functiona currency for reporting
purposes. From timeto time, these subsidiaries sell tobacco to customers in transactions that are not denominated in the functional
currency. In those situations, the subsidiaries routinely enter into forward exchange contracts to offset currency risk for the period
of time that a fixed-price order and the related trade account receivable are outstanding with the customer. The contracts are not
designated as hedges for accounting purposes.
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Effect of Derivative Financial Instruments on the Consolidated Statements of Income

Thetable below outlinesthe effects of the Company’suse of derivative financial instruments on the consolidated statements
of income for the fiscal years ended March 31, 2016, 2015, and 2014.

Fiscal Year Ended March 31,

2016 2015 2014
Cash Flow Hedges - Interest Rate Swap Agreements
Derivative
Effective Portion of Hedge
Gain (loss) recorded in accumulated other comprehensive l0ss.............cceeecvcveecicicceenee. $ (12,824) $ (4,044) $ (142)
Gain (loss) reclassified from accumulated other comprehensive lossinto earnings............. $ (5,108) $ (1,929) $ (886)
Location of gain (loss) reclassified from accumulated other comprehensive lossinto Interest expense
1= 1100 TSPV
Ineffective Portion of Hedge
Gain (10SS) recogniZEd IN EAMMINGS.........cceveveieiereteeere ettt ettt sennas $ — % — $ —
Location of gain (10SS) recognized iN €aIMINGS...............ovveeveeeeeereeereeeeseeeeseeeseeesseeseeeseerene | Selling, general and administrative expenses |
Hedged Item
Description Of NEAGEA ItEM........c.couiiiiceccece et b et e | Floating rate interest payments on term loans |
Cash Flow Hedges - Forward Foreign Currency Exchange Contracts
Derivative
Effective Portion of Hedge
Gain (loss) recorded in accumulated other comprehensive l0ss.............ccveveveveeciciceeeenee. $ 1774 $ 1410 $ (1,635)
Gain (loss) reclassified from accumulated other comprehensive
(OSSN0 BAMMINGS.......ocveviiieeteeeeeetetee et e et e et e st sse st e se e esstese et sessessssssetenssestesesessnseseneas $ 993 $ 3099 $ (3,844)

Location of gain (loss) reclassified from accumulated other

comprehensive 10SSiNt0 EAMNINGS .........ccccv ettt ae e re e Cost of goods sold

Ineffective Portion and Early De-designation of Hedges

Gain (10SS) recognized IN EAIMINGS...........c.ceeriirereteei et se et se b se e sesenas $ 685 $ 257 % (1,839)

Location of gain (10SS) recognized in @aIMNINGS............ooveevereeeeereeereesessesesesesessssseseseseseseses | Selling, general and administrative expenses |
Hedged Item

DESCriPtion Of NEOGEH IEEM..........veeeeeeeeeeeeeee s se s see s | Forecast purchases of tobacco in Brazil |

Derivatives Not Designated as Hedges -
Forward Foreign Currency Exchange Contracts

$ 5973 $ 13178 $ (6,609)
Selling, general and administrative expenses

Gain (loss) recognized in earnings

Location of gain (loss) recognized in earnings

For the interest rate swap agreements, the effective portion of the gain or loss on the derivativeis recorded in accumulated
other comprehensive loss and any ineffective portion is recorded in selling, general and administrative expenses. For the forward
foreign currency exchange contracts designated as cash flow hedges of tobacco purchasesin Brazil, anet hedge gain of approximately
$0.5 million remained in accumulated other comprehensive loss at March 31, 2016. That balance reflects net gains on contracts
related to the 2016 crop. No hedge gain or loss had been reclassified to earningsat March 31, 2016 since shipments of those tobaccos
had not yet started. The mgjority of the balance in accumulated other comprehensive loss will be recognized in earnings as a
component of cost of goods sold in fiscal year 2017 as the 2016 Brazilian crop tobacco is sold to customers. Based on the hedging
strategy, asthe gain or lossis recognized in earnings, it is expected to be offset by a change in the direct cost for the tobacco or by
achangein sales pricesif the strategy has been mandated by the customer. Generally, margins on the sale of the tobacco will not
be significantly affected.
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Effect of Derivative Financial Instruments on the Consolidated Balance Sheets

The table below outlines the effects of the Company’s derivative financial instruments on the consolidated balance sheets
at March 31, 2016 and 2015:

Derivatives in a Fair Value Derivatives in a Fair Value
Asset Position Liability Position
Balance  Fair Value as of March 31,  Balance  Fair Value as of March 31,
Sheet Sheet
Location 2016 2015 Location 2016 2015
Derivatives Designated as Hedging
Instruments
Other Other
Interest rate swap agreements non-current long-term
assets $ — % — | liabilities | $ 10,766 $ 3,050
Accounts
Other
Forward foreign currency exchange contracts current paglcaguee?jnd
assets 475 106 | expenses — 396
Total $ 475 $ 106 $ 10,766 $ 3,446
Derivatives Not Designated as Hedging
Instruments
Accounts
Other
Forward foreign currency exchange contracts current pagcagl?e?jnd
s | g 297 $ 5148 | expenses | $ 5 $ 183

Total $ 297 % 5,148 $ 5 % 183

Substantially all of the Company'sforward foreign currency exchange contracts are subject to master netting arrangements,
whereby theright to offset occursin the event of default by a participating party. The Company has elected to present these contracts
on agross basis in the consolidated balance sheets.

NOTE 9. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

Universal measures certain financial and nonfinancial assets and liabilities at fair value based on applicable accounting
guidance. Thefinancial assets and liabilities measured at fair value include money market funds, trading securities associated with
deferred compensation plans, interest rate swap agreements, forward foreign currency exchange contracts, and guarantees of bank
loans to tobacco growers. The application of the fair value guidance to nonfinancial assets and liabilities primarily includes the
determination of fair values for goodwill and long-lived assets when indicators of potential impairment are present.

Under the accounting guidance, fair value is defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer
aliability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The framework for measuring fair value
isbased on afair value hierarchy that distingui shes between observabl e inputs and unobservable inputs. Observableinputsare based
on market data obtained from independent sources. Unobservable inputs require the Company to make its own assumptions about
the value placed on an asset or liability by market participants because little or no market data exists. There are three levels within
the fair value hierarchy.

Level Description

1 guoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the Company has the ability to access as of the
reporting date;

2 guoted pricesin active marketsfor similar assetsor liabilities, or quoted pricesfor identical or similar assetsor liabilities
in markets that are not active, or inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability; and

3 unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.
In measuring the fair value of liabilities, the Company considers the risk of non-performance in determining fair value.

Universal has not elected to report at fair value any financial instruments or any other assets or liabilities that are not required to be
reported at fair value under current accounting guidance.
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At March 31, 2016 and 2015, the Company had certain financial assets and financia liabilities that were required to be
measured and reported at fair value on arecurring basis. These assets and liabilities are listed in the tables below and are classified
based on how their values were determined under the fair value hierarchy:

March 31, 2016

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Assets

MonEY Market FUNGS...........ccueueeeeeeeeeieecee ettt $ — $ 116618 $ — $ 116,618
Trading securities associated with deferred compensation plans................... 17,817 — — 17,817
Forward foreign currency exchange contracts — 772 — 772
Total financial assets measured and reported at fair value.................o......... $ 17817 $ 117,390 $ — $ 135,207

Liabilities
Guarantees of bank 10ans to tobacco QroWErs.............ccceveveeeveveeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeenns $ — % — % 1628 $ 1,628
Interest rate SWap agrEeMENTS........cccvviierieie e — 10,766 — 10,766
Forward foreign currency exchange CONtracts..........ccoeeveeeveerreeeereseeresrennenens — 5 — 5
Total financial liabilities measured and reported at fair value..................... $ — % 10,771 $ 1628 $ 12,399

March 31, 2015
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Assets

MONEY MArKEL FUNDS ........cveveeeveeeeeectceeecectcee ettt sttt ae et ee e seees $ — % 86,552 $ — % 86,552
Trading securities associated with deferred compensation plans..................... 20,692 — — 20,692
Forward foreign currency exchange CoONtractS..........ccccceeeeveveereeieresreeeereerennne — 5,254 — 5,254
Total financial assets measured and reported at fair value.......................... $ 20,692 $ 91,806 $ — $ 112,498

Liabilities
Guarantees of bank 10ans to tObacCO QrOWENS...........ccveerereeeeerereeereeeeseeaes $ — % — % 1695 $ 1,695
Interest rate SWap agrEeMENES .......ccveieirererise et eseens — 3,050 — 3,050
Forward foreign currency exchange contracts — 579 — 579
Total financial liabilities measured and reported at fair value.................... $ — % 3629 $ 169 $ 5,324

Money market funds

Thefair value of money market funds, which are reported in cash and cash equivalents in the consolidated balance sheets,
is based on net asset value, which is computed based on amortized cost (Level 2). Thefair values of these investments approximate
cost due to the short-term maturities and the high credit quality of the issuers of the underlying securities.

Trading securities associated with deferred compensation plans

Trading securities represent mutual fund investments that are matched to employee deferred compensation obligations.
These investments are bought and sold as employees defer compensation, receive distributions, or make changes in the funds
underlying their accounts. Quoted market prices (Level 1) are used to determine the fair values of the mutual funds.
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Interest rate swap agreements

Thefair values of interest rate swap agreements are determined based on deal er quotes using a discounted cash flow model
matched to the contractual termsof eachinstrument. Sinceinputsto themodel are observableand significant judgment isnot required
in determining the fair values, interest rate swaps are classified within Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy.

Forward foreign currency exchange contracts

Thefair valuesof forwardforeign currency exchange contractsare al so determined based on deal er quotes using adiscounted
cash flow model matched to the contractual terms of each instrument. Since inputs to the model are observable and significant
judgment is not required in determining the fair values, forward foreign currency exchange contracts are classified within Level 2
of the fair value hierarchy.

Guarantees of bank loans to tobacco growers

The Company guarantees bank loans to tobacco growers in Brazil for crop financing and has previously guaranteed loans
to those growersfor the construction of curing barns or other tobacco producing assets. In the event that the farmers default on their
payments to the banks, the Company would be required to perform under the guarantees. The Company regularly evaluates the
likelihood of farmer defaults based on an expected loss analysis and records the fair value of its guarantees as an obligation in its
consolidated financial statements. Thefair value of the guaranteesisdetermined using the expected loss datafor all loans outstanding
at each measurement date. The present value of the cash flows associated with the estimated losses is then calculated at a risk-
adjusted interest rate that is aligned with the expected duration of the liability and includes an adjustment for nonperformance risk.
This approach is sometimes referred to as the “ contingent claims valuation method.” Although historical loss datais an observable
input, significant judgment is required in applying this information to the portfolio of guaranteed loans outstanding at each
measurement date and in selecting a risk-adjusted interest rate. Significant increases or decreases in the risk-adjusted interest rate
may result in asignificantly higher or lower fair value measurement. The guarantees of bank loans to tobacco growers are therefore
classified within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy.

A reconciliation of the changein the balance of the financia liability for guarantees of bank |oansto tobacco growers (Level
3) for the fiscal years ended March 31, 2016 and 2015 is provided bel ow.

Fiscal Year Ended March 31,

2016 2015

Balance at beginning Of YEAN .........c.ccucuiieiiieei ettt ettt bbbt bbb et enns $ 1674 $ 2,270
Payments under the guarantees and transfers to allowance for loss on direct loans to farmers (removal of

prior crop year 10ans from the Portfolio) .........veiree e (1,826) (2,392
Provision for loss or transfers from allowance for loss on direct |oans to farmers (addition of current crop

DL = 07 L) OSSPSR 1,834 2,320
Change in discount rate and estimated colleCtion PEriod .............cceeeeiircieneesee e 106 130
CUITENCY TEMEASUNEMENT .....c.ecviiveeeiteceeteete ettt et te et e et be st ebesbe e ebestesesbessetesseseebensebessensebesesesbensebessensstenseteseens (160) (654)
BalanCe al €N OF YEBN ..ottt ettt e et e et tese s et ebess s st eseaseseaebase s esesenssesesens $ 1628 $ 1,674

Long-term Debt

Thefair value of the Company’slong-term debt was approximately $370 millionat March 31, 2016 and 2015. The Company
estimates thefair value of itslong-term debt using Level 2 inputs which are based upon quoted market prices for the same or similar
obligations or on calculations that are based on the current interest rates available to the Company for debt of similar terms and
maturities.
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NOTE 10. PENSION AND OTHER POSTRETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS
Defined Benefit Plans
Description of Plans

The Company sponsors several defined benefit pension plans covering U.S. salaried employees and certain foreign and
other employee groups. These plans provide retirement benefits based primarily on employee compensation and years of service.
Plan assets consist primarily of equity and fixed incomeinvestments. The Company also sponsors defined benefit plansthat provide
postretirement health and life insurance benefits for eligible U.S. employees who have attained specific age and service levels,
although postretirement lifeinsurance benefits were discontinued for active employeesduring fiscal year 2015. The health benefits
are funded by the Company as the costs of those benefits are incurred. The plan design includes cost-sharing features such as
deductiblesand coinsurance. Thelifeinsurancebenefitsarefunded with depositsto areserve account held by aninsurance company.
The Company has the right to amend or discontinue its pension and other postretirement benefit plans at any time.

In the following disclosures, the term “accumulated benefit obligation” (“* ABQO") represents the actuarial present value of
estimated future benefit payments earned by participants in the Company's defined benefit pension plans as of the balance sheet
date without regard to the estimated effect of future compensation increases on those benefits. The term does not apply to other
postretirement benefits. “Projected benefit obligation” refers to the projected benefit obligation (“PBO”) for pension benefits and
theaccumul ated postretirement benefit obligation (“ APBQ”) for other postretirement benefits. Theseamountsrepresent theactuarial
present value of estimated future benefit payments earned by participants in the benefit plans as of the balance sheet date. For
pension benefits, the projected benefit obligation includes the estimated effect of future compensation increases on those benefits.

Actuarial Assumptions

Assumptions used for financial reporting purposes to compute net periodic benefit cost and benefit obligations for the
Company's primary defined benefit plans were as follows:

Pension Benefits Other Postretirement Benefits
2016 2015 2014 2016 2015 2014

Discount rates:

Benefit cost for planyear............cccee.e. 3.80% 4.50% 4.20% 3.70% 4.30% 3.90%

Benefit obligation at end of plan year ...... 4.10% 3.80% 4.50% 3.80% 3.70% 4.30%
Expected long-term return on plan assets:

Benefit cost for planyear............cccee.e. 7.25% 7.75% 8.00% 3.00% 4.30% 4.30%

Benefit obligation at end of plan year ...... 7.00% 7.25% 7.75% 3.00% 3.00% 4.30%
Salary scale:

Benefit cost for plan year..............ccee..e. 4.50% 4.50% 5.00% 4.50% 4.50% 5.00%

Benefit obligation at end of plan year ...... 4.00% 4.50% 4.50% 4.00% 4.50% 4.50%
Healthcare cost trend rate............cccovveeuenene N/A N/A N/A 7.00% 7.20% 7.40%

Changesin the discount rates in the above table reflect prevailing market interest rates at the end of each fiscal year when
the benefit obligations are actuarially measured. The reduction in the expected long-term return on plan assets assumption from
fiscal year 2014 to fiscal year 2016 is primarily due to changesin the underlying plan assets. These changes reflect amove toward
aliability-driveninvestment strategy inthe Company'sERI SA-regulated U.S. defined benefit pension plan dueto the high percentage
of retired and inactive participants in the plan and the high funded status of the plan. The healthcare cost trend rate used by the
Company isbased on astudy of medical cost inflation ratesthat is reviewed annually for continued applicability. Therevised trend
assumption of 7.00% in 2016 declines gradually to 4.50% in 2037.
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Benefit Obligations, Plan Assets, and Funded Status

The following table reflects the changes in benefit obligations and plan assets in 2016 and 2015, as well as the funded
status of the plans at March 31, 2016 and 2015:

Pension Other Postretirement
Benefits Benefits
March 31, March 31,
2016 2015 2016 2015
Actuarial present value of benefit obligation:
Accumulated benefit obligation ............ccccooeeeeeeeeeece e $ 273479 $ 287,133
Projected benefit obligation..........cccovovecurrineeerereeee s 275,505 288,908 $ 37,225 $ 40,863

Change in projected benefit obligation:

Projected benefit obligation, beginning of year ............c.ccoeeeveeceeveccne $ 283908 $ 259928 $ 40,863 $ 41,846

SEIVICE COSL. ...ttt 5,953 5,099 286 347
INEEIESE COSE.... ittt 10,037 11,215 1,539 1,699
Effect of discount rate Change..........ccoeveueeiceceieeeeeeceeeee e (10,036) 30,744 (402) 2,669
Foreign currency exchange rate Changes............ccceeeeeveceeesceseseee e 330 (6,033) (215) (444)
Curtailment — — — (1,465)
Other .. (486) 2,879 (1,104) (788)
Benefit Payments..........ooeeeveeeeermeeeneeen. (19,201) (14,924) (3,742) (3,001)

Projected benefit obligation, end of year $ 275505 $ 288908 $ 37,225 $ 40,863

Change in plan assets:

Plan assets at fair value, beginning of Year ............ccoccovevveeeeeeeceeeeeeee $ 224553 $ 213282 $ 2115 $ 2,535
Actual return on plan assets 61 23,486 69 73
Employer contributions...............ccc........ 12,504 8,063 3,123 2,508
Foreign currency exchange rate changes (58) (5,354) — —
BENEfit PAYMENES......coiieiceeeecerereireee ettt nnas (19,201) (14,924) (3,742 (3,001)
Plan assets at fair value, end of YEar...........cccccucueveveecvcveccceeeee e $ 217859 $ 224553 $ 1565 $ 2,115
Funded status:
Funded status of the plans, end of YEr ...........cccceueueueecveeeeeeeeeree e $ (57,646) $ (64,355) $ (35,660) $ (38,748)

Thecurtailment for other postretirement benefitsinfiscal year 2015 wasattributabl eto thediscontinuation of postretirement
lifeinsurance benefitsfor active U.S. employees. The Company fundsitsnon-regulated U.S. pension plan, one of itsforeign pension
plans, and its postretirement medical plans on a pay-as-you-go basis as the benefit payments are incurred. Those plans account for
approximately 58% of the $57.6 million unfunded pension obligation and approximately 83% of the $35.7 million unfunded
postretirement benefit obligation shown on the funded status line in the above table at March 31, 2016.
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Thefunded status of the Company’splans at the end of fiscal years 2016 and 2015 wasreported in the consolidated balance
sheets as follows:

Pension Other Postretirement
Benefits Benefits
March 31, March 31,
2016 2015 2016 2015
Non-current asset (included in other noncurrent assets).........ccovveeeeeeeennns $ 2044 $ 1900 $ — 3 —
Current liability (included in accounts payable and accrued expenses) ........... (630) (5,458) (2,543) (2,497)
Non-current liability (reported as pensions and other postretirement benefits) (59,060) (60,797) (33,117) (36,251)
Amounts recognized in the consolidated balance sheets............cocovvverrrenene, $ (57,646) $ (64,355) $ (35,660) $ (38,748)

Additiona information on the funded status of the Company’s plans as of the respective measurement dates for the fiscal
years ended March 31, 2016 and 2015, is asfollows:

Pension Other Postretirement
Benefits Benefits
March 31, March 31,
2016 2015 2016 2015
For plans with a projected benefit obligation in excess of plan assets:
Aggregate projected benefit obligation (PBO).........cccceeeveeeeveeeeeeeeeceeee $ 270058 $ 283070 $ 37,225 $ 40,863
Aggregate fair value of plan assets...........ccccceeeeeicececececeeee e 210,368 216,815 1,565 2,115
For plans with an accumulated benefit obligation in excess of plan
assets:
Aggregate accumulated benefit obligation (ABO)........cccceevrreererireeerenenns 268,087 281,354 N/A N/A
Aggregate fair value of plan aSsets...........ccvceveeeieececececeec e 210,368 216,815 N/A N/A

Net Periodic Benefit Cost

The components of the Company’s net periodic benefit cost were as follows:

Pension Benefits Other Postretirement Benefits
Fiscal Year Ended March 31, Fiscal Year Ended March 31,
2016 2015 2014 2016 2015 2014
Components of net periodic benefit cost:

SEIVICE COSE...cvvveiceeererereeeeseseseeee e ereenes $ 5953 $ 5099 $ 5190 $ 286 % A7 % 527
Interest CoSt.......ooiirinnireeeee e 10,037 11,215 12,223 1,539 1,699 2,106
Expected return on plan assets................... (15,110) (15,493) (14,218) (58) (102) (119)
Curtallment gain........ccccoeeeeeveecececeeeerenene, — — — — (1,465) —
Settlement COSL........ooovvrreeirreeeeieieies — — 1,094 — — —
Net amortization and deferral .................... 4,394 6,169 6,779 (431) (671) (5)
Net periodic benefit cost............ccvevvenenee.. $ 5274 $ 6,990 $ 11,068 $ 1,336 $ 192) $ 2,509

A one-percentage-point increase in the assumed healthcare cost trend rate would increase the March 31, 2016 accumul ated
postretirement benefit obligation by approximately $1.0 million, while a one-percentage-point decrease would reduce the benefit
obligation by approximately $900 thousand. The aggregate service and interest cost components of the net periodic postretirement
benefit expense for fiscal year 2017 would not change by a significant amount as a result of a one-percentage-point increase or
decrease in the assumed healthcare cost trend rate.
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Amounts Included in Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss

Amountsincluded in accumulated other comprehensive loss at the beginning of the year are amortized as a component of
net periodic benefit cost during the year. The amounts recognized in other comprehensiveincome or lossfor fiscal years 2016 and
2015 and the amounts included in accumulated other comprehensive loss at the end of those fiscal years are shown below. All
amounts shown are before allocated income taxes.

Pension Other Postretirement
Benefits Benefits
March 31, March 31,
2016 2015 2016 2015
Change in net actuarial loss (gain):
Net actuarial loss (gain), beginning of YEar ...........ccocvveeeeeceeeeececeeeeereeenes $ 81544 $ 70,488 $ (6,402) $ (9,952)
Losses (gains) arising during the Year ............cccceeeeeeveeeccce s 4,787 23,353 (1,263) 2,879
Amortization included in net periodic benefit cost during the year............... (7,032 (12,297) 431 671
Net actuarial 10ss (gain), end of YEar ...........ccccceeeeeeceeeccececeeee e 79,299 81,544 (7,234) (6,402)
Change in prior service cost (benefit):
Prior service cost (benefit), beginning of year...........cccoeeeeeeciceececeenee. (17,630) (22,998) — —
Prior service cost (benefit) arising during theyear............ccccoeevieieiiicennn, 111 (675) (208) —
Amortization included in net periodic benefit cost during the year............... 2,458 6,043 — —
Prior service cost (benefit), end of year..........cccoveeeeeceeicciececececeeeeee (15,061) (17,630) (208) —
Total amounts in accumulated other comprehensive loss
at end of year, DEfOre iNCOME taXES........cccovvreeeeeeeeceeeeeee e $ 64,238 $ 63914 $ (7,342) $ (6,402)

Amountsin the above table reflect the Company and its consolidated subsidiaries. The accumulated other comprehensive
loss reported in the consolidated balance sheets also includes pension and other postretirement benefit adjustments related to
ownership interests in unconsolidated affiliates.

The Company expects to recognize approximately $6.1 million of the March 31, 2016 net actuarial loss and $2.6 million
of the March 31, 2016 prior service benefit in net periodic benefit cost during fiscal year 2017.

Allocation of Pension Plan Assets

The Company has established, and periodically adjusts, target asset allocations for its investments in its U.S. ERISA-
regul ated defined benefit pension plan, which represents 90% of consolidated plan assetsand 81% of consolidated PBO at March 31,
20186, to balance the needs of liquidity, total return, and risk control. The assets are required to be diversified across asset classes
and investment styles to achieve that balance. During the year, the asset allocation is reviewed for adherence to the target policy
and rebalanced to the targeted weights. The Company reviews the expected long-term returns of the asset allocation each year to
help determine whether changes are needed. Thereturn is evaluated on aweighted-average basisin relation to inflation. As noted
above and reflected in the table below, the Company has changed some of the underlying assets in the plan over the past two fisca
yearsto movetoward aliability-driven investment strategy, resulting in areduction of the expected long-term return on assets. The
assumed long-term rate of return used to calculate annual benefit expense is based on the asset allocation and expected market
returns for the respective asset classes.
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The weighted—average target pension asset allocation and target ranges at the March 31, 2016 measurement date and the
actual asset allocations at the March 31, 2016 and 2015 measurement dates by major asset category were as follows:

Actual Allocation

March 31,
Target
Major Asset Category Allocation Range 2016 2015
EQUILY SECUNTIES........cueiiieciicieesteee ettt 26.0% 16% - 36% 22.4% 25.3%
Fixed income SEoUTtEs ) ... 69.0% 59%- 79% 715% 69.1%
ARErNAiVE INVESIMENLS ... 50% 0%- 10% 6.1% 5.6%

TOUEL ..ot 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%

@ Actua amounts include high yield securities and cash balances held for the payment of benefits.

Universal makes regular contributions to its pension and other postretirement benefit plans. As previously noted, for
postretirement health benefits, contributions reflect funding of those benefits as they are incurred. The Company expects to make
contributions of approximately $7.3 million to its defined benefit pension plansin fiscal year 2017, including $5.4 million to its
ERISA-regulated U.S. plan and $1.9 million to its non-ERISA regulated and other plans.

Estimated future benefit payments to be made from the Company’s plans are as follows:

) Other
Fiscal Year 552:}?{; POStBlrgrtnlerf(??s1 ent

14305 $ 2,944
17,223 2,854
22,358 2,874
16,271 2,832
16,799 2,807
90,913 12,915

Fair Values of Pension Plan Assets

Assets held by the Company's defined benefit pension plans primarily consist of equity securities, fixed income securities,
and alternativeinvestments. Equity securitiesare primarily invested in actively-traded mutual fundswith underlying common stock
investmentsin U.S. and foreign companies ranging in size from small to large corporations. Fixed income securities are also held
primarily through actively-traded mutual funds with the underlying investments in both U.S. and foreign securities. The
methodologies for determining the fair values of the plan assets are outlined below. Where the values are based on quoted prices
for the securities in an active market, they are classified as Level 1 of the fair value hierarchy. Where secondary pricing sources
are used, they are classified as Level 2 of the hierarchy. Pricing models that use significant unobservable inputs are classified as
Level 3.

e Equity securities: Investments in equity securities through actively-traded mutual funds are valued based on the net
asset values of the units held in the respective funds, which are determined by obtaining quoted prices on nationally
recognized securities exchanges. These securities are classified as Level 1.

» Fixed income securities: Fixed income investments that are held through mutual funds are valued based on the net
asset values of the units held in the respective funds, which are determined by obtaining quoted prices on nationally
recognized securitiesexchanges. ThesesecuritiesareclassifiedasLevel 1. Other fixedincomeinvestmentsarevalued
at an estimated pricethat adealer would pay for asimilar security on the valuation date using observable market inputs
and are classified as Level 2. These market inputs may include yield curves for similarly rated securities. Small
amounts of cash are held in common collective trusts. Fixed income securities a so include insurance assets, which
are valued based on an actuarial calculation. Those securities are classified as Level 3.

66



UNIVERSAL CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)

* Alternative investments. Real estate assets are valued using valuation models that incorporate income and market
approaches, including external appraisals, to derive fair values. The hedge fund allocation is a fund of hedge funds
and is valued by the manager based on the net asset value of each fund. These models use significant unobservable
inputs and are classified as Level 3 within the fair value hierarchy.

Fair values of the assets of the Company’s pension plans as of March 31, 2016 and 2015, classified based on how their
values were determined under the fair value hierarchy are as follows:

March 31, 2016

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
EQUILY SECUNMTIES .......vveceeeecececeeeee ettt se et sss s snees $ 43,807 $ — % — % 43,807
Fixed income securiti 05(1) ......................................................................... 141,218 7,491 13,382 162,091
AIErNativVe INVESIMENES........cviieeeeceee et — — 11,961 11,961
Total investments 185,025 $ 7491 $ 25343 $ 217,859

March 31, 2015

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
EQUITY SECUNTIES......cvcvieeeeecece ettt sttt enss s sn st en s $ 51,300 $ — $ — $ 51,300
Fixed income securiti es(l) .......................................................................... 141,655 7,738 12,424 161,817
ARErNative INVESIMENES ......c.eeeeiecreciecrece et e — — 11,436 11,436
Total INVESEMENTS.......c.ooeceiiieeietectece ettt sresne e $ 192,955 $ 7,738 $ 23860 $ 224,553

@ Includes high yield securities and cash and cash equivalent balances.

Other Benefit Plans

Universal and several subsidiaries offer employer defined contribution savings plans. Amounts charged to expense for
these plans were approximately $1.8 million for fiscal year 2016, $1.8 million for fiscal year 2015, and $1.6 million for fiscal year
2014.

NOTE 11. COMMON AND PREFERRED STOCK
Common Stock

At March 31, 2016, the Company’s shareholders had authorized 100,000,000 shares of its common stock, and 22,717,735
shareswereissued and outstanding. Holders of the common stock are entitled to one vote for each share held on all mattersrequiring
avote. Holders of the common stock are also entitled to receive dividends when, as, and if declared by the Company’s Board of
Directors. The Board of Directors customarily declares and pays regular quarterly dividends on the outstanding common shares;
however, such dividends are at the Board' sfull discretion, and thereis no obligation to continuethem. If dividends onthe Company’s
Series B 6.75% Convertible Perpetual Preferred Stock (the “Preferred Stock” or “Preferred Shares”) are not declared and paid for
any dividend period, then the Company may not pay dividendson the common stock or repurchase common shares until the dividends
on the Preferred Stock have been paid for a period of four consecutive quarters.

Preferred Stock

The Company is also authorized to issue up to 5,000,000 shares of preferred stock, 500,000 shares of which have been
reserved for Series A Junior Participating Preferred Stock and 220,000 shares of which have been reserved for Series B 6.75%
Convertible Perpetual Preferred Stock. No Series A Junior Participating Preferred Stock has been issued. In 2006, 220,000 shares
of Series B 6.75% Convertible Perpetual Preferred Stock (the “Preferred Stock” or “Preferred Shares’) were issued under this
authorization. At March 31, 2016, 218,490 shares were issued and outstanding. The Preferred Stock has a liquidation preference
of $1,000 per share. Holders of the Preferred Shares are entitled to receive quarterly dividends at the rate of 6.75% per annum on
the liquidation preference when, as, and if declared by the Company’sBoard of Directors. Dividends are not cumulativein the event
the Board of Directors does not declare a dividend for one or more quarterly periods. Under the terms of the Preferred Stock, the
Board of Directorsis prohibited from declaring regular dividends on the Preferred Sharesin any period in which the Company fails
to meet specified levelsof shareholders' equity and net income; however, in that situation, the Board of Directors may instead declare
such dividends payable in shares of the Company’s common stock or from net proceeds of common stock issued during the ninety-
day period prior to the dividend declaration. The Preferred Shares have no voting rights, except in the event the Company fails to
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pay dividends for four consecutive or non-consecutive quarterly dividend periods or fails to pay the redemption price on any date
that the Preferred Sharesare called for redemption, in which casethe holdersof Preferred Shareswill beentitled to el ect two additional
directorsto the Company’s Board to serve until dividends on the Preferred Stock have been fully paid for four consecutive quarters.

The Preferred Shares are convertible at any time, at the option of the holder, into shares of the Company’s common stock
at aconversion rate that is adjusted each time the Company pays a dividend on its common stock that exceeds $0.43 per share. The
conversion rate at March 31, 2016, was 22.2744 shares of common stock per preferred share, which represents a conversion price
of approximately $44.89 per common share. Upon conversion, the Company may, at its option, satisfy all or part of the conversion
valuein cash.

Through March 15, 2018, the Company may, at its option, cause the Preferred Shares to be automatically converted into
shares of common stock that are issuable at the prevailing conversion rate, only if the closing price of the common stock during a
specified period exceeds 135% of thethen prevailing conversion price. With this conversion, the Company may, at itsoption, satisfy
al or part of the conversion valuein cash in lieu of delivering shares. On or after March 15, 2018, the Company may, at its option,
redeem all or part of the outstanding Preferred Shares for cash at the $1,000 per share liquidation preference.

Share Repurchase Programs

Universal’s Board of Directors has authorized programs to repurchase outstanding shares of the Company’s capital stock
(common and preferred stock). Under these programs, the Company has made and may continue to make share repurchases from
time to time in the open market or in privately negotiated transactions at prices not exceeding prevailing market rates. Programs
have been in place continuously throughout fiscal years 2014 through 2016. The current program, which replaced an expiring
program, was authorized and became effective on November 5, 2015. It authorizes the purchase of up to $100 million of the
Company'soutstanding common and/or preferred stock and expiresontheearlier of November 15, 2017, or whenthefundsauthorized
for the program have been exhausted. At March 31, 2016, thefull $100 million authorization remained availablefor sharerepurchases
under the current program.

Share repurchases under the programs for the fiscal years ended March 31, 2016, 2015, and 2014 were as follows:
Fiscal Year Ended March 31,

2016 2015 2014

Common Stock

Number of ShareS repUIChased.............cccoveveiiiieieiceeecee ettt — 719,993 238,486
Cost of shares repurchased (in thousands of dolars)............cceeeeveeeeeeeeeeeseeee e $ — % 31,227 $ 14,145
Weighted-average COSt PEF SNAIE........c.ccueueucuerereecieeeretere e eaetete st s s st b s st b sesesesesns $ — % 4337 $ 59.31
Series B 6.75% Convertible Perpetual Preferred Stock

Number of ShareS repUIChased.............cccoueveiiiieiieccecee et — 1,509 —
Cost of shares repurchased (in thousands of dolars)............cceeeeveeeeeeeeeeeese e $ — % 1497 $ —

— 3 99227 $ —

Weighted-average cost per share

NOTE 12. EXECUTIVE STOCK PLANS AND STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION
Executive Stock Plans

The Company’s shareholders have approved executive stock plans under which officers, directors, and employees of the
Company may receive grants and awards of common stock, restricted stock, restricted stock units (“RSUS"), performance share
awards (“PSAS"), stock appreciation rights (“ SARS”), incentive stock options, and non-qualified stock options. Currently, grants
are outstanding under the 1997 Executive Stock Plan, the 2002 Executive Stock Plan, and the 2007 Stock Incentive Plan. Together,
these plans are referred to in this disclosure as the “Plans.” Up to 2 million shares of the Company’s common stock may be issued
under each of the Plans; however, direct awards of common stock, restricted stock, or RSUs are limited to 500,000 shares under the
2002 Executive Stock Plan and 1,350,000 shares under the 2007 Stock Incentive Plan.

The Company’s practice isto award grants of stock-based compensation to officersat thefirst regularly-scheduled meeting
of the Executive Compensation, Nominating, and Corporate Governance Committee of the Board of Directors (the “ Compensation
Committee”) in the fiscal year following the public release of the Company’s financial results for the prior year. Since fiscal year
2006, grants have been limited to restricted stock, RSUs, PSAs, and stock-settled SARs. In fiscal years 2014 through 2016, the
Compensation Committee has awarded only grants of RSUsand PSAs. Outside directorsautomatically receive restricted stock units
following each annua meeting of shareholders.
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Non-qualified stock options and SARs granted under the Plans have an exercise price equal to the market price of a share
of common stock on the date of grant. No stock options are currently outstanding under the Plans. SARs granted under the Plans
vest in equal one-third tranches one, two, and three years after the grant date and expire 10 years after the grant date, except that
SARsgranted after fiscal year 2007 expire on the earlier of 3 years after the grantee’'sretirement date or 10 years after the grant date.
RSUs awarded under the Plans vest 5 years from the grant date and are then paid out in shares of common stock. Under the terms
of the RSU awards, grantees receive dividend equivalentsin the form of additional RSUs that vest and are paid out on the same date
asthe original RSU grant. The PSAsvest 3 years from the grant date, are paid out in shares of common stock at the vesting date,
and do not carry rights to dividends or dividend equivalents prior to vesting. Shares ultimately paid out under PSA grants are
dependent on the achievement of predetermined performance measures established by the Compensation Committee and can range
from zero to 150% of the stated award. RSUs awarded to outside directorsvest 3 years after the grant date, and restricted stock vests
upon the individual’s retirement from service as a director.

Stock Options and SARs

The following tables summarize the Company’s stock option and SAR activity and related information for fiscal years 2014
through 2016:

Weighted-
Weighted- Average
Average Contractual Aggregate
Exercise Term Intrinsic
Shares Price (in years) Value

Fiscal Year Ended March 31, 2014:
Outstanding at beginning of Year............cccccevveiieccececc e 418,477 $ 50.07
EXEICISE v v eeees e e eeeesee e esee e s see e ees e ee s es s e s eesesee e neesees e (161,137) 4248
Outstanding at end Of YEar ..........ccceevceiieiiieeee e 257,340 54.83
Fiscal Year Ended March 31, 2015
S oiE= o TSR (63,539) 38.50
Cancelled/expired .................. (24,200) 62.66
Outstanding at end of year 169,601 59.82
Fiscal Year Ended March 31, 2016:
C (oiE = o TR (6,200) 51.32
Cancelled/EXPITed .........ccouieieeieeeecteeee e (11,200) 62.66
Outstanding a end Of YEAI .........cccccoviueieiiieieeceeeeeeeee e 152,201 $ 59.96 114 % 302

Fiscal Year Ended March 31,
2016 2015 2014

Total intrinsic value of stock options and SARS EXErCISEd............coeveveviveeeeeeieeeeeeeeeeeeeee s $ 26 $ 1,001 $ 2,816
Total fair Value Of SARSVESIE.........cccoveeeeeieieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee ettt en s as s enaes $ — % 375 % 769

All of the grants outstanding at the end of fiscal year 2016 in the abovetablesrepresent SARS, al of which were exercisable
at theend of theyear. Intrinsic value and aggregate intrinsic value in the tables above are based on the difference between the market
price of the underlying shares at the exercise date or balance sheet date, as applicable, and the exercise prices of the stock options
and SARs. The closing market prices used to determine the aggregate intrinsic value at the end of each fiscal year were asfollows:
$56.81 at March 31, 2016, $47.16 at March 31, 2015, and $55.89 at March 31, 2014.
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RSUs, Restricted Stock, and PSAs
Thefollowing table summarizesthe Company’s RSU, restricted stock, and PSA activity for fiscal years 2014 through 2016:

RSUs Restricted Stock PSAs
Weighted- Weighted- Weighted-
Average Average Average
Grant Date Grant Date Grant Date
Shares Fair Value Shares Fair Value Shares Fair Value
Fiscal Year Ended March 31, 2014:
Unvested at beginning of year .................. 292,134  $ 41.23 59,850 $ 41.68 135,017 $ 35.12
Granted.........ccceueeeereeeeeeeeee s 70,092 57.79 — — 52,400 53.56
VESIEA.......oiiiericireeieisee e (69,046) 44.89 (11,750) 39.02 (32,464) 33.95
Forfeited.......oomivieeee e — — — — (5,566) 37.45
Unvested at end of year...........ccccoevevenene. 293,180 44.33 48,100 42.33 149,387 41.76
Fiscal Year Ended March 31, 2015:
Granted........ccoeueeereeeeeeeeee s 94,539 51.86 — — 57,580 46.41
VESIEA......oiiieeieireieeisee e (123,322) 42,02 — — (50,092) 31.95
— — — — (3,400) 53.56
264,397 48.10 48,100 42.33 153,475 45.58
Granted........ccoeueeereeeeeeeeee s 80,932 51.62 — — 86,212 45.06
VESIEA.......oeiieriireieeisee e (42,384) 41.64 — — (85,387) 38.14
Unvested at end of year.........c.cccoouvrrvennnens 302,945 $ 49.95 48,100 $ 42.33 154,300 $ 48.13

Shares granted and vested in the above tableinclude dividend equival ents on RSUs and any shares awarded above the base
grant under the performance provisions of PSAs. Sharesforfeited or canceled include any reductions from the base PSA grant under
those same performance provisions. Thefair valuesof RSUs, restricted stock, and PSAsare based on the market price of the common
stock on the grant date.

Stock-Based Compensation Expense

Fair value expense for stock-based compensation is recognized ratably over the period from grant date to the earlier of (1)
the vesting date of the award, or (2) the date the grantee is eligible to retire without forfeiting the award. For employees who are
aready eligibleto retire at the date an award is granted, the total fair value of the award is recognized as expense at the date of grant.
For the fiscal years ended March 31, 2016, 2015, and 2014, total stock-based compensation expense and the related income tax
benefit recognized were as follows:

Fiscal Year Ended March 31,

2016 2015 2014
Total stock-based COMPENSALION EXPENSE..........cccvvveeeeeerieeeeeesieeeeseseeeessssss e s esssssssesssssssens $ 5206 $ 6,230 $ 6,278
Income tax benefit recorded on stock-based compensation exXpense.............ccccoeeeeeeeeereenenn. $ 1822 $ 2181 $ 2,197

At March 31, 2016, the Company had $5.1 million of unrecognized compensation expense related to stock-based awards,
which will be recognized over aweighted-average period of approximately 1.2 years. All stock options were exercised, cancelled,
or expired before fiscal year 2016. Cash proceeds from the exercise of stock options were not material for the fiscal years ended
March 31, 2015 and 2014.
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NOTE 13. COMMITMENTS, CONTINGENCIES, AND OTHER MATTERS
Commitments

The Company enters into contracts to purchase tobacco from farmers in a number of the countries in which it operates.
Contractsin most countries cover one annual growing season. Primarily with the farmer contractsin Brazil, Ma awi, Mozambique,
the Philippines, Guatemal a, and Mexico, the Company provides seasonal financing to support the farmers' production of their crops
or guarantees their financing from third-party banks. At March 31, 2016, the Company had contracts to purchase approximately
$566 million of tobacco to be delivered during the coming fiscal year and $110 million of tobacco to be delivered in subseguent
years. These amounts are estimates since actual quantities purchased will depend on crop yields, and prices will depend on the
quality of the tobacco delivered and other market factors. Tobacco purchase obligations have been partially funded by advancesto
farmersand other suppliers, whichtotal ed approximately $102 million, net of allowances, at March 31, 2016. The Company withholds
payments due to farmers on delivery of the tobacco to satisfy repayment of the financing it provided to the farmers. As noted above
and discussed in more detail below, the Company also has arrangements to guarantee bank loansto farmersin Brazil, and payments
are also withheld on delivery of tobacco to satisfy repayment of those loans. In addition to its contractual obligations to purchase
tobacco, the Company had commitments related to agricultural materials, approved capital expenditures, and various other
requirements that approximated $53 million at March 31, 2016.

Guarantees and Other Contingent Liabilities
Guarantees of Bank Loans and Other Contingent Liabilities

Guarantees of bank loansto growersfor crop financing and construction of curing barns or other tobacco producing assets
have long been industry practicein Brazil and support the farmers' production of tobacco there. At March 31, 2016, the Company’s
total exposure under guaranteesissued by its operating subsidiary for banking facilities of farmersin Brazil was approximately $11
million ($13 million face amount including unpaid accrued interest, less $2 million recorded for the fair value of the guarantees).
All of these guarantees expire within one year. As noted above, the subsidiary withholds payments due to the farmers on delivery
of tobacco and forwards those payments to the third-party banks. Failure of farmersto deliver sufficient quantities of tobacco to the
subsidiary to cover their obligationsto the third-party banks could result in aliability for the subsidiary under the related guarantees;
however, in that case, the subsidiary would have recourse against the farmers. The maximum potential amount of future payments
that the Company’s subsidiary could be required to make at March 31, 2016, was the face amount, $13 million including unpaid
accrued interest ($17 million as of March 31, 2015). Thefair value of the guarantees was a liability of approximately $2 million at
March 31, 2016 ($2 million at March 31, 2015). In addition to these guarantees, the Company has other contingent liabilitiestotaling
approximately $2 million at March 31, 2016, primarily under outstanding letters of credit.

Value-Added Tax Assessments in Brazil

Asdiscussed in Note 1, the Company's local operating subsidiaries pay significant amounts of value-added tax ("VAT") in
connection with their normal operations. In Brazil, VAT is assessed at the state level when green tobacco is transferred between
states. The Company's operating subsidiary there pays VAT when tobaccos grown in the states of Santa Catarina and Parana are
transferred to its factory in the state of Rio Grande do Sul for processing. The subsidiary has received assessments for additional
VAT plusinterest and penalties from the tax authoritiesfor the states of Santa Catarina and Parana based on audits of the subsidiary's
VAT filings for specified periods. In June 2011, tax authorities for the state of Santa Catarina issued assessments for tax, interest,
and penalties for periods from 2006 through 2009 totaling approximately $14 million. In September 2014, tax authorities for the
state of Paranaissued an assessment for tax, interest, and penalties for periods from 2009 through 2014 totaling approximately $15
million. These amounts are based on the exchange rate for the Brazilian currency at March 31, 2016. Management of the operating
subsidiary and outside counsel believe that errors were made by the tax authorities for both states in determining all or significant
portions of these assessments and that various defenses support the subsidiary's positions.

With respect to the Santa Catarinaassessments, the subsidiary took appropriate stepsto contest thefull amount of theclaims.
Asof March 31, 2016, aportion of the subsidiary's arguments had been accepted, and the outstanding assessments had been reduced.
The reduced assessment, together with the related accumulated interest through the end of the current reporting period, totaled
approximately $12 million at the March 31, 2016 exchange rate. The subsidiary is continuing to contest the full remaining amount
of the assessment. Whilethe range of reasonably possible lossis zero up to the full $12 million remaining assessment, based on the
strength of the subsidiary's defenses, no loss within that range is considered probable at this time and no liability has been recorded
at March 31, 2016.

With respect to the Parana assessment, management of the subsidiary and outside counsel have undertaken the stepsrequired
to contest thefull amount of theclaim. A significant portion of the Paranaassessment isbased on positionstaken by thetax authorities
that management and outside counsel believe deviate significantly from the underlying statutes and relevant case law. In addition,
under the law, the subsidiary's tax filings for certain periods covered in the assessment were no longer open to any challenge by the
tax authorities. In December 2015, the Paranatax authorities withdrew theinitial claim and subsequently issued a new assessment
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covering the sametax periods. The new assessment totaled approximately $5 million at the March 31, 2016 exchangerate, reflecting
asubstantial reduction from the original $15 million assessment. Notwithstanding the reduction, management and outside counsel
continue to believe that the new assessment is not supported by the underlying statutes and relevant case law and have taken the
necessary steps to challenge the full amount of the claim. The range of reasonably possible loss is considered to be zero up to the
full $5 million assessment. However, based on the strength of the subsidiary's defenses, no loss within that range is considered
probable at thistime and no liability has been recorded at March 31, 2016.

In both states, the process for reaching a final resolution to the assessments is expected to be lengthy, and management is
not currently ableto predict when either case will be concluded. Should the subsidiary ultimately be required to pay any tax, interest,
or penatiesin either case, the portion paid for tax would generate value-added tax creditsthat the subsidiary may be able to recover.

Other Contingent Liabilities

Various subsidiaries of the Company are involved in other litigation and tax examinations incidenta to their business
activities. While the outcome of these matters cannot be predicted with certainty, management is vigorously defending the matters
and does not currently expect that any of them will have amaterial adverse effect on the Company’s business or financial position.
However, should one or more of these matters be resolved in a manner adverse to management’s current expectation, the effect on
the Company’s results of operations for a particular fiscal reporting period could be material.

Major Customers

A materia part of the Company’s businessis dependent upon a few customers. The Company's five largest customers are
Philip Morris International, Inc., British American Tobacco plc, Imperia Brands plc, Japan Tobacco, Inc., and China Tobacco
International, Inc. Inthe aggregate, these customers have accounted for more than 60% of consolidated revenue for each of the past
three fiscal years. For the fiscal years ended March 31, 2016, 2015, and 2014, revenue from Philip Morris International, Inc. was
approximately $640 million, $580 million, and $590 million, respectively. For the same periods, British American Tobacco plc
accounted for revenue of approximately $230 million, $220 million, and $240 million, respectively, and Imperial Brandsplc accounted
for revenue of approximately $210 million, $280 million, and $340 million, respectively. These customers primarily do business
with various &ffiliates in the Company’s flue-cured and burley leaf tobacco operations. The loss of, or substantial reduction in
business from, any of these customers could have a material adverse effect on the Company.

Accounts Receivable

The Company’s operating subsidiaries perform credit evaluations of customers’ financial condition prior to the extension
of credit. Generally, accounts receivable are unsecured and are due within 30 days. When collection terms are extended for longer
periods, interest and carrying costs are usually recovered. Credit losses are provided for in the financial statements, and historically
such amountshave not been material. Theallowancefor doubtful accountswas approximately $9 million and $5 millionat March 31,
2016 and 2015, respectively. At March 31, 2016 and 2015, net accounts receivabl e by reportabl e operating segment were asfollows:

March 31,
2016 2015

Flue-Cured and Burley Leaf Tobacco Operations:
N0 Y 1= 1o TP $ 85985 $ 38,046
(@107 g =TT o3 TP 303,932 350,122
Subtotal ........ccooeeevreee 389,917 388,168
Other Tobacco Operations 38,742 46,194
Consolidated acCoUNtS FECEIVADIE, NEL..........c.ciiiiiirice e $ 428,659 $ 434,362

Favorable Outcome of IPI Tax Credit Case in Brazil

During thefirst quarter of fiscal year 2014, alongstanding lawsuit related to | Pl tax creditsfiled by the Company's operating
subsidiary in Brazil was concluded in the subsidiary's favor with a decision by the Brazilian Superior Court of Justice on the final
appeal filed by the Brazilian federal government. Although additional appeals by the government were expected in the case, the
time period to file those appeal s expired and the decision and overall outcome of the case were confirmed.

IPI tax credits were established under Brazilian tax laws to allow recovery of a portion of the excise taxes paid on
manufactured products when those products are sold in export markets. In prior years, the subsidiary paid excise taxes on the
component cost of unprocessed tobacco purchased from growers, aswell asthe cost of electricity, packing materials, and other inputs
used inits manufacturing process. Under the law, the subsidiary believed it was entitled to use I Pl tax creditsto recover excise taxes
ontheprocessedtobaccoit exported. However, specific regulationsissued by the Brazilian tax authoritiesdid not permit thesubsidiary
to claim those credits. The suit filed by the subsidiary challenged the denial of the tax credits based on the law. Several decisions
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in lower courts were decided in the subsidiary's favor for a portion of the tax credits claimed in the suit, but those decisions were
appeal ed on various grounds by both the government and the subsidiary. The expiration of the appeal period ended the matter in the
courts.

Thefinal court decision entitled the subsidiary to approximately $104 million of 1Pl tax credits (based on the exchange rate
at the date of the decision), which are being used to offset payments of other Brazilian federal taxes. That amount includes the tax
credits generated over the period granted by the courts, as well as interest calculated from the date those credits should have been
available to the subsidiary. The ability to use the tax credits to offset other Brazilian federal tax payments expires five years after
the subsidiary's right to claim the credits was confirmed. Utilization of the credits is also subject to audit by the tax authorities.
Based on estimates of the tax credits that were probable of being realized at the time the case was decided, the subsidiary recorded
an allowance, reducing the net book value of the creditsto approximately $90 million. After deducting related legal feesand Brazilian
social contribution taxes assessed on the interest portion of the total 1Pl tax credits received, the subsidiary recorded a net gain of
$81.6 million ($53.1 million after tax, or $1.87 per diluted share) during thefirst quarter of fiscal year 2014, asaresult of thefavorable
outcome of the case. Inthefourth quarter of fiscal year 2015, based on actual realization of the tax creditsto date, aswell as updated
tax payment projections for future periods, revised estimates indicated that all remaining IPI tax credits would be fully utilized prior
to expiration. On that basis, the subsidiary reversed the full remaining valuation allowance on the credits of $12.7 million (based
on thethen current exchangerate) during the quarter. Theorigina gaininfiscal year 2014 and thereversal of thevaluation allowance
in fiscal year 2015 are reported in Other Income in the consolidated statements of income.

Acquisition of Partner's Interest in Tobacco Processing Joint Venture

For a number of years, the Company held a 50% joint venture ownership interest in Procesadora Unitab, S.A., a tobacco
processing entity in Guatemala. In December 2015, the Company acquired the 50% interest held by itsjoint venture partner for $6.0
million in cash. In accordance with Accounting Standards Codification Topic 805, "Business Combinations' (“*ASC 805"), the
transaction was accounted for using the acquisition method of accounting, which required the Company to record al underlying
assets and liabilities of the entity at their fair values as of the transaction date and to consolidate the financial statements of the entity.
Based on those fair values, the Company recorded a pretax gain of $3.4 million on the transaction during the third quarter of fiscal
year 2016. Thegainisreported in Other Incomein the consolidated statements of income. The purchase price of the newly-acquired
50% interest approximated fair value, and the gain resulted from remeasuring the Company’s original 50% ownership interest in the
entity to fair value. No goodwill or identifiable intangible assets were recorded as part of the transaction, and acquisition-related
costs were not significant.

The pro forma result of operations of the combined companies would not be materially different from the Company’s
historical results, and the revenues and earnings of the acquired entity since the date of acquisition are not material. The allocation
of thefair valuesto the net assetsacquired was compl ete at thetimethetransaction wasrecorded. Based onthenature of itsoperations,
the net assets of the acquired entity are comprised primarily of property, plant, and equipment, and the fair values recorded for those
assetstotal ed approximately $12.0 million based primarily on athird-party appraisal. Theacquired entity isincludedinthe Company’s
North America operating segment.

NOTE 14. OPERATING SEGMENTS

Universal’s operations involve selecting, procuring, processing, packing, storing, shipping, and financing leaf tobacco for
sale to, or for the account of, manufacturers of consumer tobacco products throughout the world. Through various operating
subsidiaries |ocated in tobacco-growing countries around the world and significant ownership interests in unconsolidated affiliates,
the Company processes and/or sells flue-cured and burley tobaccos, dark air-cured tobaccos, and oriental tobaccos. Flue-cured,
burley, and oriental tobaccos are used principally in the manufacture of cigarettes, and dark air-cured tobaccos are used mainly in
the manufacture of cigars, pipe tobacco, and smokeless tobacco products. A substantial portion of the Company’s revenues are
derived from sales to alimited number of large, multinational cigarette manufacturers.

The principal approach used by management to evaluate the Company’s performanceis by geographic region, although the
dark air-cured and oriental tobacco businesses are each evaluated on the basis of their worldwide operations. Oriental tobacco
operations consist principally of a 49% interest in an affiliate, and the performance of those operations is evaluated based on the
Company’s equity in the pretax earnings of that affiliate. Under this structure, the Company has the following primary operating
segments. North America, South America, Africa, Europe, Asia, Dark Air-Cured, Oriental, and Specia Services. North America,
South America, Africa, Europe, and Asia are primarily involved in flue-cured and/or burley leaf tobacco operations for supply to
cigarette manufacturers. The Dark Air-Cured group supplies dark air-cured tobacco principally to manufacturers of cigars, pipe
tobacco, and smokel ess tobacco products, and the Oriental business supplies oriental tobacco to cigarette manufacturers. From time
totime, the segments may tradein tobaccosthat differ from their main varieties, but those activities are not significant to their overall
results. Special Servicesincludesthe Company's laboratory services business, which provides physical and chemical product testing
and smoke testing for customers, aswell asitsliquid nicotine joint venture and its food ingredients business.
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The five regional operating segments serving the Company’s cigarette manufacturer customer base share similar
characteristics in the nature of their products and services, production processes, class of customer, product distribution methods,
and regulatory environment. Based on the applicable accounting guidance, four of the regions — South America, Africa, Europe,
and Asia—are aggregated into asingle reporting segment, “ Other Regions”, because they a so have similar economic characteristics.
North Americais reported as an individual operating segment because its economic characteristics differ from the other regions,
generally because its operations require lower working capital investments for crop financing and inventory. The Dark Air-Cured,
Oriental and Special Servicessegments, which havedissimilar characteristicsin some of the categoriesmentioned above, arereported
together as “ Other Tobacco Operations’ because each is below the measurement threshold for separate reporting.

Universal incurs overhead expenses related to senior management, finance, legal, and other functions that are centralized
at its corporate headquarters, as well as functions performed at severa sales and administrative offices around the world. These
overhead expensesareall ocated to the vari ous operating segments, generally on the basi s of tobacco volumes planned to be purchased
and/or processed. Management believes this method of allocation is representative of the value of the related services provided to
the operating segments. The Company eval uatesthe performance of its segments based on operating income after allocated overhead
expenses, plus equity in the pretax earnings of unconsolidated affiliates.
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Reportable segment data as of, or for, the fiscal years ended March 31, 2016, 2015, and 2014, is as follows:

Sales and Other Operating Revenues Operating Income
Fiscal Year Ended March 31, Fiscal Year Ended March 31,
2016 2015 2014 2016 2015 2014
Flue-Cured and Burley Leaf Tobacco Operations:
NOMh AMENICAL.......coveeieiercncreie e $ 361,827 $ 305028 $ 348,627 % 31,147  $ 31,060 $ 23,217
Other Regions(l) ..................................................... 1,538,971 1,739,781 1,932,228 143,596 125,839 133,447
SUBLOLA ... 1,900,798 2,044,809 2,280,855 174,743 156,899 156,664
Other Tobacco Operations @ 219,575 226,992 261,260 11,325 10,326 18,511
SEYMENE LOLA .......ooeveeerceicireieei e 2,120,373 2,271,801 2,542,115 186,068 167,225 175,175
Deduct: Equity in pretax earnings of unconsolidated
affiliates O e (5,422) (7,137) (3,897)
Restructuring and impairment costs @ . (2,389) (4,890) (6,746)
Add:  Other income O e 3,390 12,676 81,619
Consolidated total ............ccceeuereieeeieeeeeeeeeeeieea $ 2120373 $ 2,271,801 $ 25421115 $ 181,647 $ 167,874 $ 246,151
Segment Assets Goodwill
March 31, March 31,
2016 2015 2014 2016 2015 2014
Flue-Cured and Burley Leaf Tobacco Operations:
NOIth AMENICA. ... $ 364,271 $ 281,757 $ 272,161 $ — % — 3 —
Other Regions(l) ..................................................... 1,549,758 1,609,393 1,676,507 97,318 97,372 97,367
SUBLOLEL ......cvevvveieieieieieeie s 1,914,029 1,891,150 1,948,668 97,318 97,372 97,367
Other Tobacco Operations @ 318,768 297,299 316,225 1,713 1,713 1,713
Segment and consolidated totals.............coovererinennne $ 2232797 $ 2188449 $ 2264893 $ 99,031 $ 99,085 $ 99,080
Depreciation and Amortization Capital Expenditures
Fiscal Year Ended March 31, Fiscal Year Ended March 31,
2016 2015 2014 2016 2015 2014
Flue-Cured and Burley Leaf Tobacco Operations:
NOMh AMENICAL.....cuiiieiiieeceece e $ 4314 $ 4284 $ 6,018 $ 2282 % 5814 $ 2,676
Other Regions(l) ..................................................... 29,187 28,827 29,044 25,122 39,303 37,584
SUBLOLE ..o 33,501 33,111 35,062 27,404 45117 40,260
Other Tobacco Operations @ 4,143 4,213 3,837 19,749 13,268 5,589
Segment and consolidated totals.............cccceveverereuennne. $ 37644 % 37,324 % 38899 $ 47,153 $ 58,385 $ 45,849
@ Includes South America, Africa, Europe, and Asiaregions, aswell asinter-region eliminations.
@

3

O

®

Includes Dark Air-Cured, Oriental, and Special Services, as well as inter-company eliminations. Sales and other operating revenues, goodwill, depreciation
and amortization, and capital expenditures include limited amounts or no amounts for Oriental because the business is accounted for on the equity method and
itsfinancial results consist principally of equity in the pretax earnings of the unconsolidated affiliate. Theinvestment in the unconsolidated affiliateisincluded
in segment assets and was approximately $81.8 million, $74.9 million, and $93.3 million, at March 31, 2016, 2015, and 2014, respectively.

Equity in pretax earnings of unconsolidated affiliates is included in segment operating income (Other Tobacco Operations segment), but is reported below
consolidated operating income and excluded from that total in the consolidated statements of income.

Restructuring and impairment costs are excluded from segment operating income, but are included in consolidated operating income in the consolidated
statements of income (see Note 2).

Other incomein fiscal year 2016 representsagain from remeasuring to fair val ue the Company's original 50% ownership in Procesadora Unitab, S.A., atobacco
processing joint venture in Guatemala, upon acquiring the 50% interest held by the Company's joint venture partner (See Note 13). Other income represents
the reversal of avaluation allowance on Pl excise tax creditsin Brazil in fiscal year 2015 and the gain on the favorable outcome of the IPI tax credit casein
fiscal year 2014 (see Note 13).
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Geographic data as of, or for, the fiscal years ended March 31, 2016, 2015, and 2014, is presented below. Sales and other
operating revenues are attributed to individual countries based on the final destination of the shipment. Long-lived assets generally
consist of net property, plant, and equipment, goodwill, and other intangibles.

Geographic Data Sales and Other Operating Revenues

Fiscal Year Ended March 31,

2016 2015 2014
BEIGIUM ...ttt bbbttt bbbttt ettt bttt ettt s bttt $ 371,580 $ 336,396 $ 289,206
UNIEO SEBEES.......cocvevieceeeeeissiessessssiessesssesessessssssesesssesseessssssesese st e sesessssasesessssesesasssnsesssnssnsessesnsnsnssnsesesnes 275,147 290,950 304,527
(€= 10070 TSP 155,180 170,338 173,872
(O 011 7= ST 135,032 174,872 210,956
NEINEITANGS.........coceieicieies ettt st s st s snsesen 121,767 113,297 208,031
RUSSIB ......vuieiei ettt s e s st n et st e nna et s 109,559 126,652 123,114
AL OtNEY COUMITIES.......c.oviieeirieiet ettt bbbt 952,108 1,059,296 1,232,409
(010 o[ o= 1= (o] TP $ 2,120,373 % 2,271,801 $ 2,542,115

Long-Lived Assets
March 31,

2016 2015 2014
UNIEO SEBEES.......cocvevieceeeeeissiessessssiessesssesessessssssesesssesseessssssesese st e sesessssasesessssesesasssnsesssnssnsessesnsnsnssnsesesnes $ 84,072 $ 70929 $ 61,347
2] =7 | TR 133,727 135,980 135,359
MOZAMDIQUEL.........eeeiictetiieieteee ettt ettt ettt sttt seaeseebese e s s et ensesebese s esebe e besenessebensssesensne 53,069 55,733 49,543
Al OENET COUNLIIES......c.oceieieietses et 154,090 141,893 149,750
(070 g1 o[ o = 1=o (o] ¢ $ 424958 $ 404,535 $ 395,999
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NOTE 15. ACCUMULATED OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)

The following table summarizes the changes in the balances for each component of accumulated other comprehensive

income (loss) attributable to the Company for the fiscal years ended March 31, 2016, 2015, and 2014:

Fiscal Year Ended March 31,

(in thousands of dollars) 2016 2015 2014
Foreign currency translation:
Balance at beginniNg Of YEA ..........c.cvoveveeeeeeeeeee et es s sennens $ (3L,138) $ (8476) $ (15,555)
Other comprehensive income (loss) attributable to Universal Corporation:
Net gain (loss) on foreign currency translation (net of tax (expense) benefit of $(2,119),

$12,181, aNd $(3,489)) .....cviveeeeiireeiesiee ettt a b enas 3,934 (22,625) 6,480
Less: Net loss (gain) on foreign currency translation attributable to noncontrolling interests.... 212 37) 599
Other comprehensive income (loss) attributable to Universal Corporation, net of income

165 TR 4,146 (22,662) 7,079

BalanCe Gl €10 Of YEBN .........ceeveveeeeeeeeeeeee e e ettt sttt ssssstssssnesssssassssssesnnns $ (26992) $ (31,138 $ (8,476)
Foreign currency hedge:
Balance at beginning Of YEAI ..........c.coueviviieeeeeee ettt $ (1834 $ 769 $ (855)
Other comprehensive income (loss) attributable to Universal Corporation:
Net gain (loss) on derivative instruments (net of tax (expense) benefit of $(1,060), $2,304,

Yo T 1122 ) TP TS TR 1,969 (4,280) 580
Reclassification of net loss to earnings (net of tax benefit of $(291), $(903), and $(563)) @ 540 1,677 1,044
Other comprehensive income (loss) attributable to Universal Corporation, net of income

165 TR 2,509 (2,603) 1,624

BalanCe al €0 O YA ...ttt ettt bbb bbbt $ 675 $ (1,834) $ 769
Interest rate hedge:
Balance at beginning Of YEBN ..........ccccviucuiiiiiieieieeeec ettt $ (1,982 $ (608) $  (1,091)
Other comprehensive income (loss) attributable to Universal Corporation:
Net loss on derivative instruments (net of tax benefit of $4,489, $1,416, and $49) .................... (8,335) (2,628) (93)
Reclassification of net lossto earnings (net of tax benefit of $(1,788), $(675), and $(310)) 2. 3,320 1,254 576
Other comprehensive income (loss) attributable to Universal Corporation, net of income
16 (TP (5,015) (1,374) 483
Balance at end of year $ (6997) $ (1,982 $ (608)
Pension and other postretirement benefit plans:
Balance at beginning Of YEAN ...........coovoveviiieeeeeeee ettt se et s e enee $ (40,040) $ (26,017) $ (58,039)
Other comprehensive income (loss) attributable to Universal Corporation:
Gains (Iosse@) arising during the year (net of tax (expense) benefit of $1,035, $9,719, and

BB,489)) ™ oo (1,921)  (18,049) 11,977
Prior service credit arising during the year (net of tax expense of $7,751) O — — 14,394
Amortization included in earnings (net of tax benefit of $(1,576), $(2,163), and $(3,042)) ¥ .. 2,925 4,026 5,651
Other comprehensive income (loss) attributable to Universal Corporation, net of income

165 TR 1,004 (14,023) 32,022

BalanCe Gl €10 Of YEBN ........c.cveveeeeeeeeeeeeeeee ettt ettt s st sesnessssssnsssssesnens $ (39,036) $ (40,040) $ (26,017)
Total accumulated other comprehensive income (10ss) at end of Year...........cocceeveeveceeeeeeeeeeeeenee. $ (72,350) $ (74994) $ (34,332
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@ Gain (loss) on foreign currency cash flow hedges related to forecast purchases of tobacco is reclassified from accumulated other
comprehensive income (10ss) to cost of goods sold when the tobacco is sold to customers. See Note 8 for additional information.

@ Gain (loss) on interest rate cash flow hedgesisreclassified from accumulated other comprehensive income (10ss) to interest expense when
therelated interest payments are made on the debt or upon termination of theinterest rate swap agreements prior to their scheduled maturity
dates. See Note 8 for additional information.

(S)Theseitemsarisefrom theremeasurement of theassetsand liabilitiesof the Company'sdefined benefit pension plans. Thoseremeasurements
are made on an annual basis at the end of the fiscal year. In addition, the assets and liabilities of the Company's U.S.-based pension plans
were also remeasured on an interim basis during the second quarter of fiscal year 2014 to reflect the effect of plan amendments adopted
during the period. See Note 10 for additional information.

@ This accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) component is included in the computation of net periodic benefit cost. See Note 10
for additional information.
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NOTE 16. UNAUDITED QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA
Unaudited quarterly financial datafor the fiscal years ended March 31, 2016 and 2015 is provided in the table below. Due

to the seasonal nature of the Company's business, management believesit isgenerally more meaningful to focuson cumulativerather
than quarterly results.

First Second Third Fourth
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
Fiscal Year Ended March 31, 2016
Operating Results:
Sales and other OPErating FEVENUES ...............cc.cveeeeeeereeeeseeseeeeeseeseeesesseseseseeneneeens $ 275419 $ 456,382 $ 584,592 $ 803,980
GIOSS PIOFIT ...ttt bbbttt es 48,389 98,094 119,906 140,942
NELINCOME (I0SS)......vcvieiiecteeiecectee et b bbb s (6,125) 25,064 46,615 52,594
Net income (loss) attributable to Universal Corporation...............ccoceveveveeveveeennne. (5,947) 22,465 44,534 47,964
Earnings (loss) available to Universal Corporation common shareholders after
dividends on convertible perpetual preferred stock ...........ceeeveveeeevesicvennn. (9,634) 18,778 40,847 44,277
Earnings (loss) per share attributable to Universal Corporation common
shareholders:
BaSIC....iei ettt (0.43) 0.83 1.80 1.95
DITULEG. oo eesee s see s e ssesee s e s ses s ese s essseeeeeeesee st eesseresseseees (0.43) 0.81 1.60 1.72
Cash Dividends Declared:
Per share of convertible perpetual preferred Stock ............ooeveveeeeeeeeeeveeeeeeeenne. 16.88 16.87 16.88 16.87
Per share of COmMMON SLOCK ..........ccoiiiiiciicce e 0.52 0.52 0.53 0.53
Market Price Range of Common Stock:
HIGN ot b bbbt tan 57.76 58.41 57.72 57.27
LLOW bbbttt 46.80 46.98 49.70 51.49
Fiscal Year Ended March 31, 2015
Operating Results:
Sales and other OpErating FEVENUES...............coveveveeeeeeeeeeee e tee e $ 271,472 $ 464,116 $ 758,054 $ 778,159
GIOSS PIOFIT ...ttt bbbttt bbbttt es 55,540 85,071 147,572 122,091
LIS 100003 525 15,484 58,077 46,375
Net income attributable to Universal Corporation................ccceeeeveveveevreereeevenenenn 717 15,025 53,039 45,827
Earnings (loss) available to Universal Corporation common shareholders after
dividends on convertible perpetual preferred stock ..........c.ceeeeveeevcveecvennn. (2,995) 11,312 49,309 42,122
Earnings (loss) per share attributable to Universal Corporation common
shareholders:
BaSIC....ieececee ettt (0.13) 0.49 213 1.86
DITULEG. oo eesee s see s e ssesee s e s ses s ese s essseeeeeeesee st eesseresseseees (0.13) 0.48 1.87 1.64
Cash Dividends Declared:
Per share of convertible perpetual preferred Stock ............oveveveeeeeeeeeveeeeeeeeeeeene 16.88 16.87 16.88 16.87
Per share of COmMMON SLOCK ..........ccciiiiiiiie s 0.51 0.51 0.52 0.52
Market Price Range of Common Stock:
HIGN ot b bbbt tan 56.82 56.35 45.63 48.10
LLOW e bbbttt 52.16 44.39 38.53 39.27
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Note:  Earnings per share amounts for each fiscal year may not equal the total of the four quarterly amounts due to differencesin

weighted-average outstanding shares for the respective periods and to the fact that the Company’s convertible perpetua
preferred stock may be antidilutive for some periods.

Significant items included in the quarterly results were as follows:
Fiscal Year Ended March 31, 2016

First Quarter — restructuring and impairment costs totaling $2.4 million related to a decision to significantly scale back the
Company's operations in Zambia. The costs included statutory employee termination benefits, impairment charges related to
outstanding balances on loans to farmers whose contracts were terminated as a result of the decision, and impairment charges
on certain property and equipment. The restructuring and impairment costs reduced net income attributable to Universal
Corporation by $1.6 million and diluted earnings per share by $0.06.

Third Quarter —a $3.4 million pretax gain arising from the acquisition of ajoint venture partner's 50% ownership interest in a
tobacco processing entity in Guatemala. The transaction increased the Company's ownership interest in the entity to 100%,
requiring consolidation of the financial statements of the entity and remeasurement of the Company's original 50% ownership
interest to fair value, resulting in the gain. The gain increased net income attributable to Universal Corporation by $2.2 million
and diluted earnings per share by $0.08.

Fiscal Year Ended March 31, 2015

First Quarter —an income tax benefit of $8.0 million resulting from the ability of the Company's subsidiary, Deltafina S.p.A, to
pay asignificant portion of afine and related interest charges settled during the quarter following the unsuccessful appeal of a
case brought by the European Commission related to tobacco buying practicesin Italy. Thetax benefit reduced the diluted loss
per share after dividends on the Company's convertible perpetual preferred stock by $0.34.

Second Quarter — restructuring costs of approximately $3.4 million, primarily related to workforce reductionsin the Company's
operationsin Brazil, aswell asthe suspension of operationsin Argentina. The restructuring costsreduced net income attributable
to Universal Corporation by $2.2 million and diluted earnings per share by $0.09.

Third Quarter —additional restructuring costs of approximately $1.1 million, primarily related to additional workforce reductions
inBrazil, aswell the suspension of operationsin Argentina. Therestructuring costs reduced net income attributable to Universal
Corporation by $0.7 million and diluted earnings per share by $0.03.

Fourth Quarter — a gain of $12.7 million from the reversal of a valuation allowance on the remaining unused balance of IPI
excise tax credits in Brazil. The gain increased net income attributable to Universal Corporation by $8.2 million and diluted
earnings per share by $0.30. The Company also recorded additional restructuring costs of approximately $0.4 million, which
reduced net income attributable to Universal Corporation by approximately $0.3 million and diluted earnings per share by $0.01.
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Report of Ernst & Young LLP, Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Shareholders of
Universal Corporation

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Universal Corporation as of March 31, 2016 and 2015, and the
related consolidated statements of income, comprehensive income, changes in shareholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the
three yearsin the period ended March 31, 2016. Our audits also included the financia statement schedule listed in the Index at Item
15(a). Thesefinancial statementsand schedule are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility isto express
an opinion on these financia statements and schedule based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States).
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financia statements
are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on atest basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosuresin
the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, aswell as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide areasonable basis
for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in al material respects, the consolidated financial position
of Universal Corporation at March 31, 2016 and 2015, and the consolidated results of its operations and its cash flows for each of
the three yearsin the period ended March 31, 2016, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. Also, in our
opinion, the related financial statement schedule, when considered in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole,
presentsfairly in all material respects the information set forth therein.

Wealso haveaudited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), Universal
Corporation’s internal control over financial reporting as of March 31, 2016, based on criteria established in Internal Control—
Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (2013 framework) and
our report dated May 27, 2016 expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

/s Ernst & Young LLP

Richmond, Virginia
May 27, 2016
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Report of Ernst & Young LLP, Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm,
on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

The Board of Directors and Shareholders of
Universal Corporation

We have audited Universal Corporation’sinternal control over financial reporting as of March 31, 2016, based on criteria established
in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission
(2013 framework) (the COSO criteria). Universal Corporation’s management isresponsiblefor maintai ning effectiveinternal control
over financia reporting, and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting included in the
accompanying Management’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting in Item 9A. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on the company’sinternal control over financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective internal control over
financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over
financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness
of internal control based on the assessed risk, and performing such other procedures aswe considered necessary in the circumstances.
We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company’sinternal control over financial reporting isaprocess designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability
of financia reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. A company’sinternal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain
to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets
of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statementsin accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that recel pts and expenditures of the company are being
made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a
material effect on the financial statements.

Becauseof itsinherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections
of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes
in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, Universal Corporation maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of
March 31, 2016, based on the COSO criteria.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the
consolidated balance sheets of Universal Corporation as of March 31, 2016 and 2015, and the related consolidated statements of
income, comprehensive income, changes in shareholders' equity, and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended
March 31, 2016 and our report dated May 27, 2016 expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

/s Ernst & Young LLP

Richmond, Virginia
May 27, 2016

82



Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements With Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

For thethreeyearsended March 31, 2016, there were no changesin independent auditors, nor were there any disagreements
between the Company and its independent auditors on any matter of accounting principles, practices, or financial disclosures.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures
Disclosure Controls and Procedures

The Company maintains disclosure controls and procedures that are designed to ensure that information required to be
disclosed in reports filed by the Company under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time
periods specified in the SEC rules and forms and that such information is accumulated and communicated to the Company’s
management, including its Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, asappropriate, to allow for timely decisionsregarding
required disclosure. The Company’s Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer evaluated, with the participation of the
Company’s management, the effectiveness of the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rule
13a-15(e)), asof theend of the period covered by thisAnnual Report. Based on thiseval uation, the Company’smanagement, including
its Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, concluded that the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures were
effective.

Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over financial
reporting as defined in Rule 13a-15(f) under the Exchange Act. The Company’sinternal control over financial reporting is designed
to provide reasonable assurance to management and the Board of Directors regarding the preparation and fair presentation of the
consolidated financia statements. Dueto inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect all
errors or misstatementsin thefinancia statements, and even control proceduresthat are determined to be effective can provide only
reasonable assurance with respect to financial statement preparation and presentation. Also, projections of any evauation of
effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changesin conditions.

As required by Exchange Act Rule 13a-15(c), the Company’s Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financia Officer, with
the participation of other members of management, assessed the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial
reporting as of March 31, 2016. The evaluation was based on the criteria set forth in “Internal Control — Integrated Framework”
issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organi zations of the Treadway Commission (2013 framework) (“the COSO criterid’). Based
on this assessment, the Company’s management concluded that the Company’sinternal control over financial reporting was effective
as of March 31, 2016.

The Company’s independent registered public accounting firm, Ernst & Young LLP, has audited the Company’s internal
control over financial reporting as of March 31, 2016. Their report on this audit appears on page 82 of thisAnnual Report.

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

There were no changesin the Company’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the Company’s last
fiscal quarter that have materially affected, or arereasonably likely to materially affect, the Company’sinternal control over financial

reporting.
Item 9B. Other Information

None.
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PART Il
Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers, and Corporate Governance

Except astothemattersset forth bel ow, informationrequired by thisltemisincorporated herein by referencetothe Company’s

2016 Proxy Statement.

The following are executive officers of the Company as of May 27, 2016:

Name and Age

Position

Business Experience During Past Five Years

G. C. Freeman, I11 (52)

A. L. Hentschke (46)

D. C. Moore (60)

T. G. Broome (62)

P. D. Wigner (47)

J. A. Huffman (54)

C. C. Formacek (56)

R. M. Peebles (58)

Chairman, President, and
Chief Executive Officer

Senior Vice President and
Chief Operating Officer

Senior Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer

Executive Vice President and
Sales Director, Universal
Leaf Tobacco Company, Inc.

Vice President, General
Counsel and Secretary

Senior Vice President,
Information and Planning,
Universal Leaf Tobacco
Company, Inc.

Vice President and Treasurer

Vice President and Controller

Mr. Freeman was el ected Chairman of the Board in August 2008, Chief
Executive Officer effective April 2008, President in December 2006,
and Vice President in November 2005. Mr. Freeman served as General
Counsel and Secretary from February 2001 until November 2005 and
has been employed with the Company since 1997.

Mr. Hentschke was el ected Senior Vice President and Chief Operating
Officer in April 2015. From January 2013 to April 2015, he served as
Executive Vice President of Universal Leaf. Tobacco Company,
Incorporated ("Universal Leaf"). From November 2009 to January
2013, Mr. Hentschke served as President and Chief Executive Officer
of Universal Leaf Tabacos, Limitada, the Company's operating
subsidiary in Brazil. He has been employed with the Company and its
affiliates since 1991.

Mr. Moore was elected Senior Vice President and Chief Financia
Officer effective September 2008. Mr. Moore served as Vice President
and Chief Administrative Officer from April 2006 until September
2008, as Senior Vice President of Universal Leaf from September 2005
until April 2006, and as Managing Director of Universal Leaf
International SA from April 2002 until September 2005. He has been
employed with the Company since 1978.

Mr. Broome was el ected Executive Vice President and Sales Director,
Universal Leaf, in October 2012. From April 2011 through October
2012, Mr. Broome served as Executive Vice President. From September
1998 through March 2011, Mr. Broome served as Senior VicePresident-
Sales. He has been employed with the Company since 1994.

Mr. Wigner was elected Vice President in August 2007, and General
Counsel and Secretary in November 2005 and also served as Chief
Compliance Officer from November 2007 until September 2012. Mr.
Wigner served as Senior Counsel of Universal Leaf from November
2004 until November 2005. He has been employed with the Company
since 2003.

Mr. Huffman was elected Senior Vice President, Information and
Planning, Universal Leaf, in August 2007. From September 2003 to
August 2007, Mr. Huffman served as Senior Vice President. From
September 2002 to September 2003, Mr. Huffman served as Vice
President and Controller. He has been employed with the Company
since 1996.

Ms. Formacek was elected Vice President and Treasurer effective April
2012. Ms. Formacek served as Treasurer of Universal Leaf from April
2011throughMarch 2012. Shejoined the Company in September 2009
and served as Assistant Treasurer of Universal Leaf from that time
through March 2011.

Mr. Peebles was elected Vice President and Controller in April 2011.
Mr. Peebles joined the Company in September 2003 and served as
Controller from that time through March 2011.

There are no family relationships between any of the above officers.



The Company has a Code of Conduct that includes the NY SE requirements for a“ Code of Business Conduct and Ethics’
and the SEC requirements for a“ Code of Ethics for Senior Financial Officers.” The Code of Conduct is applicable to all officers,
employees, and outside directors of the Company, including the principal executive officer, principal financial officer, and principal
accounting officer. A copy of the Code of Conduct is available through the “Corporate Governance-Overview” section of the
Company’s website at www.universalcorp.com. |f the Company amends a provision of the Code of Conduct, or grants a waiver
from any such provision to a director or executive officer, the Company will disclose such amendments and the details of such
waivers on the Company’s website www.universal corp.com to the extent required by the SEC or the NY SE.

Theinformation required by Items407(c)(3), (d)(4) and (d)(5) of Regulation S-K iscontained under the captions* Corporate
Governance and Committees—Committees of the Board—Compensation Committee,” “ Corporate Governance and Committees—
Committees of the Board—Audit Committeg” of the Company’s 2016 Proxy Statement and such information is incorporated by
reference herein.

Item 11. Executive Compensation

Refer to the captions * Executive Compensation” and “ Directors’ Compensation” in the Company’s 2016 Proxy Statement,
which information is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters

Refer to the caption “ Stock Ownership” in the Company’s 2016 Proxy Statement, which information isincorporated herein
by reference.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence

Refer to the caption “Certain Transactions’ in the Company’s 2016 Proxy Statement, which information is incorporated
herein by reference. Theinformationrequired by 1tem 407(a) of Regulation S-K iscontained under the caption “ Corporate Governance
and Committees—Director Independence” of the Company’s2016 Proxy Statement and suchinformationisincorporated by reference
herein.

Item 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services

Refer to the captions “ Audit Information — Fees of Independent Auditors” and “ Audit Information — Pre-Approval Policies
and Procedures’ in the Company’s 2016 Proxy Statement, which information is incorporated herein by reference.
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PART IV
Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules
€)] Thefollowing arefiled as part of thisAnnua Report:

1. Financial Statements.

Consolidated Statements of Income for the Fiscal Years Ended March 31, 2016, 2015, and 2014

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income for the Fiscal Years Ended March 31, 2016, 2015, and 2014

Consolidated Balance Sheets at March 31, 2016 and 2015

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the Fiscal Years Ended March 31, 2016, 2015, and 2014

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity for the Fiscal Years Ended March 31, 2016, 2015,
and 2014

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the Fiscal Years Ended March 31, 2016, 2015, and 2014

Report of Ernst & Young LLP, Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

Report of Ernst & Young LLP, Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm, on Internal Control Over Financial
Reporting

2. Financial Statement Schedules.
Schedule Il — Valuation and Qualifying Accounts

3. Exhibits. Theexhibitsarelisted in the Exhibit Index immediately following the signature pagesto thisAnnua Report.
(b) Exhibits
The response to this portion of Item 15 is submitted as a separate section to this Annual Report.
() Financial Statement Schedules

Schedule 1l — Vauation and Qualifying Accounts appears on the following page of this Annual Report. All other
schedules are not required under the related instructions or are not applicable and therefore have been omitted.

86



Schedule 11 - Valuation and Qualifying Accounts
Universal Corporation
Fiscal Years Ended March 31, 2016, 2015, and 2014

Net
Additions Additions
Balance at (Reversals) Charged Balance
Beginning Charged to Other at End
Description of Year to Expense Accounts Deductions @ of Year
(in thousands of dollars)
Fiscal Year Ended March 31, 2014:
Allowance for doubtful accounts (deducted from accounts
TECEIVADIE) ...ttt $ 7,98 $ 419 $ — 8 (1,851) $ 6,536
Allowance for supplier accounts (deducted from advances
to suppliers and other noncurrent assets) ............cccceveveveee. 54,393 5,461 — (13,776) 46,078
Allowance for recoverable taxes (deducted from other
current assets and other noncurrent assets) ...........c.ccceeeee 26,044 5,607 — (2,147) 29,504
Fiscal Year Ended March 31, 2015:
Allowance for doubtful accounts (deducted from accounts
rECEIVADIE) ..ot $ 6,536 $ 1341 $ — % (2,395) $ 5,482
Allowance for supplier accounts (deducted from advances
to suppliers and other noncurrent assets) ............c.cceceuenee. 46,078 3,734 — (15,139) 34,673
Allowance for recoverable taxes (deducted from other
current assets and other noncurrent assets) .............coc..... 29,504 1,855 — (8,141) 23,218
Fiscal Year Ended March 31, 2016:
Allowance for doubtful accounts (deducted from accounts
FECEIVADIE) .....c.cvviicicicceec e 5482 $ 6,970 $ — 3 (3353) $ 9,099
Allowance for supplier accounts (deducted from advances
to suppliers and other noncurrent assets) ...........c.oeeeevrenen. 34,673 815 — (6,623) 28,865
Allowance for recoverable taxes (deducted from other
current assets and other noncurrent assets) ........................ 23,218 1,755 — (6,221) 18,752
@ Includes direct write-offs of assets and currency remeasurement.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, the Registrant has
duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

UNIVERSAL CORPORATION
May 27, 2016
By: /s GEORGE C. FREEMAN, I1|

George C. Freeman, 11
Chairman, President, and Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities ExchangeAct of 1934, as amended, this report has been signed below by the
following persons on behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Signature Title Date

/s GEORGE C. FREEMAN, I11 Chairman, President, Chief Executive Officer, and Director May 27, 2016
George C. Freeman, 11 (Principal Executive Officer)

/s/ DAVID C. MOORE Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer May 27, 2016
David C. Moore (Principal Financia Officer)

/s’ ROBERT M. PEEBLES Vice President and Controller May 27, 2016

Robert M. Peebles (Principal Accounting Officer)
/s JOHN B. ADAMS, JR. Director May 27, 2016

John B. Adams, Jr.

/s/ DIANA F. CANTOR Director May 27, 2016
Diana F. Cantor

/s CHESTER A. CROCKER Director May 27, 2016
Chester A. Crocker

/sl CHARLESH. FOSTER, JR. Director May 27, 2016
Charles H. Foster, Jr.

/s LENNART R. FREEMAN Director May 27, 2016
Lennart R. Freeman

/Y THOMASH. JOHNSON Director May 27, 2016
Thomas H. Johnson

/s/ EDDIE N. MOORE, JR. Director May 27, 2016
Eddie N. Moore, Jr.

/s ROBERT C. SLEDD Director May 27, 2016
Robert C. Sledd
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3.2

4.1

4.2

10.1

10.2

10.3

10.4

10.5

10.6

10.7

10.8

10.9

10.10

10.11

10.12

10.13

10.14

EXHIBIT INDEX

Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation, effective August 9, 2011 (incorporated herein by reference to the
Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K Registration Statement filed August 9, 2011, File No. 001-00652).

Amended and Restated Bylaws (as of August 3, 2010) (incorporated herein by reference to the Registrant’s Current
Report on Form 8-K dated August 3, 2010, File No. 001-00652).

Indenture between the Registrant and Chemical Bank, as trustee (incorporated herein by reference to the Registrant’s
Current Report on Form 8-K dated February 25, 1991, File No. 001-00652).

Specimen Common Stock Certificate (incorporated herein by reference to the Registrant’s Amendment No. 1 to
Registrant’s Form 8-A Registration Statement, dated May 7, 1999, File No. 001-00652).

Form of Universal Leaf Tobacco Company, Incorporated Executive Life Insurance Agreement (incorporated herein by
referenceto the Registrant’sAnnual Report on Form 10-K for thefiscal year ended June 30, 1994, File No. 001-00652).

Universal Leaf Tobacco Company, Incorporated Deferred Income Plan (incorporated herein by reference to the
Registrant’s Report on Form 8-K, dated February 8, 1991, File No. 001-00652).

Universal Leaf Tobacco Company, Incorporated Benefit Replacement Plan (incorporated herein by reference to the
Registrant’s Report on Form 8-K, dated February 8, 1991, File No. 001-00652).

Universal Leaf Tobacco Company, |ncorporated 1994 Benefit Replacement Plan (incorporated herein by reference to
the Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1994, File No. 001-00652).

Universal Leaf Tobacco Company, Incorporated 1996 Benefit Restoration Plan (incorporated herein by reference to
the Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1996, File No. 001-00652).

Universal Leaf Tobacco Company, Incorporated 1994 Deferred Income Plan, amended and restated as of July 1, 1998
(incorporated herein by reference to the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September
30, 1998, File No. 001-00652).

Universal Corporation Outside Directors Deferred Income Plan, restated as of October 1, 1998 (incorporated herein
by reference to the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 1998, File No.
001-00652).

Revised Form of Universal Corporation Non-Employee Director Restricted Stock Agreement (incorporated herein by
reference to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated June 9, 2010, File No. 001-00652).

Form Change of Control Agreement (incorporated herein by reference to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-
K filed November 10, 2008, File No. 001-00652).

Universal Corporation Director’s Charitable Award Program (incorporated herein by reference to the Registrant’s
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1998, File No. 001-00652).

Universal Corporation 1997 Executive Stock Plan, as amended on August 7, 2003 (incorporated herein by reference
to the Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2003, File No. 001-00652).

Universal Corporation 2002 Executive Stock Plan, as amended on August 7, 2003 (incorporated herein by reference
to the Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2003, File No. 001-00652).

Form of Restricted Stock Units Award Agreement (incorporated herein by reference to the Registrant’s Current Report
on Form 8-K filed November 10, 2008, File No. 001-00652).

Form of Stock Appreciation Rights Agreement (incorporated herein by reference to the Registrant’s Current Report on
Form 8-K filed June 1, 2006, File No. 001-00652).
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10.15

10.16

10.17

10.18

10.19

10.20

10.21

10.22

10.23

10.24

10.25

12

21

23

311

31.2

32.1

32.2

101

Form Stock Appreciation Rights Agreement (incorporated herein by reference to the Registrant’s Current Report on
Form 8-K filed June 3, 2008, File No. 001-00652).

Universal Corporation 2007 Amended and Restated Stock Incentive Plan effective August 7, 2012 (incorporated herein
by reference to Exhibit A to the Registrant’s definitive proxy statement filed June 28, 2012, File No. 001-00652).

Universal Corporation Executive Officer Annual Incentive Plan, as amended (incorporated herein by reference to the
Registrant's definitive proxy statement filed June 25, 2014, File No. 001-00652).

Form of Universal Corporation 2010 Restricted Stock Units Agreement with Schedule of Awardsto named executive
officers (incorporated herein by reference to the Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended
March 31, 2010, File No. 001-00652).

Form of Universal Corporation Stock Appreciation Rights Agreement for executive officers (incorporated herein by
referencetotheRegistrant'sAnnual Report on Form 10-K for thefiscal year ended March 31, 2010, FileNo. 001-00652).

Universal Leaf Tobacco Company, Incorporated Deferred Income Plan 111, amended and restated as of December 31,
2008 (incorporated herein by reference to the Registrant's Annual Report on Form 10-K for thefiscal year ended March
31, 2010, File No. 001-00652).

Universal Corporation Outside Directors Deferred Income Plan 111, amended and restated as of December 31, 2008,
and amended as of February 1, 2010 (incorporated herein by reference to the Registrant's Annual Report on Form 10-
K for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2010, File No. 001-00652).

Form of Universal Corporation 2011 Restricted Stock Units Agreement (incorporated herein by reference to the
Registrant's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2011, File No. 001-00652).

Form of Universal Corporation Stock Appreciation Rights Agreement for executive officers (incorporated herein by
referenceto the Registrant'sAnnual Report on Form 10-K for thefiscal year ended March 31, 2011, FileNo. 001-00652).

Form of Universa Corporation Performance Share Award Agreement (incorporated herein by reference to the
Registrant's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2011, File No. 001-00652).

Credit Agreement dated December 30, 2014 among the Company, JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as Administrative
Agent, SunTrust Bank and AgFirst Farm Credit Bank, as Co-Syndication Agents and Keybank National Association
and Capital One, National Association, as Co-Documentation Agents (incorporated herein by reference to the
Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated December 30, 2014 (December 23, 2014), File No. 001-00652).

Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges and Ratio of Earnings to Combined Fixed Charges and Preference Dividends.*
Subsidiaries of the Registrant.*

Consent of Ernst & Young LLP, Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm.*

Certification of Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.*
Certification of Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.*

Statement of Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350.*

Statement of Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350.*

Interactive Data File (Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2016, furnished in XBRL
(eXtensible Business Reporting Language)).*
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Attached as Exhibit 101 to thisreport are the following documentsformatted in XBRL: (i) the Consolidated Statements
of Income for each of the three years ended March 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014, (ii) the Consolidated Statements of
Comprehensivelncomefor each of thethreeyearsended March 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014, (iii) the Consolidated Balance
Sheets at March 31, 2016 and 2015, (iv) the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for each of the three years ended
March 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014, (v) the Consolidated Statement of Shareholders’ Equity for each of the three years
ended March 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014, (vi) the Notesto Consolidated Financial Statements, (vii) Schedulell - Valuation
and Qualifying Accounts.

* Filed herewith.
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